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BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, 
BENCH, AT NEW DELHI

COMPANY APPLICATION CA (CAA) NO. lOO/ND/2024

IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 - 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, 

ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016
AND

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT OF:
ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED

........ DEMERGED COMPANY ! APPLICANT COMPANY NO. 1 
AND

ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
........ RESULTING COMPANY t APPLICANT COMPANY NO. 2

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS

To,

The Unsecured Creditors of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited (the “Demerged/ Applicant Company 
No.l”)

Notice is hereby given that by an order dated July 15, 2025 the Hon’ble National Company Law 
Tribunal, New Delhi Bench (“NCLT”) in Company Application No.(CAA) lOO/ND/2024 has 
directed that a meeting of Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company, be convened and held 
for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, with or without modification, approving the 
scheme of arrangement (“Scheme”) of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited (hereinafter refened to as 
AFPL/Demerged Company) and Alfa Autotech Private Limited (hereinafter refened to as 
AAPL/Resulting Company) under the provisions of sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“Act”).

In pursuance of the said order and as directed therein notice is hereby given that a meeting of the 
Unsecured Creditors of the AFPL/Demerged Company will be held on Monday, IS'** September, 
2025 at 12:00 P.M. through Video Conferencing using NSDL Portal ("VC”) with facility of remote 
e-voting and e-voting at the meeting following the operating procedures (with requisite 
modifications as may be required) referred to in Circular No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 read with 
Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 09, 2024 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government of India. Further, there shall be no meeting requiring physical presence at a common 
venue in view of the MCA Circulars, at which time and place the said Unsecured Creditors are 
requested to attend. At the meeting, the following resolutions will be considered and if thought fit, 
be passed with or without modification(s) under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable 
provisions of the Act by requisite majority:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable ' 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory amendment, modification(s) i 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force read with the rules made thereunder, as amended
(“the Act”), subject to other approvals, consents and permissions, as may be necessary, approval of ’
the Unsecured Creditors of the Company be and is hereby accorded to Scheme of Demerger (“the ’
said Scheme”) of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited and Alfa Autotech Private Limited

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director be and is hereby severally authorized to do all '
such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, 
appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively implement the Scheme and 1 
to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be 1
required and/or imposed by the NCLT/or by any other court while sanctioning the Scheme or by i
any authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or 
doubts or difficulties that may arise including passing of such accounting entries and/or making ; 
such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, 
as the Board may deem fit and proper without being required to seek any further approval of the 
members or otherwise to the end and intent that the members shall be deemed to have given their 
approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.” j

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that copy of the Scheme, the Explanatory Statement pursuant to J 
Section 230(3) read with Section 102 and Section 232(2) of the Act and Rule 6(3) of the Companies 
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 along with all annexures to such • 
statement are enclosed herewith. A copy of this notice and the accompanying documents can also 
be obtained free of charge on any day (except Saturday, Sunday and public holidays) from the * 
Registered office of the Applicant Company No. 1 situated at M-439, 1“ Floor, Guru Harkishan 
Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi 110087 or at the office of its authorized representative M/s 
Saxena and Saxena Law Chambers at 603, New Delhi House, 27, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi- 
I10001.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that since the physical attendance of Unsecured Creditors has been 
dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of 
appointment of proxies by Unsecured Creditors under Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ' 
“Act”) will not be available for the said Meeting and hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip 
are not annexed to this Notice.

It may be noted that the facility of remote e-voting will be available during the prescribed period 
before the meeting. Accordingly, Unsecured Creditors can vote through remote electronic means, 
alternatively, the Unsecured Creditors may opt for e-voting on the day of the meeting.

The Tribunal has appointed Mrs. Rashmi Chopra, Sr. Advocate/Arbitrator, as Chairperson and Mr. 
Jitender Arora, Company Secretary has been appointed as Scrutinizer for the said meeting. The 
abovementioned Scheme of Demerger, if approved by the meeting, will be subject to the subsequent 
approval of the Hon’ble Tribunal. ■*
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In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act, the Scheme of Demerger shall be 
considered approved by the Unsecured Creditors only if the Scheme is approved by majority of 
persons representing three-fourth in value of the Unsecured Creditors, of the Applicant Company 
No. 1, voting in person or by authorized representative.

Date: ., 2025
Place: New Delhi

Vvq I
Mifs. Rashmi Chopra 

Sr. Advocate/Arbitrator
Chairperson, Appointed by 

Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, 
New Delhi Bench

For meeting of Unsecured Creditors of 
Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited
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NOTES;

1. As per NCLT Order dated July 15, 2025 read with general circular issued by Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) viz. Circular No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 read with Circular 
No. 09/2024 dated September 09, 2024 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’), 
meeting of Unsecured Creditors of AFPL/ Demerged Company will be held through Video 
Conferencing(‘VC’), using NSDL Portal (‘VC’) at the meeting. Instructions for attending 
the meeting through Video Conferencing and remote e-voting & e-voting at the 
meeting are given at the end of this notice. The deemed venue for the Meeting shall be the 
Registered Office of the Demerged Company situated at M-439, 1st Floor, Guru Harkishan 
Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi 110087.

2. Since, the meeting is being held pursuant to NCLT Order and MCA Circulars through VC, 
physical attendance of the Unsecured Creditors has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the 
facility for appointment of proxies by the Unsecured Creditors will not be available for 
meeting.

3. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) has been appointed by the Applicant 
Company to provide remote e-voting facility before the meeting; and to provide e-voting 
platform during the meeting, in secured manner. Whereas Mas Services Ltd, a SEBI 
registered Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) is appointed to provide platform for 
convening the meeting through Video Conferencing; to handle and supervise the entire 
process of holding the meeting through Video Conferencing, processing of data relating to 
the meeting and voting etc.

4. In case of any grievance or difficulty in registering the e-mail id; remote e-voting or during 
e-voting or attending the meeting through Video Conferencing, etc., the following persons 
may be contacted:

Mr, Sharwan Mangla

General Manager

Mas Services Ltd

Registrar & Transfer Agent

Mobile: 98117 42828 

e-mail; sm@masserv.com
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Mr. Niraj Arya Mobile: 7834907641

Authorized Person Email id.: nirajarya0195@gmail.com

5. The Unsecured Creditors can join the meeting through VC mode 15 minutes before and after 
the scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice.

6. Only Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Company No. 1 may attend and meeting through 
Video Conferencing and vote through e-voting/remote e-voting system at the Unsecured 
Creditors meeting. The representative of a body corporate which is Unsecured Creditors of 
the Applicant Company No. 1 may attend and vote at the Unsecured Creditors meeting 
provided a certified true copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors or other governing 
body under Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 authorizing such representative to 
attend and vote at the Unsecured Creditors meeting is deposited at the Registered Office of 
the Applicant Company No. 1 or email ID of scrutinizer i.e. csjitender@yahoo.com not 
later than 48 hours before the meeting.

7. The joint notice convening the meetings will be published through advertisement in New 
Delhi editions in the newspapers namely, ‘Business Standard’ (English) and ‘Business 
Standard’ (Hindi).

8. The Unsecured Creditors owing debt to the Company as on 31.03.2025, being the cut-off 
date, will be entitled to exercise their right to vote on the resolutions in respect of the 
approval of the Scheme.

9. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the value of debt owed by the Company as on 
31.03.2025. Persons who are not Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company as on the 
cut-off date i.e.31.03.2025 should treat this notice for information purposes only.

10. In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Scheme shall be acted upon only if a majority in number representing three fourths in value 
(as per Sections 230 and 232 of the Act), the Resolution proposed in the Notice shall be 
deemed to have been passed on the date of the Meeting.
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11. Voting may be made through remote e-voting which will be available during the prescribed 
period before the meeting (as given below); or through e-voting platform which will be 
available during the meeting:

Commencement of remote e-voting Friday, 12th September, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. 
1ST

End of remote e-voting Sunday, 14th September, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. 
1ST

12. All Unsecured Creditors will be entitled to attend the meeting through Video Conferencing. 
The facility for e-voting shall also be made available at the meeting. However, Unsecured 
Creditors who have already voted through the remote e-voting process before the meeting, 
will not be entitled to vote at the meeting, however they will continue to be entitled to attend 
the meeting.

13. The quorum for meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company shall be 
shall be 2 (two) Unsecured Creditors as per Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Unsecured Creditors attending the NCLT Convened Meeting through VC will be counted 
for the purpose of reckoning the quorum. In case the quorum as noted above for the 
aforesaid meeting is not present at the meeting, then the meeting shall be adjourned by half 
an hour and thereafter the persons present and voting shall be deemed to constitute the 
quorum of the meeting.

14. In compliance with NCLT Order and pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the applicable rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s), 
clarifications, exemptions or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) the Notice, 
together with the documents accompanying the same, is being sent to all the Unsecured 
Creditors electronically by e-mail to those Unsecured Creditors who have registered their e- 
mail ids with the Company ,whose name appear as the Unsecured Creditors as on 
31.03.2025. For Unsecured Creditors who have not registered their E-mail IDs, physical 
copies shall be sent by permitted mode. In case any Unsecured Creditors wish to receive a 
copy of the notice, they are requested to send an email to advisor@sslclegal.com duly 
quoting his/her Folio Name and Amount Debt owed by the Company, as the case may be 
and soft copy of this Notice will be provided to such Unsecured Creditors. The Notice of the 
Meetings is also available on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

15. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement along 
with the Statutory Registers maintained by the Company will be available for inspection by 
the Unsecured Creditors at the Registered Office of the Demerged Company during normal 
business hours (11 am to 5 pm) from Monday to Friday upto and including the date of the 
meeting.
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16. Since the meeting will be held through VC in accordance with the NCLT Order and MCA 
Circulars, the route map, proxy form and attendance slip are not attached to this Notice.

17. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with 
applicable rules thereunder and provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 
setting out material facts forms part of this notice.

18. Unsecured Creditors are requested to carefully read all the Notes set out herein and in 
particular, instructions for joining the Meeting and manner of casting vote through 
electronic means.

19. Instructions;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR UNSECURED CREDITORS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING 
ARE AS UNDER:

The facility of attending Meeting through VC/ OAVM is being provided by National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The facility of casting votes by a Unsecured creditor 
using electronic means, i.e. (i) remote e-Voting and (ii) e-Voting at the Meeting, (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘e-Voting’) is also being provided by NSDL.

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, 12*** September, 202S at 9:00 A.M. 1ST and 
ends Sunday, 14”’ September, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. 1ST. The remote e-voting module shall 
be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. However, the same shall be enabled once again 
during the course of the Meeting. The Unsecured Creditors, whose names appear as the 
Unsecured Creditors as on 31.03.2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right 
of Unsecured Creditors shall be in proportion in proportion to the principal amount due to 
them by the Company as on the cut-off date. Once the vote on a resolution is casted by the 
Unsecured Creditors, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote 
again.

Procedure for remote c-voting;

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 

mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to the NSDL e-voting system

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system.

Step 1: Access to NSDL c-voting system
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1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
httDs://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under‘Shareholder/Member’section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen.

4. The User ID and Password for joining the Meeting through VC / OAVM and casting votes 
through e-voting are attached in the pdf file enclosed herewith. Please note that the 
password to open the pdf file is the unique id mentioned in the email or for the first time, the 
system will ask to reset your password.

5. The User ID and Password are sent to all the Unsecured Creditors whose email addresses 
are available with the Company.

6. Those Unsecured Creditors whose e-mail addresses are not available with the Company and 
as a result have not received the e-mail communication, may obtain the User ID and 
Password by writing to the Company as given below.

7. An Unsecured creditor who cannot retrieve or has not received the User ID and Password, 
may obtain the same by sending a request at niraiarva0195@gmail.com. Such Unsecured 
creditor is requested to provide his ! her / its ! name, address, PAN, mobile number and 
email address along with the request. The subject line of the request should clearly mention: 
“Login Id and Password for Unsecured Creditor for NCLT Convened Meeting- Alfa 
Flexitubes Private Limited”

8. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 
check box.

9. Now you will have to click on “Login” button.

10. After you click on the “Login” button, home page of e-voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system.

1. After successful login at step I, you will be able to see EVEN of Company.

2. Select EVEN of company to cast your vote.
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3. Now you are ready for e-voting as the voting page open.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options, i.e., assent or dissent, and click on “Submit” 
and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

Procedure for e-voting at the Meeting:

1. Unsecured Creditors will be provided with a facility to attend the NCLT meeting through 
VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of 
the meeting is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting. Unsecured 
Creditors may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e- 
Voting system.

2. After successful login, Unsecured Creditors will be able to see the VC / OAVM link placed 
under ‘Join meeting’ menu against the Company’s name. Unsecured Creditors are requested 
to click on the VC / OAVM link placed under ‘Join meeting’ menu.

3. Facility to join the Meeting through VC/OAVM, will open 30 minutes before the scheduled 
time of the commencement of the Meeting.

4. Unsecured Creditors are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better 
experience.

5. Unsecured Creditors will be required to allow the camera and use internet with good speed 
to avoid any disturbance during the Meeting.

6. Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio / Video loss due to fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

General Guidelines

1. It is strongly recommended not to share User ID and Password with any other person and
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take utmost care to keep them confidential.

2. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) available at 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or 
send a request at evoting@,nsdl.com.

3. Unsecured Creditors who would like to express their views/have questions may send their 
questions in advance mentioning their name, email-id, mobile number at 
advisor@sslclegal.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

Date: ,
Place: New Delhi

2025 Mn, Rashmi Chopra 
Sr. Auvocate/Arbitrator 

Chairperson, Appointed by 
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, 

New Delhi Bench

For meeting of Unsecured Creditors of 
Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS UNDER SECTION 230(3), 232(1), 232(2) AND SECTION 
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES 
(COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES. 2016 TO THE 
SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED 
AND ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE MEMBERS 
AND CREDITORS.

1. Pursuant to the order dated July 15, 2025, passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law 
Tribunal, New Delhi Bench (“NCLT”) in Company Application No. (CAA) lOO/ND/2024, a 
meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited (“Demerged 
Company”) is being convened on Monday, IS”* September, 2025 at 12:00 P.M. 1ST 
through video conferencing using NSDL Portal with facility of remote e-voting and e-voting 
at the meeting, for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving the scheme of 
arrangement (“Scheme”) of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited and Alfa Autotech Private 
Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors under section 230 to 232 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

2. The resolution to be submitted at the said meeting is as follows:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory amendment, 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force read with the rules made 
thereunder, as amended (“the Act”), subject to other approvals, consents and permissions, as 
may be necessary, approval of the Unsecured Creditors of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to Scheme of anangement (“the said Scheme”) of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited 
and Alfa Autotech Private Limited

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director be and is hereby severally authorized to 
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, 
desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively implement 
the Scheme and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if 
any, which may be required and/or imposed by the NCLT/or by any other court while 
sanctioning the Scheme or by any authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose 
of resolving any questions or doubts or difficulties that may arise including passing of such 
accounting entries and/or making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered 
necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper without being 
required to seek any further approval of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that 
the members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority 
of this resolution.”

3. All the capitalized terms used in this explanatory Statements and defined in the Scheme shall 
have the same meaning ascribed to them in the Scheme.
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4. The details of the Applicant Company No. 1/ Demerged Company are given as under:
(a) Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U65993DL1996PTC075886;
(b) Permanent Account Number: AAACA7046D;
(c) Name: Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited;
(d) Date of incorporation: 31/01/1996;
(e) Type of company: Private limited company;
(f) Registered Office: M-439, Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New 

Delhi 110087;
(g) Email-id: accounts@alfa-flexitubes.com;
(h) Details of capital structure: The share capital as on 3 P‘ March, 2025, is as follows:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

40,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 4,00,00,000

Total 4,00,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE

CAPITAL

34,82,273 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3,48,22,730

Total 3,48,22,730

Subsequent to the aforesaid date, there has been no change in the authorized and 
issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Transferor Company till the date of 
issue of this notice.

(i) Main objects as per the Memorandum of Association and main business carried 
on by the Demerged Company:

The main business activity carried on by the company is to manufacturing and supply 
of comprehensive range of products including hose, stainless steel hose, flexible metal 
hose, metal hose assemblies, exhaust connectors, flexible exhaust connectors, exhaust 
pipe connectors, automotive flexible hose, flexible hose assemblies, metallic flexible 
pump & metal bellows and expansion joints.

The main objects of Demerged Company as set out in Clause III (A) of the 
Memorandum of Association are as under:

7. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal in all 
types of flexible hoses and hose assemblies in stainless steel, rubber, PTFE and 
thermoplastic hose couplings, flanges and allied engineering automobile and 
industrial components.
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2. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal in all 
types of engineering and industrial machines and machine tools such as 
welding machines, lathe, milling, drilling, welding electrodes.

3. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal in all 
types of measuring and testing equipments such as pressure guages, 
temperature guage, digital instrument.

Names of the present Promoters along with their residential addresses:

Names of present Directors along with their DIN and residential addresses:

S. No Name Address
1. Mr. Rajendra Kumar 

Sardana
M-439, First Floor, Guru Harkrishan Nagar 
, Delhi- 110087

2. Mrs. Indra Sardana M-439, First Floor, Guru Harkrishan Nagar 
, Delhi- 110087

3. Mr. Saurabh Tandon D-146, 2nd Floor, Behind Shankar Road 
Market, New Rajendra Nagar , Delhi- 
110060

S. No Name DIN Address
1. Mr. Rajendra Kumar 

Sardana
00732421 M-439, First Floor, Guru 

Harkrishan Nagar, Delhi- 
110087

2. Ms. Pooja Sardana 00724683 M-439, First Floor, Guru 
Harkrishan Nagar, Delhi- 
110087

3. Ms. Indra Sardana 00724745 M-439, First Floor, Guru 
Harkrishan Nagar, Delhi- 
110087

4. Mr. Saurabh Tandon 01994583 D-146, 2nd Floor, Behind 
Shankar Road Market, New 
Rajendra Nagar, Delhi- 
110060

5. Ms. Priya Ahuja 06500919 11/366, Second Floor, Sunder 
Vihar, Paschim Vihar, Delhi- 
110087

Details of change of name of the Demerged Company in the last five years:
There is no change in the name of the Demerged Company in last five years.
Details of change of registered office of Demerged Company in the last five years:
There is no change in the address of the Demerged Company in last five years.
Details of change of Objects of the Demerged Company in the last five years: 
There is no change in the object clause of the Demerged Company in last five years.

Date of Board Meeting at which the Scheme was approved: 24.06.2024.
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(p) The directors who gave their assent/ dissent: Scheme was approved unanimously by 
all the directors of the Demerged Company.

(q) Amount due to Secured Creditors of the Demerged Company as on 3P‘ March 
2025 (cutoff date):
Amount due to the secured creditors of the Demerged Company as on 31.03.2025 is 
Rs. 19,79,91,868.34/-

(r) Amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company as on 31.03.2025 
(cutoff date):
Amount due to the unsecured creditors of Demerged Company as on 31.03.2025 is
Rs. 14,20,98,585.79/-

5. The details of the Applicant Company No. 2! Resulting Company are given as under:
(a) Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U34300DL2008PTC173317;
(b) Permanent Account Number: AAHCA2027P;
(c) Name: Alfa Autotech Private Limited;
(d) Date of incorporation: 30/01/2008;
(e) Type of company: Private limited company;
(f) Registered Office: M-439, P' Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Pascbim Vihs.i'. New 

Delhi, 110087;
(g) Email-id: accounts@alfa-flexitubes.com;
(h) Details of capital structure: The share capital as on 3 P‘ March, 2025, is as follows:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

2,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 25,00,000

Total 25,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE

CAPITAL

90,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 9,00,000

Total 9,00,000

FORFEITED SHARE CAPITAL

20,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each
Paid Up @ Rs.5 each

1,00,000

4

14

mailto:accounts@alfa-flexitubes.com


Total 1,00,000

Subsequent to the aforesaid date, there has been no change in the authorized and 
issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Resulting Company till the date of 
issue of this notice.

Main objects as per the Memorandum of Association and main business carried 
on by the Resulting Company:

The main business activity carried on by the company is manufacturing and supply of 
comprehensive range of products including hose, stainless steel hose, flexible metal 
hose, metal hose assemblies, exhaust connectors, flexible exhaust connectors, exhaust 
pipe connectors, automotive flexible hose, flexible hose assemblies, metallic flexible 
pump & metal bellows and expansion joints.

The main objects of Transferee Company/ Resulting Company as set out in Clause III 
(A) of the Memorandum of Association are as under:

1. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal in all 
types of flexible hoses and hose assemblies in stainless steel, rubber, PTFE and 
thermoplastic hose couplings, flanges and allied engineering automobile and 
industrial components.

2. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal in all 
types of engineering and industrial machines and machine tools such as 
welding machines, lethe, milling, drilling, welding electrodes.

3. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal in all 
types of measuring and testing equipments such as pressure guages, 
temperature guage, digital instruments.

Names of the present Promoters along with their residential addresses:

S. No Name Address

1. Mr. Rajendra Kumar 
Sardana

M-439, First Floor, Guru Harkrishan Nagar , 
Delhi- 110087

2. Mr. Saurabh Tandon D-146, 2nd Floor, Behind Shankar Road 
Market, New Rajendra Nagar, Delhi- 110060

Names of present Directors along with their DIN and residential addresses:

S. No Name DIN Address

1. Mr. Rajendra Kumar 
Sardana

00732421 M-439, First Floor, Guru 
Harkrishan Nagar, Delhi- 
110087

2. Ms. Pooja Sardana 00724683 M-439, First Floor, Guru
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Harkrishan Nagar, Delhi- 
110087

3. Mr. Saurabh Tandon 01994583 D-146, 2nd Floor, Behind 
Shankar Road Market, New 
Rajendra Nagar, Delhi- 110060

(i) Details of change of name of the Resulting Company in the last five years:
There is no change in the name of the Resulting Company in last five years.

(m) Details of change of registered office of Resulting Company in the last five years: 
There is no change in the address of the Resulting Company in last five years.

(n) Details of change of Objects of the Resulting Company in the last five years:
There is no change in the object clause of the Resulting Company in last five years.

(o) Date of Board Meeting at which the Scheme was approved: 24.06.2024.

(p) The directors who gave their assent/ dissent: Scheme was approved unanimously by 
all the directors of the Resulting Company.

(q) Amount due to Secured Creditors of the Resulting Company as on 31.03.2025 
(cutoff date):

Amount due to the secured creditors of the Resulting Company as on 31.03.2025 is 
Rs. Nil.

(r) Amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Resulting Company as on 31.03.2025 
(cutoff date):

Amount due to the unsecured creditors of Resulting Company as on 31.03.2025 is 
Rs. 28,53,068/-

6. The relationship between the companies who are parties to the Scheme:
The management of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company are same.

7. The rationales and benefits of the Scheme:
The rationale and benefit of the proposed scheme have been duly provided for and captured in 
the Scheme attached with this notice/explanatory statement.

8. Details of approvals, sanctions or no-objection(s) from regulatory or any other 
governmental authorities required, received or pending:
The Applicant Companies are not required to take approvals / sanctions ! no-objections from 
regulatory or any other governmental authorities. Further, Applicant Companies are required 
to send the notices to the concerned Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Income Tax 
Authority etc. for their representation(s), if any.

6
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9. For the purpose of the Scheme the appointed date is April 01, 2024 and Effective date has 
been defined as “the last of the dates on which the certified copy of the order of the National 
Company Law Tribunal at New Delhi is filed with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi & 
Haryana at New Delhi in terms of Section 232(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.”

10. For the purpose of arriving at the share exchange ratio, an independent Valuation Report from 
Mr. Gaurav Jain, Registered Valuer has been obtained. Basis of valuation for Demerged 
Company is Asset Approach. It has been stated in the valuation report that a fair equity share 
entitlement ratio would mean that for every 1000 fully paid up equity share of Alfa Flexitube 
Private Limited, Alfa Autotech Private Limited will issue 58 shares. It is further declared that 
the valuation report is available for inspection by the equity shareholders and creditors of the 
Demerged Company and Resulting Company at the Registered Office of the

11. Demerged Company and Resulting Company upto one day prior to the date of the Meeting 
between 11.00 A.M. to 5.00 P.M. on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and public 
holidays).

12. The Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and relatives of Directors and the KMP of 
the Applicant Companies may be deemed to be concerned and/or interested in the Scheme 
only to the extent of their shareholding in the respective companies, or to the extent of 
common directorship in the companies, or to the extent said directors, KMP and relatives of 
Directors and the KMP are partners, directors, members of the companies, firms, bodies 
corporate and/ or beneficiary of trust that hold shares in any of the companies.

13. The Scheme does not have a prejudicial effect on the key managerial personnel, directors, 
promoters, non-promoter members, creditors, employees and depositors of the Demerged 
Company and Resulting Company, as no sacrifice or waiver is, at all, called from them nor are 
their rights sought to be modified in any manner.

14. The Scheme will be in the best interests of Demerged Company and Resulting Company, their 
respective shareholders and creditors. The said Scheme will not adversely affect the rights of 
any of the shareholders and creditors of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company in 
any manner whatsoever.

15. That the Demerged Company and Resulting Company are not governed by any sectoral 
regulator.

16. The proposed Scheme does not involve any capital debt restructuring.

17. The proposed Scheme will take effect from the date on which the certified copy of the order of 
the Hon’ble NCLT is filed with the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi by the Demerged 
Company and Resulting Company as required by the Act.

7
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18. No investigation proceedings have been instituted or are pending under section 235 to section 
251 of the Companies Act, 1956 or under the corresponding provisions contained in sections 
210 to 229 of the Companies Act, 2013, are pending against the applicant companies

19. No winding up proceedings are pending against the Demerged Company and Resulting 
Company as on date.

20. The following documents will be open for inspection for the Unsecured Creditors at the 
registered office of the Demerged Company at M-439, 1« Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, 
Paschim Vihar, New Delhi, 110087 on all working days during business hours from 11.00 
A.M. to 5.00 P.M. upto the date of the ensuing Meeting and at the Meeting during the Meeting 
hours:

a) Scheme of Arrangement;
b) Valuation Report obtained on share entitlement ratio;
c) Copy of the Statutory Auditors’ certificate of the Demerged Company and Resulting 

Company to the effect that the accounting treatment in the Scheme is in conformity 
with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013;

d) Copy of the order passed by the Hon’ble NCLT dated July 15, 2025 in Company 
Application No. (CAA) No.lOO/ND/2024;

e) Copies of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the 
Demerged Company and Resulting Company;

f) Copy of Audited Financial Statements of the Demerged Company and Resulting 
Company for the year ended on March 31, 2024;

g) Copies of the resolutions passed by the respective Board of Directors of the Demerged 
Company and Resulting Company approving the Scheme of Arrangement.

h) Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company pursuant to 
Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013.

Mri Rashmi Chopra I 
Sr. Adlvocate/Arbitrator 

Chairperson, Appointed by 
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, 

New Delhi Bench

For meeting of Unsecured Creditors of 
Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited

Date: tytyAf" 
Place: New Delhi

8
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SCHEME OF ARRANGEMEPrr / DEMERGER 
UNDER SECTION 230 TO 232 OF THE.COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

BETWEEN
ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED 

(CIN: U6S993DL1996PfC075886) 

(PAN: AAACA7046D) . ‘ 

(DEMERGED COMPANY) 

AND
ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED 

(CIN: U34300DL2008PTC173317) 

(PAN:AAHCA2027P) 

(RESULTING COMPANY)

PREAMBLE

A. Whereas this Scheme'of Demerger is presented under Sections 230 to 232 of- 

Companies Act, 2013 for Demerger of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as AFPL / Demerged Company) and Alfa' Autoiech 

Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as AAPL / Resulting Company).

B. DESCRIPTION OF COMPANIES

a) Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited (“Demerged Company”) is a duly 

incorporated Private Limited Company on 31” January, 1996 under 

Companies Act, 1956 having CIN: U65993DL1996PTC075886, and its 

registered office address is situated at M-439,1“ Floor, Guru Harkishan 

Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi, 110087, engaged in the following 

business:

1. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal 

in all types of.flcxible hoses and hose asserhblies in stainless steel, 

rubber, PTFE and thermoplastic hose couplings, flanges and allied

Director,

engineering automobile and industrial components.
For Alfa Autotech
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2. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture,’repair or otherwise deal 
in all types of engineering and industrial machines and machine tools 
such as welding machines, lathe, milling, drilling, welding electrodes.

3. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal 
in all types of measuring and testing equipments such as pressure 
guages, temperature guage, digital instrument

b) Alfa Autotech Private Limited is a duly incorporated as Private Limited 
Company on 30* January, 2008 under Companies Act, 1956 having 
CIN: U34300DL2008PTC173317, and its registered office address is 

situated at M-439, 1“ Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar.-Paschim Vihar, 
New Delhi, 110087. The main objects of the Resulting Company as set 

out in its Memorandum of Association are reproduced herein below:

1. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal 

in all types of flexible hoses and hose assemblies in Stainless steel, 
rubber, PTFE and thermoplastic hose couplings, flanges and allied 
engineering automobile and industrial components.

2. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal 

in all types of engineering and industrial machines and machine tools 

such as weldirtg machines, lethe, milling, drilling, welding electrodes.'

3. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal 

in all types of measuring and testing equipments such as pressure 
guages, temperature guage, digital instruments. -

I

. C. The present Scheme of Arrangement ! Demerger (hereinafter referred to as 

.“Scherne”) is a demerger of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited wherein Pune

■ unit of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited would be demerged and shall be 

transferred to Alfa Autotech Private Limited. The remaining two units located 

in Bhadurgarh district of the Company shall be retained by Alla Flexitubes 
Private Limited.

OkeetorOiieetor

D. That present demerger would involve, transfer ongoing concern basis, of all 
-the undertakings of Demerged Company, pertai^g.t&J^—Jjnejiriit 

, For Alfa Autotech Rrivate Ltd.
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including all the present, prospective, proportionate assets & liabilities*related 

with the day to day running of said businesses ! undertakings & including the 
assets and liabilities specifically mentioned in Schedule 1 and 2 respectively, 
made part of present scheme, into Resulting Comp.any, particularly focusing 
on business of other units (as defined later in the Scheme) (hereinafter 
referred as “Resulting Company”) and in consideration thereof, issue of 

equity shares to the shareholders of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited, on 
proportionate basis pursuant to provisions of Section 230-232 of Companies 

Act, 2013 and other relevant/applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013, 
and in compliance with the norms laid down under Section 2 (19AA) of 
Income Tax Act, 1961.

E. The Demerged Company and Resulting Company are not listed on any Stock 
Exchange.

F. The management of the Companies has examined the relative business 

strengths and the potential commercial and other syner^es of the entity and, 

accordingly, the possibility of demerger was mooted. As. the Demerged 
Company is having three units i.e. two units located at Bahadurgarh district 

and one unit located at Pune district, it is proposed to demerge the Pune unit 
only. Post Demerger, the Demerged Company having retained undertaking 

comprising units located at Bahadurgarh district so that it will be able to focus 
specifically on the said units of the company as the company identified 

operational inefficiencies in managing geographically dispersed units, 

including increased logistical costs, complexities in coordination, and 
challenges in maintaining uniformity in operational practices.. By demerging 
the Pune Unit, the company can streamline operations and improve overall 
efficiency. Segregating the units would enable the company to achieve better 

economies of scale, reduce redundancies, and enhance overall productivity. 
This demerger is expected to lead to cost savings and improved operational 
performance.

s

■’J
The Scheme is in the interest of both the companies involved and their 

respective shareholders, creditors, employees, debenture, holders, if any and 
debenture trustees, if any, depositors and deposit trustee, if any, and all other 

concerned and shall help these companies to achieve and fulfill the objectives
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ji . more efficiently and offer opportunities to the management of companies to 
vigorously pursue growth and expansion of business. The Scheme shall not in

z>

»•

*1

r1

any manner be prejudicial to the interest of concerned shareholders or 

directors or creditors or key managerial personnel dr debenture trustees, if 
any, or any other stakeholder or general public at large. Further there is no 
material interest of any director and/ or key managerial personnel of the 
companies or debenture trustees, if any, in the present Scheme of 
Arrangement.

. H. The Board of Directors of both the companies are of the opinion that the 

above Arrangement would result in benefit to the shareholders, creditors, 
employees and other stakeholders of both the companies and both concerned 
and the Scheme shall not in any manner be prejudicial to the interest of ? » 
concerned shareholders or creditors or general public at large.

L That no investigation or proceedings. under Section 206 to 229 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 or under Section 235 to 251 of the erstwhile Companies 
Act, 1956 is pending against any of the Companies involved in the present 
Scheme of Arrangement/demerger.

This Scheme is broadly divided into following parts: 
>

Parti: Preliminaiy;

Part II: Financial position and capital structure;. •

Partni: Rationale and benefits of the Scheme;

Part IV; Transfer and vesting of the unit of the Demerged Company;

Part.V: Accounting Treatment;

Part VI: Share Capital, consideration-and alteration of Memorandum and
. Articles of Association;

PartVII: Effect of the Scheme on the Directors, Key ManagerialPersonnel, . j
Promoters, Creditors and other Stakeholders;

1 
♦ 

Part Vni: General terms and conditions. ;

For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd. ^^R-BOT^PVT.LTD. ,

Director Director
■ 1 'I
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PART I

PRELIMINARY

1. This Scheme of Arrangement ! Demerger {hereinafter referred to as “the 

Scheme”) provides for the Arrangement ! Demerger of the Demerged 

Company with the Resulting Company, in accordance with tie provisions of 

Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory 

modifications, re-enactment or amendments thereof for the time being in 

force (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Compromises, A.rrangements and 

Amalgamation) Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time and all other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and any other applicable law for the 

time being in force.

DEFINITIONS

2. In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the 

following expressions shall have the meaning as under:

a. “Act” or “The'Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory 

modifications, re-enactment or amendments thereof, the Rules, regulations, 

notifications made/issued thereunder, if any, as amended from time to time 
and also mean and refer to corresponding relevant enforceable Sections of 

Companies Act, 1956, the rules and regulations made there under, if any;

b. “Appointed Date” April 1, 2024 or such other date as may be approved by 
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) or Hon’ble National 
Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT), Or any other competent Court

For Alfa AutotechPrivate Ltd WtAlfAFIBaTUBESmLTO.

Director DlrflCtW
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(s), judicial or quasi-judicia! • authority or any other competent authority 

having power to sanction the Scheme, as the case may be.

c. “Board of Directors” or “Board” shall mean the board of directors of the 

Demerged Company and/or Resulting Company respectively and includes 
any Committee(s) of the Board, or any person or persons authorised by the 

Board of Directors of the respective companies.

d. ‘ Central Government” for the purpose of the present Scheme means and 

include but not limited to the concerned Regional Director or such other 
authority(ies) to whom powers under Section 230 to 232 of the Act may be 
delegated from time to time..

e. “Effective Date” shall mean the last of the dates on which certified copies 

of the order{s) of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal sanctioning the 

Scheme are filed with Registrar of Companies by the Demerged Company 

and by the Resulting Company. References in this Scheme to the date of the 
"coming into effect of this Scheme" or "effectiveness of this Scheme" shall 
mean the Effective-date; .

f. “Members” or “Class of Members” or “Concerned Members” with 

respect to the Demerged Company and Resulting Company shall mean the 

Equity Shareholders, whose names is/ are entered in the Register of 

Members or as a beneficial owner in the records of the depository

g. “National Company Law Tribunal” or “NCLT” or “The Tribunal” 

means the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal constituted under 
Section 408 read with Section 419 of the Act situated at New Delhi or any 
other bench of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal having jurisdiction 

to sanction the Scheme;

h. “National Company Law' Appellate Tribunal” or “NCLAT” or “The
.'Appellate Tribunal” means the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate 

Tribunal at New Delhi constituted under Section 410 of the Act as and when 

the context may require WsALRFlBaTUffiSPVI.L'ro.
For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd.

Director
Director
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i. “Record Date” shall be the date of such Board Meeting of Demerged & 
Resulting Company wherein the scheme of demerger is approved by the 

board of respective companies or any other date as may be agreed upon by 
said companies, for reckoning the list of Directors, Shareholders & 
Creditors (Secured & Unsecured) of companies.

j. “AFPL” means “Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited (“Demerged Company”) 

is a duly incorporated Private Limited Company as on 31” January, 1996 
under Companies Act, 1956 having CIN: U65993DL1996PTC075886, and 
its registered office address is situated at M-439, 1” Floor, Guru Harkishan 
Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi, 110087 which is Demerged Company in 
the present Scheme of Arrangement/Demerger.

k. “AAPL” means Alfa Autotech Private Limited which is Resulting 
Company in the present Scheme of Arrangement/Demerger.'

l. “Demerged Company” means “AFPL”

m. “Resulting Company” means “AAPL”.

n. “This Scheme” or “the Scheme” means the present Scheme of Demerger 

framed under the provisions of sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 

2013, and other applicable provisions, if any, where Pune Unit of the 
Demerged Company is proposed to be demerged in the Resulting Company . 
in' the present form or with any modification(s) approved or imposed or 

directed by Members/Creditors of the respective Companies and/or by 

National Company Law Tribunal or other concerned ! competent 

authority(ies), as the case may be;

o. Pune Unit shall mean business unit of AFPL located at Pune District. This 
unit will be demerged into the existing business entity "M/s. Alfa Autotech . 
Private Limited”. It also includes complete business undertaking of Pune 

unit as a whole, including the credentials related to said business unit and
For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd

Director Director
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including all the assets and liabilities' as apportioned in be'tw^n the 

demerged and resulting Company.

p. Other Units shall mean business Units located at Bhadurgarh District

q. “Demerged Undertaking” Shall mean the Pune Unit of AFPL, ongoing 

concern basis & shall further include all the assets [moveable(s) &. 

immoveablefs), tangiblefs) & intangible (s)] and liabilities [present &

' future] of AFPL as mentioned in the schedule to this scheme but strictly 

} ■' excluding all those Assets & Liabilities Pertaining to other units.

I- .
1 Without prejudice to above; the term Demerged Undertaking shall include.

I 1. all the assets and properties as bn the Appointed Date (hereinafter

referred to as "the said assets");

■ . n. All the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations as on the Appointed .

Date (herein after referred to as "the said liabilities");

Pertaining to Pune unit of AFPL/Demerged Company.

< 
u 
£

Without prejudice to the preceding sub clause (I), the assets of the 

Demerged Company, subject to transfer under present scheme, shall include, 

without limiution, all the Demerged Company's reserves and the authorized 

share capital, movable, and immovable properties including investments, 

claims, powers, authorities, allotments, approvals, consents, registtations, 

business contracts, engagements, arrangements, rights, credits, titles, 

interests, benefits, club memberships, advantages, leasehold rights, tenancy 

rights, other intan^bles, industrial and other • licenses, permits,, 

authorizations, .quota rights, trade marks, patents’ and other industrial and 

.intellectual properties including domain names, import quotas’ telephone, 

telex, facsimile , email id etc. and other communication facilities and 

equipment, rights and benefits of all agreements and all other interests, right 

and power of every kind,- nature and description whatsoever, privileges, 

liberties, easements, advantages, benefits and approvals of whatsoever 

nature and whosesoever siUiate, belonging to or in the ownership, power or

i 
1
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The expressions which are used in this Scheme and not defined in this 
Scheme, shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning 

hereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act, Income Tax 

Act, 1961, Indian Accounting Standards or Accounting Standard, as may be 

applicable and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, bye-laws, as the 

case may be, or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof from 
time to time.

possession or control of the Demerged Company relating to Pune unit as on 

the Appointed Date and thereafter.

PARTII

FINANCIAL POSITION AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

3. The share capital structure of the Demerged Company and the Resulting 

Company are given as under:

3.1 The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the 

Demerged Company as on the date of this Scheme are as under:

PARTICULARS AMOUNT 

(Figures in INR)

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

40,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 4,00,00,000

Total 4,00,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP 

SHARE CAPITAL
34,82,273 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3.48,22.730

Total 3,48,22,730

Director Director
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3.1 The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share'Capital of the

Resulting Company as on the date of this Scheme are as under:

PARTICULARS AMOUNT

(Figures in INR)

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

2,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 25,00,000

Total 25,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP

SHARE CAPITAL

90,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 9,00,000

Total 9,00,000

FORFEITED SHARE CAPITAL

20,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each

Paid Up @ Rs.5 each

1,00,000

Total 1,00,000

PARTin

RATIONALE AND BENEFITS OF THE SCHEME

TbiC present • Scheme of Arrangement would, inter alia, have the following 

benefits:

a) The demerger of Pune Unit of Demerged Company into the Resulting

Company will enable the Demerged Company (the Retained

Undertaking) to focus more specifically on the Bhadurgarh Units as an

exclusive entity and will concentrate on developing and achieving
For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd. MAjAUA

Oirector Director
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expertise towards it and decision making, without the distraction of 

managing multiple units. This can lead to improved performance and 

innovation. Also, investors may value specialized companies higher 

than a conglomerate as they can better understand and assess the risks 

and opportunities of a focused business. This can lead to improved 

valuation.

b) The Arrangement will result in better, efficient and economical 

management, cost savings, creating better synergy across the-group, 

optimum utilization of resources, rationalization of administrative 

expenses/services, control and' running of businesses and further 

development and growth of the business of both the companies.

• c) The Arrangement would allow a focused strategy in operations of the 

Demerger Undertaking alongwith providing scope for independent 

; collaborations and expansion without committing the existing 

organization in its entirety and creating enhanced value for operations.

d) The Resulting Company will have better financial and business 

prospects. The Scheme would be beneficial to and in the best interest of 

the shareholders & creditors of the Demerged Company and the 

Resulting Company. The Scheme shall not in any manner be prejudicial 

to the interests of concerned shareholders/ creditors and general public 

at large.

PART IV

DEMERGER OF PUNE UNIT OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY INTO 
THE RESULTING COMPANY

For Alfa Autolech Private Ltd. M/bALFAFLEXTOJBES PVT.LTD.

Oirector Krectof
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' 5. Demerger and Transfer/Vesting of Demerged Undertaking of Demerged 

Company into Resulting Company

6. With effect from the Appointed Date and upon .the Scheme coming into effect 

and pursuant to the provisions of the Act, subject to the provisions of this 

Scheme and receipt of relevant approvals:

6.1. The entire business of the Demerged Undertaking shall without any 

further act, deed, instrument, matter or thing stand demerged and vested' 

in the Resulting Company on a going concern basis at book value (i.e. 

values as stated in the books of account of the Demerged Company ■ 

immediately before the Appointed Date) pursuant to the provisions of 

Sections 230-232 of the Act together with all estate, assets, debts; 

outstanding; credits, liabilities, rights, claims, title, interest' and 

authorities including accretions and appurtenances so as to become the ‘ 

property of the Resulting Company free from any encumbrance subject 

to the clauses herein below.

• 6.2. Without prejudice to the generality of Clause above,' it' is expressly . 

provided that in respect of such of the assets-of the Demerged 

Undertaking, including c^h and bank balances, as are movable in 

nature or are otherwise capable of transfer by physical delivery, by 

paying over or by endorsement ^d delivery, the same sh^l be. .so 

transferred by the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company, with , »

' effect from the Appointed Date, after the Scheme is sanctioned by the
. ' , I

Hon'ble NCLT without requiring any deed or instrument of conveyance j
I I

for the same and shall become the property of the Resulting Company > 
. I

in pursuance of the provisions of the Act as an integral part of the ' 
For.Alfa Autotech Private Ltd.

olfKtor ■ Director
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business of the Resulting Company with effect from the Appointed 

Date.

6.3. All the licenses, essentiality certificates, permits, contents, quotas, 

approvals, permissions, incentives, sales tax deferrals, loans, subsidies, 

concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, refund of monies, tenancy 

rights, liberties, rehabilitation schemes, special status and other benefits 

or privileges enjoyed by or conferred upon or held or availed by and all 

rights and benefits that have accrued or which may accrue to the 

Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking shall, 

pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act, 2013 and 

Rules made thereunder without any further act, instrument or deed, be 

and stand transfened to and vested in and/or be deemed to have been 

transferred to and vested in and be available to the Resulting Company 

so as to become as and from the Appointed Date the licenses, 

essentiality certificates, permits, consents, quotas, approvals, 

permissions, incentives, sales tax deferrals, loans, subsidies, 

concessions, grants,’ rights, claims, leases, refund of monies, tenancy 

rights, liberties, rehabilitation schemes, special status and other benefits- 

or privileges of the Resulting Company and shall remain valid, 

effective and enforceable on the same terms and conditions to the 

extent perrhissible under applicable law.

6.4. All assets, estate, rights, titles, interests, licenses and authorities 

(including for the operation of bank accounts) acquired by or permits, 

quotas, consents, approvals, permissions, incentives, sales tax deferrals, 

loans or benefits, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, 

tenancy righ^,

Olreetof ’ OlTOCtOf
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- 385=' • - •
status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon or

* held or availed of by and/ or all rights and benefits that have accrued or 

which may accrue to the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged 

Undertaking on or after the Appointed Date and prior to the

•• ■ implementation of the Scheme in connection with or in relation to the

. • operation of the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged

Undertaking shall, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, 

pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act, without any 

further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested or 
i

deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Resulting 

Company.

All moveable assets like motor vehicles of any nature whatsoever 

.comprised in or relatable to the undertakings of the Demerged 

Company shall vest in the Resulting Company and the appropriate 

government and registration authorities shall mutate and register the 

said vehicles in the name of the Resulting Company as if the said assets

• ! vehicles had originally been registered in the name of the Resulting

t company and any fee payable for such vesting / registering shall be.

paid by the Resulting Company.

6.5. Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the

‘ Appointed Date:

a) All debts, liabilities, duties and' obligations of any kind, nature of 

description, secured or unsecured, whether provided for or not, whether 

disclosed or undisclosed in the books of account of Demerged 

Company as on the Appointed Date and relating to the Demerged 
' '

Undertaking, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act, 
For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd. UsALFAFlSOniBESF^LTD.
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without any further act, instrument or deed, be and shall stand 

transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company, so as to become 

the debt, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Resulting Company. 

Further, it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party 

or other person who is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue 

of which such debts, liabilities, duties and obligations have arisen in 

order to give effect to the provisions of this Clause. Notwithstanding 

anything contained in this Scheme, if there are any common liabilities 

or loans raised and where the funds have been used for all the units, the 

same shall be allocated between the business units in tenns of Section 

2(19AA) of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

-b) It is clarified that in so far as the assets of Demerged Undertaking of the 

Demerged Company are concerned, the security or charge over such 

assets or any part thereof, relating to any loans, debentures ■ or 

bortowings of the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company 

shall, without any further act or deed continue to relate to such assets or 
t ’

any part thereof after the sanction of the Scheme and shall not relate, to 

or be available as security or charge in relation to any or any part of the 

assets.of the Resulting Company, save to the extent warranted by the 

terms of the existing security' arrangements, if any.

c) It is further clarified that, upon coming into effect of the Scheme and in

cases other than those referred to in Clause 6.5 (b) above, proportionate

part ofthe general or multipurpose borrowings and liabilities raised for 

financing the working capital of the Demerged Company shall, without 

any further act or deed, be and shall stand transferred to the Resulting

Olre^or
ntisalM

Companies in the same proportion in which the value of the assets
For Alfa Autotcch Private Lto.HftAtfAFLD<ITVBESPVT.LW.
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transferred under this Scheme bears to the total value of the current 

assets of the Demerged Company immediately before the demerger of 

the Demerged Undertaking. The Charge on the assets of the Demerged 

Company shall be transferred to the assets of the Resulting Company in 

proportion to the assets transferred to the Resulting Company^

d) . In case any of the liabilities and obligations pertaining to Demerged 

Undertaking of the Demerged Company as on the Appointed Date 

deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company. have been 

discharged by the Demerged Company after the Appointed Date and 

prior to the sanction of the Scheme, such discharge shall be deemed to 

have been for and on account of the Resulting Company.

e) All loans raised and used, all debts, duties, undertakings, liabilities and 

obligations incurred or undertaken by the Demerged Company in 

relation to or in connection with the operation of the Demerged 

Undertaking after the Appointed Date and prior to the sanction of the 

Scheme shall also be deemed to have been raised, used, incurred or 

undertaken for and on behalf of the Resulting Company and, to the' 

extent they are outstanding on the Date of sanction of the Scheme, 

shall, upon coming into effect of the Scheme, pursuant to the provisions 

of Sections 230-232 of the Act, without any further act, instrument or 

deed be and'stand transfened to- and vested in or be deemed to have 

been transferred to and vested.in the Resulting Company and shall 

become the debt, duties, undertakings, liabilities and obligations of the 

Resulting Company which shall meet, discharge and satisfy the same. '

For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd. M/sALfAFLEXITUBES PVT. LTD.
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f) Subject to the necessary consents being obtained in accordance with the

j! terms of this' Scheme, the provisions of this Clause shall operate 7

notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any deed or ' ‘■'

' writing or the terms of sanction or issue or any security document, all

( of which instruments shall stand modified and/or superseded by the

foregoing provisions.

g) Even after the sanction of the Scheme, the Resulting Company shall be ’;

entitled to realise all money and complete and enforce all. pending

contracts and transactions in respect of the Demerged Undertaking in 

the name of the Demerged Company and so far as may be necessary. •

h) The Demerged Company undertake to carry on and shall be deemed to 

cany on the business activities and stand possessed properties and

, ' assets in and on account of interest for the Resulting Company.
i •

i) If provisions of Ind AS are applicable, then Resulting Company may i

make suitable adjustments to the accounting treatment & adjust the ■

j’ effect there of in the manner determined by the Board of Directors of

’ the Resulting Company. '

.1. .j) The Board of Resulting Company is authorized to account for any of

the balances in any manner whatsoever, as may be deemed fit in 

accordance with accounting principal generally accepted in India,

•• including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under

; Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
i • •

(Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. "•

6.S. With effect from the Appointed Date and until the sanction of the Scheme: ' :
For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd. WBALftREXnUKSWtUD,
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i) The Demerged Company shall carry on and shall be deem^ to ^ve 

. earned on all business and activities relating to the Demerged Undertaking

of (he Demerged Company for and on behalf of the Resulting Company. 

The Demerged Company shall carry oh all such business and activities 

relating to the Demerged Undertaking of Demerged Company with due 

care and diligence. The business shall be carried out by the Resulting 

Company with prudence and in a manner as was being operated by the

• Demerged Company.

ii) Any of the rights, powers, authorities, privileges related or pertaining to 

the Demerged Undertaking exercised by the Demerged Company shall be 

deemed to have been exercised by the Demerged Company for and oii . 

behalf of, and in trust for and as an agent of the Resulting Company.

iiijUpon the coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to the provisions ' 

of this Scheme, al! contracts including customer contracts; agreements, 

deeds, bonds; tenders, bid documents, expression of interest, 

memorandum of understanding, schemes, arrangements, and other 

instruinents including those relating to tenancies, lease,' licenses, 

trademarks, patents, designs, copy-rights or other intellectual property 

rights, other assurances privileges, powers, facilities o: every kind and • 

description and of whatsoever nature in relation to the Demerged 

Undertaking to which the Demerged Company is a party or the benefit of 

which the Demerged Company may be eligible, and which are subsisting 

or have effect immediately before the sanction, of the Scheme shall 

continue in full force and effect against or in favour of, as the case may.

be, the Resulting Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually

- For Alfa Autotech Private LtdWiMWREOIUaES PVT. LTD.
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as if, instead of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company had 

been a party or beneficiary thereto or there under.

iv) Pursuant to the demerger of Demerged Undertaking, in case for the 

purpose of entering into any contract, tenders, bid documents, expression 

of interest, memorandum of understanding, agreements or any other such 

instruments, the Resulting Company is required to demonstrate 

experience, track record and credentials of the Demerged Undertaking, 

then the experience, track record and credentials gained by the Demerged 

I Company in relation to Demerged Undertaking in the past prior to

. demerger would be considered to be equivalent as the experience, track

record and credentials of the Resulting Company.

v} The transfer of the said assets and liabilities of the Demerged Company to 

• the Resulting Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking and the 

continuance of all the contracts or legal proceedings by or against the

I Resulting Company shall not affect any contract or proceedings relating to
«
I , .the said assets or the liabilities already concluded by the Demerged 

Company on or after the Appointed Date to the end and intent that the 

Resulting Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done, 

executed for and on behalf of the Demerged Company as acts, deeds and

■ things done, executed for and on behalf of the Resulting Company.’

z • • .

vi) Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and the fact that 

the vesting of the Demerged Undertaking occurs by virtue of this Scheme

■ - itself, the Resulting Company may, at any time after coming into effect of.

■ this Scheme, if so required under any law or otherwise, take such actions

and execute such deeds (including deeds of adherence), confirmation or 
For Alfa Autotech J>rivate Ltd. ' IttALBUUXrajBESPVILTD.
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other writings or tripartite arrangement with any party to any cbntract or

arrangement to which the Demerged Company is a party or any writings as

may be necessary in order to give formal effect to the provisions of this

Scheme or as are required to remove any difficulties and carry out any

formalities or compliance for the implementation of this Scheme. The

Demerged Company will, if necessary, also be a party to the above.

vii) With effect from the Appointed Date, all taxes, duties, cess payable, by

Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking and all or any

benefits ! refunds/ credits/ claims relating thereto under Income Tax,

Excise (including MODVAT ! CENVAT), Sales Tax (including deferment

of Sales Tax), MAT Credits, prepaid taxes i.e. TDS, self-assessment tax,

tax losses (if available under law), advance tax payments. Value Added

Tax and Service Tax, Goods and Serve Tax (IGST, COST, SGST,

UTGST) etc. shall be treated as the liability or benefit / refund/ credit/

claims, as the case may be, of the Resulting Company. The Resulting

Company shall be entitled to file i revise its financial statements, tax

returns, TDS Certificates, TDS returns. Annual Return and other statutory

returns, if required, and shall have the right to claim benefit / refund

credits and/ or set off all amounts paid by the Demerged Company in

relation to the Demerged Undertaking under the relevant income tax, sales

tax, GST, service tax or any other tax laws. The right to rhake such

revisions in the tax returns and to claim refunds / credits is expressly

reserved in favour of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

J. Without prejudice to generality of the aforesaid, any concessional /

statutory forms under the respective Central / State sales ! work contract

Director

tax! lease tax laws issued / received by the Demerged Company in respect 
For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd.
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* * * of the Demerged Undertaking, for the period commencing from 'Appointed

Date shall be deemed to be issued received in the name of the Resulting 

Company and benefit of such forms, shall be allowable to the Resulting 

Company in the same manner and to the same extent as would have been 

available in respect of the Demerged Undertaking in the name of the 

Demerged Company.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

7. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all legal proceedings of whatever 

nature by or against the Demerged Company relating to Demerged 

Undertaking, if pending, on the sanction of the Scheme, shall not abate, be • 

discontinued or be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the vesting

. cf the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company in the Resulting 

Company or of Mything contained in this Scheme but the proceedings may be 

continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company in 

the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been 

continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Demerged Company, as 

ifthis Scheme had not been made.

8. The Resulting Company shall take steps to have all legal proceedings initiated 

by or against the Demeiged Undertaking of Demerged Company referred to 

in Clause 7 above transferred into its name and to have the same continued, 

prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company to the

•• exclusion of the Demerged Company.’The Demerged Company loo shall file 

the requisite application, ifso requested by the Resulting Company.

9. Notwithstanding the above, in case the proceedings referred to in Clause 7 

cannot be transferred for^any

Director EUrdCtor
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undertaking) shall defend the same in accbrdance with the advitx'of the 

Resulting Company and at the cost of the Resulting Company, and the 

Resulting Company shall reimburse, indemnify and hold harmless the 

Demerged. Company against all liabilities and obligations incurred by the 

Demerged Company in respect thereof.

10. Transfer and vesting of the assets, liabilities and obligations of the Demerged 

Undertaking as per this Scheme and continuances of the proceedings by or 

against the Resulting Company shall not in any manner affect any transaction 

or proceedings already completed by the Demerged Company (in respect of 

the Demerged Undertaking) on or before the Appointed Date up to the date of 

sanction of the Scheme and the Resulting Company accepts all such acts, 

deeds and things done and executed by and/or on behalf of the Demerged 

Company as acts, deeds and things done and executed by and on behalf of the

' Resulting Company.

11. The Resulting Company unconditionally and irrevocably agrees and 

undertakes to pay, discharge and satisfy all the liabilities and obligations of 

the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking with effect

; from the Appointed Date, in order to give effect to the foregoing provisions..

IZ.Upon the Scheme becoming effective and, on the Demerger, transfer and

vesting of the Demerged Undertaking into the Resulting Company, the ’

existing charges, if any, on the assets of the Demerged Undertaking shall 

continue in favor of the bankers and financial institutions, if any, as may be 

modified, readjusted, apportioned and re-allocated by them between the

Demerged Company and the Resulting Company. The Demerged Company

shall provide all assistance in getting the charges of the D^erged- 
For Alfa AutotecbPrlvate Ltd. knMMHfiOnmmini
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•Undertaking vacated. The bankers ! financial institutions shall have a charge 

only on the assets .of the respective Undertaking financed by them and release 

the charge, if any, on the assets of the Undertaking not financed by them. 

Provided further that the Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for 

any loan, deposit or facility created or available to the Demerged Company 

which shall vest in the Resulting Company by virtue of Demerger and the 

Resulting Companies shall not be obliged to create any further or additional 

security therefore after Demerger has become effective or otherwise.

13.Since, each of the permissions, approvals, consents, sanctions, remissions, 

special reservations, incentives, concessions and other authorizations in 

respect of the Demerged Undertaking in the name of the Demerged Company 

shall stand transferred by the order of the Hon'ble NCLT to the Resulting 

Company. The Resulting Company shall file the relevant intimations, for the 

record of the statutory authorities who shall take them on record,' pursuant to 

the vesting orders of the sanctioning authorities.

• 14.Save and except as expressly provided in this Scheme, nothing contained in 

this Scheme for demerger of Demerged undertaking of the Demerged 

Company into the Resulting Company shall affect the rest of the assets, 

liabilities and business of the Demerged Company (Retained Undertaking) 

which shall continue to belong to and be vested in and be managed by the 

Demerged Company.

PARTY

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

Director

15. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT & OTHER RELATED MATTERS' 
. For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd.
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’ upon the Scheme coming into effect and pursuant to the provisions of the Act and 

-I* ; receipt of relevant approvals:

f *
' 15. Un the bcoks of Demerged Company, the book values of the assets and the

, . liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company being 

transferred to .the Resulting Company shall be reduced in the books of the 

Demerged Company and correspondingly’ the balance of retained earnings 

, in the books of Demerged Company shall.be reduced.

15.2 Upon the Scheme being effective, the .inter-company- balances, if any, 

. appearing in the books of ac-:ounts of the Demerged Company pertaining to 

.the Pune Unit and the Resulting Company shall stand cancelled.

I • 
* •

:••• 15.3In ihe books of the Resulting Company, upon coming into effect of this-

Scheme, the Resulting Company shall give effect to the following' 

accounting treatment:

i) The Resulting Company shall, record the assets and liabilities in books

>1 • -.J,- > of accounts of Demerged Undertaking vested in it pursuant to this

- Scheme; at the respective book values thereof as appearing in the books 

of the Demerged Company.

. ii) Upon the Scheme being effective, the inter-comp^y balances, if any,

■ appearing in the books of accounts of the Demerged Company

; ■ pertaining to the Pune Unit, shall stand cancelled..

iii)The difference between .the value of assets and liabilities of the 

business as’ taken over by the Resulting Company of the Demerged- 

Company and the value of investments in Demerged Company, to' the 
ID.

Director
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extent cancelled by the Resulting Company, shall be transferred to 

t -•

.b ’ Capital Reserve and would be presented separately from the.other

't' , * , capital reserves with disclosure of its nature and purpose in the notes.
*• z

•ui.’

■ 15.4In case of any differences in accounting policy between the Demerged

• Bl „• ' ' ■ ‘ Company and the Resulting Company, the impact of such differences shall

be quantified and adjusted with the reserves of Resulting Company to ensure

I.',,' .• that the tnie financial statements of the Resulting Company are on the basis

; j ■ : of consistent accounting policy in accordance with the Indian. Accounting 
1 ’

Standards as prescribed under the applicable provisions of the Act and

(, ' applicable generally accepted accounting principles.
. . ■ ' . . ■

, IS.SThe financial information in the financial statements of Resulting Company

• ;. . ■ in respect of prior periods should be restated as if the business combination

‘ had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial 
. ts ' •
' - • statements, irrespective ofthe actual date of the combination.

' ‘ ' 15 dlnter-company balances in any form between the demerged undertaking of
J' ' ”

’■ j. f " ’ the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, if any, shall stand

I cancelled.

• L *-J. 15.7The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company will comply with all
r'L , ■
„ . . other requirements, in respect of disclosure, and presentation, in accordance

, ■

f». with the Indian Accounting Standards as prescribed under the applicable

{.• „ provisions of the Act and applicable generally accepted accounting
ill.]'---, ..

• ; • principles.

PART-VI

Dlraetor
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SHARE CAPITAL, CONSIDERATION AND ALTERATION OF 
: a

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

; 16. PAID-UP CAPITAL
i' ■

a) Upon the scheme finally coming into effect and in consideration of the 

transfer of Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company to the 

Resulting Company in tenns of the scheme. The Resulting Company 

without any further application or deed issue-and allot 58 (Fifty Eight)« «

,, fully paid up equity share, face value ofRs. 10/-(Rupees Ten Only) each
' i

of the Resulting Company for every 1000 (One Thousand) fully paid-up 

ecuity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each held' by the 

shareholders of Demerged Company, to the members of Demerged

J . Company whose name appear in the register of members as on

, particular date, alre^y .decided, by the board of directors of Resulting
b !■
1 Company for reckoning of said list as per the Valuation Report provided
tj •;
/. • by Mr. Gaurav Jain, Registered Valuer.

In the following ratio: 5.8 Shares of Resulting Company to every 100 -

1- Share of Demerged Company.

I •
’*1’ ’ * ’

b) Any fraction of share so arising out of aforesaid share exchange .ratio 

shill be rounded .off to nearest whole number.

c) The shares issued by the Resulting Company to the shareholders of

, Demerged Company in pursuance of this scheme shall lie parri- pasSu in
jj • »
J all respect to the' existing shares of the Demerged Company be it in

, .l, terms of voting rights or dividend or otherwise.
t*

For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd. W8ALftR£XnUBESI?/T.tn).
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. 4 T . ; —1
'•i.

hi;-
T . d) The members of Resulting Company on approval of scheme shall be
t

' deemed to have been given there approval u/s 62 (1) (c) of Companies
I

■ Act, 2013 and as other applicable provisions, if any, pertaining to

; preferential allotment of fresh equity shares to the members of

' - Demerged Company in pursuance of this scheme and more 'particulariy

■ in the light of aforementioned Para 16(a).

: ■ ;7. AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
't. • •

a) Upon the scheme being effective, and prior to issuance of Securities under

• clause 16, above, the authorized capital of Resulting Company shall stand

• • suitably increased and' existing capital clause contained in the Memorandum 

of Association of said Company shall, upon, coming into effect of this 

scheme, be suitably altered and substituted pursuant to Section 13 and Section

■ ■ 61 of Companies Act, 2013 and Section 230-232 of The Act and other 

applicable provisions ofthe Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013.

b) II. is clarified that the approval of the members of the Resulting Company to

J the scheme, shall be deemed to be their Consent/Approval also to the

alteration of Memorandum and-Articles of Association of resulting Company

•’ as required under Section 13, 14, 61 & 64 and other applicable provisions of

Companies Act 2013 and as applicable Act.

IS. UPON THIS SCHEME BECOMING FINALLY EFFECTIVE .

a) The Cross holding of shares between the Demerged and the Resulting

Company on the record date, if any, shall stand cancelled. Approval of this

scheme by. the shareholders and/or creditors of the Demerged and Resulting 

Companies as the case may be.-and'consequent sanctio^ng^^^^ s^am^^ the

Director Director.
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• 1

} ''• Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal under Section 230 to 232 of
I
1 ' ‘ .

Companies Act, 2013, shall be sufficient compliance of Sections 66 of 

Companies Act, 2013 other applicable provisions, if any, relating to reduction 

ofshare capital on cancellation of cross holding. i

b) That main objects present in the Memorandum of Association of Demerged 

Company pertaining to demerged undertaking shall assimilate into the main 

object of respective Resulting Company and shall be deemed to be part 

thereof, without passing any further resolution or- convening any further ■ 

meeting of shareholders etc. in this regard. Approval- of this scheme by the 

shareholders and/or creditors of the Demerged and Resulting Companies as 

the case may be, and consequent sanctioning of the same by the Hon’ble 

National Company Law Tribunal under Section 230 to'232 of Companies Act, 

2013, shall be sufficient compliance of Section 13 of Companies Act, 2013 & 

Rule 29 of Companies (Incorporation) Rules. 2014.

e) That the Resulting Company shall increase / modify its authorized capital for 

implementing the terms of scheme; to the extent necessary and shall alter the 

capital clause of its Memorandum of Articles in said respect, wherever 

necessary, without any further approval of shareholders / members.

PART-VII

EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON THE DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL

I PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS, CREDITORS AND OTHER 
p
3

STAKEHOLDERS

19. The effect the Scheme on the Key Managerial Personnel, Directors, 

- Promoters. Non-promoter members. Creditors- and the Employee of the -
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Demerged Company and the Resulting Company upon coming into effect is 
mentioned as under:

a) The existing Directors including Key' Managerial Personnel ("the 
KMPs") of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company shall have 
no effect date of implementation of the Scheme.

b) The Directors and KMP of the Demerged Company and the Resulting 

Company do not have any interest, whether, material or immaterial, 
financial or non-financiai or otherwise, in the proposed Scheme except, 

to the extent of their remuneration due, if any, till the Scheme , coming 
into effect, in their professional capacity.

c) The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company as on the date do 
not have any Depositors, Debenture holders, Deposit trustee and 
Debenture trustee.

PART-Vin

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

20. CONTRACTS, DEEDS, BONDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS,

a. Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, 

agreements and other instruments of whatsoever nature, to which the 

Demerged Company is a party, in respect of Demeiged Undertaking, 
subsisting or having effect immediately before or after the Effective date, 
shall remain in full force and effect against or in favor of the Resulting 

Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually, as if instead of the 
Demerged Company, the Resulting Company had been a party thereto.

Director Director
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b. The Transfer of the said assets and liabilities of Demerged Undertsdcmg to 
the Resulting Company and the continuance of all the contracts or legal 
proceedings by or against the Resulting Company shall not affect any 

contract or proceedings relating to the said assets or the liabilities already 
concluded by the Demerged Company on or after the Appointed Date.

c. The Resulting Company may, at any time after coming into effect of this 

Scheme, in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any 

law or otherwise, to execute deeds of confirmation in favor of the secured 

creditors of the Demerged Undertaking or in favor of any other party to any 
contract or arrangement to which the Demerged Company has been a party 
in respect of Demerged Undertaking or any writings as may be necessary to 

be executed in order to give formal effect to the above provisions. The 
Resulting Company shall under the provisions of this Scheme be deemed to 

be authorized to execute any'such writings on behalf of the Demerged 

Company and, to implement and carry out all such formalities or 

compliance referred to above on the part/behalf of the Demerged Company 
to be carried out or performed,

d. Any inter se contracts between the Demerged Company and the Resulting 
Company in relation to Demerged Undertaking shall stand adjusted and vest 

in the Resulting Company upon the sanction of the Scheme and upon the 

Scheme becoming effective. Transaction(s), if any, pertaining to Demerged 
Undertaking, between the Demerged and Resulting Companies after the 

appointed date and until the effective date will be squared off in the books 
of accounts of the Resulting Company upon the Scheme becoming effective. •

21. OPERATIVE PATE OF THE SCHEME

This Scheme, though operative from. the Appointed Date, shall be effective 
■from the last of the dates on which certified copies of the National Company 

Law Tribunal order under Sections 230-232 of the Act are filed in the office(s) 
, of the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana.

22. SURVIVAL OF DEMERGED COMPANY 
For Alfa Autotech. Private Ltd.
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, j. On this Scheme, becoming effective as provided in above, the Demefged
' ' ' Company shall survive with Bhadurgarh Units Business Undertaking.

j I 23. EMPLOYEES OF DEMERGED COMPANY
a. AU tae employees of the Demerged Undertaking in service on the date

' 1 immediately preceding the date on which the Scheme finally takes effect,
' i.e., the Effective Date, shall become the employees of the Resulting

j . ■ Company on such date without any break or interruption in service-and upon
terms and conditions not less favorable than those subsisting, in the ' 
concerned Demerged Company on the said date. 

• I

b. Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund, Superannuation Fund and any other special 
fiind or trusts created or existing for the benefit of the employees of the 
Demerged Undertaking, if any, upon the Scheme becoming finally effective,

.• * „ the Resulting Company, shall stand substituted for the Demerged Company,
, for all purposes and intents, whatsoever, relating to the administration or

, operation of such schemes or funds or in relation to the obligation to make

contributions to the said funds in accordance with the provisions of such 
funds. It is the intent that all the rights, duties, powers and obligations of the 
Demerged Company, with respect to Demerged Undertaking, in relation to

. such fiinds, shall become those of the Resulting Company. It is clarified 

that the services of the employees of the Demerged Undertaking will be 

treated as having been continued for the purpose of the aforesaid funds or 
i • provisions.

•t

24 CONDUCT OF BUSINESS BY DEMERGED AND RESULTING

COMPANIES.

«
a) From tne Appointment date until the effective date, the Demerged Company:

i. ' Shall stand possessed of assets and properties in trust of Resulting
Company.

ii. Shall be ’deemed to have been carried on activities of demerged 
Undertaking for and on behalf of Resulting Company. Any income or

Director.

For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd,
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profit Accruing to the Demerged company and alt cost, charge^ 'and 

expenses or loss arising or incurring by the Demerged company, in 

respect of Demerged Undertaking, on and from the Appointed date, shall 
for all the purposes and Intents, be treated as the income, profits, cost, 
charges and expenses or loss as the case may be, of the Resulting 
Company.

iii. Notwithstanding anything contained in forgoing clause, the Resulting 
Company and the Demerged Company shall be free to conduct their 

respective businesses and to take all steps in this regard -which may 
include but shall nowhere be limited to raising of funds through fresh debt 

and/ or equity during the pendency of demerger proceedings.

25. APPLICATION TO TRIBUNAL

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company hereto shall, make joint 

applications under Sections 230-232 of the said Act .to the Hon'ble National 

Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench for sanctioning this Scheme of 

partial demerger of Pune Unit of AFPL into AAPL and retention of 
Bhadurgarh Units undertaking by said company and other connected matters.

26. CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME;

This Scheme is and shall be conditional upon and subject to:

.. a. The requisite consent, approval/permission of the Hon’ble Tribunal, 
Central Government or any other statutory or regulatory authority,' 

which by law may be necessary for the implementation of this Scheme;

b. The certified copies of the orders of the Tribunal' under Sections 230-

232 of the Act sanctioning the Scheme are filed with the Registrar of 
Companies, Delhi and Haryana within prescribed time; and

c. .Compliance with such other conditions as may be imposed by the

DirectorDirector

Hon’ble Tribunal.•J A • . W»AlfAR£XnUBESWr.lIO.
For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd.
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27. PA^TWENT OF STAMP DUTY ’
' ",■ ' I * A «

If any Stamp Duly arises in ftiture in respect to the Demerged Undertaking of I 

\ -Demerged Company, then the said stamp duty would be paid by the Resulting

Company.

’. - ■

28. MODIFICATIONS;

The Scheme is subject to such modifications as the Horible Tribunal, may

• impose, and/or the Directors of the Companies concerned may affect or assent
O '

to, on behalf of all concerned.and the Directors of each Company may do 

such other acts, deeds.and things as may be necessary for canying this

s ; Scheme into effect. The Resulting Company and the Demerged Company by

. their respective Board of Directors shall be authorized to take all such steps as

I. may be necessary, desirable or. proper to resolve any doubts, difficulties or

■ questions whether by reason of any directive or orders of any other authorities

• or otherwise howsoever arising out of or under or by virtue of the Scheme and 

/ or any matter concerned or connected therewith.

29. This Scheme shall not in any manner affect.the right of any of the creditors of

•' the Demerged Company, who shall continue to enjoy all such rights against

; the Resulting Company, as they had against the Demerged Company with

regard to Demerged Undertaking.

30. This Scheme shall become operative as soon as the certified copy of the order ' 

of the Hon'ble Tribunal confirming this Scheme is filed with the Registrar of 

Companies Delhi and Har\-ana. Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, all - 

permissions, licenses, approvals, incentives, remissions, tax-incentives,
>

consents, sanctions, and other authorizations, pertaining to the activities of the 'i 
WsAffAFlfXIPJ^S^L'l ■

Diractof

For Alfa Autotech jMvato Ltd.

Director
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Demerged Undertaking, to which the Demerged/Demerged Company is

■ ' entitled to shall stand vested and permitted or continued by the order of, 
I. '

' I sanction of the Tribunal in the Resulting Company without payment of any'

customs duty or any other similar duty. Therefore both the Companies shall 

be fiee to file the Scheme, for the record of the statuioiy authorities who shall

. take it on file; pursuant to the sanction' orders of the High Court The

. Resulting Company is authorized to take all such steps on behalf, of-the 

Demerged Undertaking of'Demerged Company as may be necessary to give 

effect to the ptovisions contained above.

31. scheme CONDITIONAL ON APPROVALS/ SANCTIONS

The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

• a) Approval of.the Scheme by the requisite majority in number and value of 
: . the shareholder and/or creditors (both secured and/or unsecured), if any,

either by way of a meeting or by no objection certificate/ letter of consent 

from the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Transferor Companies No. 1 

to 12 and the Transferee Company as per the provisions of the Act; and

’• h) Approval of the Scheme by the Hon'ble Tribunal under Sections 230 tO
232 of the Act

»•

’ 32. . It is fii,tther provided that in a case if the Board of Directors of any of the

Companies as being part of.the Scheme, at any stage prior to the Scheme 

coming into effect, decide not to proceed further with the Scheme and

withdraw the consent of the respective company to the Scheme, in such case, 

the Scheme in its entirety shall not be proceeded with by any party and this
’ I

Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect.

33. EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPRQVAI-S: 
For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd.

Olnctor •

hVa ALFA FlfXmjBES PVT. LTD,
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a) In the event any of the approvals or conditions enumerated in the Scheme hot

• • being obtained or complied with, or for any other reason, the Scheme cannot

‘ ■ be implemented, the Board of Directors of the Resulting/Resulting Company

I. - and the Demeiged Company shall mutually waive such conditions as they

consider appropriate to give effect, as far as possible, to this Scheme and 

failing such mutual agreement, or in case the Scheme is not sanctioned by the 

Tribunal, the Scheme shall become null and void and each party shall bear 
•1

and pay their respective costs, charges and expenses in connection with the 

Scheme.

’ b) Further, in the case of non-receipt of approvals to the Scheme, no rights and

‘ liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter-se by the Demerged

Company or the Resulting Company or their shareholders or creditors or 

employees or any other person.
»

e) Further that, in the case of non-receipt of approvals, both the 

DemergedZDemerged as well as Resulting/Resulting Company shall resume to 

their original position as if no scheme/arrangement was ever made in between 

the said Companies.
1

34. TAX CREDITS;

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are expressly permitted 

to file/revise their Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax. Goods and Service 

Tax (IGST, COST, SGST, UTGST), Excise and other statutory returns, 

•consequent to the scheme becoming effective, notwithstanding that the period 

for filing /revising such returns may have lapsed.
• »

Por AWa Autotech Private Ltd. HftAlM

/yCAU-
t Director

PVT.LTO.

Director
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The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are expressly pennitted 

to amend TDS/TCS or other statutory certificates and shall have the right to 

claim refunds, advance tax credits, set offs, adjustments etc., relating to their 

respective incomes/transactidns from the Appointed Date. It is specifically 

declared that the taxes / duties paid by the Demerged Company, with regard 

to'Demerged Undertaking, relating to the period on or after the Appointed 

Date whether by way of deduction at source or advance, pertaining to the 

activities of the Demerged Company, shall be deemed to be the taxes/duties 

paid by the Resulting Company and the said Resulting Company shall be 

entitled to claim credit for such taxes deducted/paid against its tax/duty 

liabilities notwithstanding that the certificates/challans or other documents for 

payment of such taxes/duties are in the name of the Demerged Company. It is 

declared that all the tax losses pertaining to the activities of the Demerged 

Undertaking in Demerged Company, upto the Appointed Date will be 

transferred to the Resulting Company. Further any tax, duty payments not 

directly relatable to the Demerged Undertaking shall be apportioned between 

the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company on the appropriate basis 

as the Board of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company mutually 

in their discretion deem fit and proper.

35. MISCELLANEOUS

a) All costs, chaises and expenses of the Demerged Company and of the

ResultLig Company respectively, in relation to or in connection with

negotiations leading up to this Scheme and carrying, out and completing the 

terms and provisions of this Scheme and activities incidental to the

For Alfa Autotechyp^lvate^^^^^^M/s 

oirectof IHreetef
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completion of demei^er in pursuance of this Scheme, shall be borne and paid

• by the Resulting Company.

b) That either of both the Companies, acting through its Boards of Directors, 

shall be at liberty to withdraw from this Scheme of Demerger in case any 

condition alteration imposed by any authority/person is unacceptable to them.

c) Schedule of Assets and Liabilities of the Demerged Company forms part of 

the present Scheme and has been annexed as “Schedule 1” and 

“Schedule 2” to the present Scheme.

For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd. ... ..k.,/ ifvttro.

Director
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GAURAVJAIN 
iBBI REGISTERED VALUER (SFA) 
Regn No. IBBI/RV/06/2021/13914

I 

i
I

Outed; .June 24. 2(124

'I'o ■

The Boai'il of Directors
Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited
M-439, l;a Floor, Guru Harkishari Nagar, :
I’aschim Vihar, New Delhi, 1 10087 i

The Board of Directors ;
Alfa Aulotecli Private Limited [
M-439, ist Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar,
Paschim Vihar. New Delhi, 110087

l*»i •nostitifViihialioii
• Kccommeiidalion of Shaiu Exchange Xalio for the proposed doiiiergor of ■‘Pone Uiiif’ of Alfa 

Flexitvbes P.-ivate Limited C'Demerged Undertaking”) into Alla Aulotecli Private Limited (Resnlimg 
Company) ”

Relf.viiiil Ix^aislulitnis:
• Section 230 and Section 232 of Companies Act, 2013

We lefcr to dic engagement letter dated June IO, 2024 wherein Alfa FlexilLibes Private Limil.ci! ( •■'flie 
Company”) lias reques:ed Gaurav Jain, Registered Valuer {hercimifter referred as •‘Valuer’’) lo lend 
Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed demerger of “Pune Unit” of Alfa ric.xitiibe.s I'rivalc Liiniied 
(“Demerged Undertaking”) into Alfa Aulotech Private Limited (Resulting Company) in terms of provisions ot 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder. We hereby enclose our reporl on eqniiv share 
valuation, which was completed in accordance with the parameters below.

Method of Valuation Asset Approach
Date of Valnatiuii March 31,2024

The valuation is prepared in compliatice with ICAl Valuation Standards. The sole purpose of this repori is lo 
assist the company to determine the price of equity shares in terms of provisions of the Comiianics Aci. 2UI2 
read with rules made thereunder

As per your request, rather than preparing a self- contained comprehensive repoit, we have provided u rcsiricted 
uppruisiil report which is advisory in nature and intented to be u.sed for offering subject bu.sincs.s for the purpose 
referred above. Please lefer to the statement of limiting conditions contained in the report. For the purposes ol 
business .ippraisal, fair market value is defined as the expected price at which ilie subjeti business would 
change hands between i willing buyer and a willing seller, neither being under a compulsion lo coneh.iilc die 
transaction and both having full knowledge of all the relevant facts. We have appraised a conirolling owiieiship 
itUercst in the assets of the subject business. The appraisal was pcrfoimcd under ihc picinise of value iu 
continued use as a going concern business enterprise.

I'.igr; 1

Office; 1511-1512, R.G. Trade Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampurs, New Delhi-' 10034 (India) 
Tei.: +91-11-9891111234, 011-45098234. Email; <agrvjain@gmaii.corn
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GAURAVJAIN
IBBi REGISTERED VALUER (SFA) 
Regn No. IBBI/RV/06/2021/13914

VJe have no obligation to update this report or oat conclusion of value for information tlial conics to our 
attention aller the date of this, report. We have appraised the subject business in accordance with the 
Inlsmalional Valuation Stmdards.

Pleii.se feel free to contact us in case you require any additional information or clarifications.

Yctins’s faithfully.

JZrv ««« wevA 
3(' muNaik \2’ WA/WinaiK 1*7 
' I ffwTMiMe« /

11*31 Registered 
.Securities and Financial Assets
Regn No: - llJBI/RV/{)6/202J/13914 
LDIN: - 7-tl6J.Z-3 45 bfcA V^ AS63cS

Office: 1511-1512. R.G. Trade Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Delhi-110034 (India) 
Tel.; +91-11-9891111234, 011-45038234. Email; cagrvjain@gmail.com
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GAURAV JAIN
IBBI REGISTERED VALUER (SFA) 
Regn No. IBBI/RV/06/2021/13914
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GAURAV JAIN
IBBI REGISTERED VALUER (SFA) 
Regn No. IBBI/RV/06/2021/13914

VALOA I ION ANALYSIS
I

In the following paragraphs, we have summarized our Voliialioii Analysis (the "Analysis") of the business of the 
Company as infonned by the Miinagcmcnl and detailed herein, together with the description [of the 
methodologies used and limitations on our scope of work as mentioned in herein below in this report, |

J. Context mill I’lirnosc *

Based on discussion with the Management, we understand that there is a demerger of one unit i f Alla 
I'lcxitubes Private Limited, wherein Pune Unit of Alfa Flcxilube.s Private Limited would be de nerged 
and shall be transferred to Alfa Aulotech Private Limited, ’nic remaining two units located in Bliadi rgarh 
district of the Compatiy shall be retained by Alfa Flexiiubes Private Limited. '

2. Ciiiiiliiiuns mid innlor A.ssnnuitinns

Coinlilions

■|lie historical nnanciiil information about the company presented in this report is included solely Ibr the 
purpose to arrive at value conclusion presented in this report, and it should not be used by atv-i ne to 
obtain credit or for any other unintended purpose. Because of Itic limited purpose as inentioiict n ih>- 
report, it iniiy be incomplete and may contain departures from generally accepted aceoiiniing pr-nciplvs 
prevailing in the country. We have not audited, reviewed, or compiled the Financial Siatcnio'nis and 
e.xpress no assurance on them. ’ITic financial infonmition about the compiiny presented in ihii- report 
includes normalization adjustments made solely for the purpose to arrive iit value concliLsions pn-.-xmicd 
in this report.

Nonnalization adjustments as reported are hypothetical in nature and arc not intended to present restated 
historical financial results or forecasts of the future.

Tliis report is only to be used in its entirety, and for the purpose stated in the report. N j third 
partics,oiher thcati the Company’s current and potential shareholders and statutory nuihoriiics, .sioidd 
rely on the information or data contained in this report without the advice of their lawyer, altirney nr 
accountant.

We acknowledge that wc have no present or contemplated financial interest in the Company. C?ur fees 
for this valuation are based upon our nonnnl billing rates, and not contingent upon the lesidis or the 
value, of the business or in any other tranner. We h.nve no responsibility to modify this report for event,', 
and circumstances occurring subsequent to tlic date of this report.

We have, however, used conceptually sound and generally accepted methods, principles and prof.cdurc.s 
of valuation in determining the value estimate included in this report, 'fhe valuation analyst, by reason 
of perfonniiig this valuation and preparing this report, is not to be required to give expert le,stini( ny nor 
to be ill attendance in court or nt any government hearing with reference to the matleis contiiined herein, 
unless prior arrangements have been made with the analyst regarditig such additional engagement

I'nKf’

Office: 1511-1512, R,G, Trade Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Delhi-110034 (India) 
Tel.; *91-11-9891111234,011-45098234. Email: cagrvjalnOgmail.com
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GAURAVJAIN
IBBI REGISTERED VALUER (SFA) 
Regr. No. IBBl/RV/06/2021/13914

Assiiiiiiitioiis

The opinion of value given in this report is based on infonnalioii provided in part by the inanrgeineni 
of the Company and other sources as listed in the report. This informaliou is assnined lo be reemaie 
and complete.

We have relied upon the representations contained in the public and other dociiitienis in our pos.session 
concerning tlic value and useful condition of all invcstiTients in securities or partnership inicresis, and 
any other as.seu or liabilities except as specifically stated to the contrary in this report.

Wc have not attempted to coiiHriTi whether or not all assets of the business arc free and clear of 
liens and encumbrances, or that the owner has good title to all the assets.

Wc have also assumed that the business will be operated prudently and that there are no nnforesecn 
adverse changes in the economic conditions affecting the business, the market, or the industry. T’liis 
report presumes that, the management of the Company will maintain the character and intcyiiv „f die 
Company through any sale, reorganization or reduction of any owner's/manager's participation in the 
existing activities of the Company.

We have been informed by matiageitiein that there are no environmental or toxic coiiiariiimnion 
problems, any significant lawsuits, or any other undisclosed contingent liabililic.s which may potentinlly 
iilTecl the business, except as may be disclosed elsewhere in this report. We have assumed that no 
costs or e.xpcnses will be incurred in connection with such liabilities, c.xccpt as explicitly staled in this 
report.

3. Itnckgrouiid of the coinnniiy mid Industry

Alfa Flexitiibes Private Limited is a duly incorporated Private Limited Company on .31st January, 1996 
under Companies Act, 1956 having CIN: U65993DL1996PTC075886, and ils registered oflTe address is 
situated at M-439, 1st Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi, 110087.

Alfa Auiotcch Private Limited i.s a duly incorporated as Private Limited Company on iiOth .lannary. 211(18 
under Companies Act, 1956 having CIN: U3'l300DL2008PTCI73317, and its registered office address is 
situated at M-439, 1 st Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Viliar, New Delhi. 110087.

. -?/RVRSCH KC

^KuiMter
\»nanaa AMoai
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ghai-elioldiiii; llclails of the Alfa Flexitulic Private LiirJt-^d ns on March 31. 21)24 iii c as 
follows

Name of Shareholders No. of Shares
Mr. R.K.Sardiina 7,70,270
Mrs.Indra Sardana 4,15.242
Mr..Saiirabli Tandoii 11,76,079
Mrs. I’ooja Sardana 5,22,341
Mrs. Priya Aliiija 5,22,341
Others 76,000
I’otal 34,82,273

Shill choldiiit; Details of the Alfa Autotccli Priviitc Liinilctl as on Mai cli 31, 2024 ai e as 
follows ' ---------------

Name of Shareholders No. of Sliares
Mr. R.K.Sardana 60,000
Mr.Saurabh Tandon 28,500
Others 1,500
lolal 90,000

“I- Purpose of vahiatioii and ai)i)oiiiliin> authority:

Recommendation of Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed demerger of -‘Pune Unii” of Mlii 
Flex.iiibes Private Limited ('‘Demerged Undertaking”) into Alfa Autotecli Private Limited (Res,dime 
Company) '•

Ideiiiity of the valuer anti any other experts involved in the valuation;

Name of the Valuer RV Gaurav Jain
113131 Kcgistratioii Number_____ ll3ni/RVZ06/202l/l39l4

Piselosnre of valuer intcrest/eonflict, if any:

\Sl XZ.'
.| MJVIMl* I, 
" t <S«axi6»« ot I ,

I’OHR fi
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Dale of iiiHioiiitmciU, valitiitioii date and dale pf lemu-i

Date oPAppoiiunent

Valuation Date

Date of Report

June iO, 2024

Marell 31,2024
Juii~Tr'2O24 ■

Basis/ liases of value used

Bases of value Gsonicliiiies ealled stardards of value) are slalcntciiLs of llie fitiiduincnial ineasoruneiil 
as.siiinplioris of a valiialioii. 1 liey de.serihe lire fiindainenlal assiiinpiioii.s on ivbicli ilie ie|iiiried valm-s 
will be based (e-g., the nature of the hypothelieal iransaeliuii, ihe relationship ami inoiivaiio i , i tii, 
parlies, llie extc.if to which the assel is exposed to the market, ano lhe mi it of iieeoiini foi die 
valiiaitoii). It Ls crilical for any valuaaon to he pcrfornied using lhe hasi.s (,oi ha.'.e;.) of value lliai is 
appropriate to the terms anti purpose of the valuation assignment, as a basis of value mav mlii.eiiee 
or dieiaie a valuer’s selection of methods, inputs and assiimption.s. and lhe nliimale opiiii,in ,<i value. 
We have iised "Fair Value", ms basis of Vahialion.

fair Value is defined ."is lhe price ihal would be recciveil to sell an a.ssel or paid m iram.i'er 
liability in an orderly Irruisaction belwccii market pa,ticiptiius at lhe meastireiii<ni dme.

10- Valiialion .Slinulnrd.s

The Report has been prepared in eomp.iance with ihe ICAl Valiiafimi Siandarifs and pricing 
(juideliiie.s slaicd -therein.

' - Valiialion MethudoliiuY, Apiirtiiieh and l‘l^oet^llnl^e.s adonted iii eai-i yiiiu otii ilic valuaiimi.

■fhe .slandard of value used in lhe Analysis is "Pair Value", which is olien defined as the price, in 
terms of cash nr equivalent, dial a buyer could reasonably be expecied lo pay. and .i seller ermln 
icasoiiiibly be expecied lo accepl. il ihe business were exposed lor sale on the iipen niarkci or a 
reasonable perior. of time,- with both buyer and seller being in possession of die pei lineni fact'- mul 
ncillie • being under any compulsion In ael,

Valtialion of a b.i.siiiess is mil an excel science and uItiincitely tlepends upon wlial n is wo.ali lo u 
serious inveslor pr buyer who may be prepared lo pay snbsianiial goodwill. 'I liis exerciv,- i be 
carrieu out using various incihodologies, the relalive emphasis of each ofieii varying '.suit:

• Whether the enlily is listed on a slock exchange;
» industry to which the Company belongs;
• past track record of the bu.siness and the case with which the growih rate in ca.sh flows 

to perpetuity can be estimated;
• Extent to which industry and comparable company informaiiun are available.

Office: 1511-1512. R.G. Trade Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Delhi -110034 (India) 
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The results of this exercise could vary significantly depending upon the basis used, the specillc 
circutnstanccs and professional judgment of the valuer. In respect of going c()ncern.s. cerliiin vnluntion 
techniques have evolved over time and are commonly in vogue. These can be broadly calcgori/.ed as 
follows:

i. Cost Approach/Net Asset Value
ii. Market Approach
iii. Income Approach

Asset iiniiroacli -Net Asset Value Method (NAV)

The value arrived at under this approach is based on the latest available audited/ unaudited/ pnivisiinial 
financial statements of the business and may be defined as the Shareholder’s Funds or Nel Assets owned by 
the business.

Under this method, the net assets os |)er the financial suitemeilis arc adjusted for market value of surplus/ 
non-operating assets, potential and contingent liabilities, if any. Net Book value represents equity value 
which is after reducing all external liabilities and preference shareholders claim, if any. from the aggregate 
value of all assets, os valued and staled in the balance sheet

Hie Book Value is generally used as the minimum break-up value for the transaction of intra-gruup 
companies since diis methodology ignores the future return the assets can produce and is calculiiteil using 
historical accounting data reflect how much the business is worth to someone who may buy it as a L?>ii>u. 
concern. This valuation approach is also used in case where the assets btisc doniliiale.s earning.'; capabilities 
or if it is investment holding company and significant value is derived from its investment lioklings.

Tlic Book Value (“BV”) Method under the Cost Approach considers die Assets and Liabilities, including 
intangible Assets. Ute Book Vnhie, after reducing the dues to the Preference Shareholders, if any. reprcseni 
the equity value of a company.

In present case, the book value metliod serves as a foundational tool in lite context of mergers, offering n 
conservative and transparent approach to valuing companies. By relying on verifiable scheme of demerger 
provided by die management of the company, the book value method remains a reliable method ibr 
vnluntion of merging companies, facilitating comparative analysis nnd eompliunce with regulainry 
standards. Tlie valuation analysis has been conducted in accordance with method prescribed above. Detail 
of Calculation is attached herewith as Annexure -A

12. Equity Vnluntion of the coninniiv

The equity valuation analysis for the company has been conducted in accordance with mcihud 
prescribed above. Detail of Calculation is attached herewith as Aiiuvxure -A.

13. Mnior. factors thnt iiiriueiiccd the viiliinlioii:

Not Identified.
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IT Sources of liifoi iiiatioii

The Analysis is based on a review of the business plan of the Coiiipany provided by ihe 
Management and information relating to the industry sector in which company is operating as 
available in the public domain. Specifically, the sources of information include:
• Unaudited Provisional Financial Statement for the period from April Ol, 202:i to March 

31, 2024 for Alfa Flexitube Private Limited &. Alfa Autotech Private Liiniled
• Unit-wise Financial statements of Alfa Flexitube Private Limited

• Details of Meniorandiint of Association and Articles of Association;
• Draft Scheme of Arrangement
• Management Representation Letter.
• Discussions with the Managcmcni;
« In addition to the above, we have also obtained such other inforinaiion and cxpla lalidiis 

which were considered relevant for the purpose of the Analysis.

15. Caveats, liinitatioiis iiiid discliiiiners

Provision of valuation recommendations and considerations of the issues described herein 
are areas of our regular corporate advisory practice. The .services do not rcprcsciii 
accounting, assurance, financial due diligence review, consulting, transfer pricing or 
doiuestic/international tax-related services that may otherwise be provided by us.

Our review of the affairs of the Company and their books and account does not considiile :in 
audit in accordance with Auditing Standards. We have relied on explanations and info niaiion 
provided by the Management of the Company and accepted the information provided to us 
as accurate and complete in all respects. Although, we have reviewed such data for 
con.sislency and reasonableness, we have not independently investigated or otherwise vc-ificil 
the data provided. Nothing has come to our attention to indicate that the inforiuiiiion jvro"ideel 
had material niisS'Slatemerits or would not afford reasonable grounds upon which tu base ilic 
Report.

The valuation worksheets prepared for the exercise are proprietary to Caiirav .Jain, Regisierefl 
Viihier and cannot be shared. Any clarifications on the workings will he provided uii ret nest, 
prior to finalizing the Report, as per the terms of our engagement.

The scope of our work has been limited both in terms of the areas of the business and 
operations which we have reviewed and the extent to which we have reviewed them,

The Valuation Analysis contained herein represents the value only on the date that is 
specifically stated in this Report. This Report is issued on the uitderslandin;’ that the 
Maitageinent of the Company has drawn our attention to all matters of which they arc aware.
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which may have an impacl on our Report up to the date of signature. We have no respoii>ibiliiy 
to update this Report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this Report.

We have no present or planned future interest in the Company and the fee for this Repor. is nut 
contingent upon (he values reported herein.
Oiir Valuation Analysis shoild not be construed as invc.slinent atlvice; specifically, we d., not 
cxprcs.s any opinion on the suitability or otherwise of entering into any iran.saetion with the 
Company.

16. Dislrilmtion of renurt

The Analysis is confidential and has been prepared exclusively for the purpose referred above. 
It should not be used, reproduced or circulated to any other person or for any purpose other 
than as mentioned above, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Gaurav Jain. 
Such consent will only be given after full consideration of the circumslattccs at iIk time. 
However, we do understand that the Report will be shared with the proposed alloiives of the 
Company. Further, the report may be submitted to .statutory authorities as and when required.

-7- Otiiiiioii of value of the biisine.ss mid valuiition siiiiiiiiiirv:

The equity value of the company is summarized in the following table:

Ciilcuhitioii of Ssviip Rntio
Niiine of (lie Company

•V
Title Value per 

Share in INR
Share L.vchmige 

Ratio
Alfa ITcxitube Private Limited 
(Pune Unit)

“Demerged Undertaking" 5.93/- 100:5.X*

AlfaAulotcch Private Limited “Resulting Company” • 101.II/. NA

Accordingly, based on the infonnalion available, the share exchange ratio is arrived at 0.058.

*/'ffr every lUOO shares of Alfa Ftexilube Private l.iiiiiicil, Alfa Aiiiaiecli Private Limiieil will i:sw 511 
shiires.

Yours faithfully,

■hiin

Si'cui'ilie.s nnd EinsincinI Assets
Rcgii No: - lUBI/RV/06/2021/33914
UDIN:- V'/A-S’^ S8
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ALFA FLEXITUDES PRIVATE LIMITED {Pune Unit)
Demerged Undertaking
Valuation as at March 31, 2024 Annexure A.l

Book Value:
AmQunV(^

Assets
Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipments and Intangible assets
Long Term Loan and Advances

Current Assets
Trade Receivables
Ca.sli ant flank Balance
Short Te.-ni Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets
Inventories

4,77,86,686.13 
16,74,900.00

5,54,33,029.81 
89,234.00 

4,43,465.77 
17,337.06

2,29,38,357.15
Total Assets (A) 12,83,83,009.92

5. Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Branch / Head office balances
Short - term provisions

77,25,641.64
33,04,114.00

9,45,96,340.00
20,97,960.00

Total Uabilitles(6) 10,77,24,055.64
Book Value (A-B) ... ,'' . 2,06,58,954.23
Number of shares 34,82,273
Book Value per equity share (In 5.93

:11
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Alfa Autotcch Private Limited 
Valiatioii as at.March 31, 2024 Annexe re A.2

Book Value:
1 (PardcUlars . • - k'-- Amdurit.fln ?

A. Assets
Non- Current Assets

OJier Non Current Assets
Non-Current Investments

Current Assets
Cash and Conk Balance

4,33,018.87
l,14,O0,COO.OO

89,779.00
Total Assets (A) 1,19,23,398

B, Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
LonjTerni Liorrowings
Current Liabilities

Other current liabilities

25,20,000

3,02,797.87
Total Liabilities (Q) 28,23,397.87
Book Value (A-B) 91,00,000.00
Nurr.bcr of shares 99,000
Boots Value per equity shale (In ■ , 131.11

MO tj/ jBswrvw \2. sojinwi I , 
" 1 L^MUflWl V J w 

L -p ViB*n6« i

I’.'iHC 12
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Eli IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL 
NEW DELHI BENCH (COURT - 111

IN THE MATTER OF SCHME OF ARRANGEMENT:

agar,

AND

agar.

Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited
M-439, 1st Floor, Guru Harkishan 
Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-110087

Alfa Autotech Private Limited
M-439, 1st Floor, Guru Harkishan is 
Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-110087

.. Applicant Company No. 1/ 
Demerged Company

... Applicant Company No. 2/ 
Resulting Company

Item No, 207
CA(CAA)-100/ND/2024

Under Section; 230-232 of Companies Act.

Order delivered on 15.07.2025

CORAM;
SH. ASHOK KUMAR BHARDWAJ, HON’BLE MEMBER (J) 
MS.REENA SINHA PURI, HON’BLE MEMBER (T)

PRESENT;

For the Applicant : Adv, Asun Saxena, Adv. Shanu P.
For the Respondent ;

Hearing Through; VC and Physical (Hybrid) Mode

ORAL ORDER

The prayer made in the captioned application reads thus:-

"a. To dispense with the requiren^nt for convening the meeting of the 

equity shareholders of the Demerged Company and Resulting 

Company and to dispense with the requirement of issue and 
publication of notices for the same;

b. To convene meeting of the secured creditors and unsecured 

creditors of the Demerged Company through audio video means at

CA(CAA)-100/ND/2024
Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited with Alfa Autotech Private Limited
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Bl such Date and time as this Hon'ble Tribunal may direct, for the 
purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving with or without 
modification of the Scheme of Arrangement among the Applicant 
Companies;

c That orders/directions are to be passed for the publication of the 
notices in relation to the meetings of Secured and Unsecured 
Creditors of Demerged Company English Daily "Business 
Standard" and Hindi Daily "Business Standard" (New Delhi 
edition)

d. That the directions are also to be given as to the method of 
convening, holding and conducting the said meeting and as to the 
notices and advertisements to be issued in Secured and Unsecured 
Creditors of Demerged Company;

e. That the Chairperson and Scrutinizer be appointed for the said 
meeting of Secured and Unsecured Creditors of Demerged 
Company who shall report the result thereof to the Hon'ble Tribunal;

f To dispense with the requirement for convening the meeting of the 
secured and unsecured creditors of the Resulting Company and to 
dispense with the requirement of issue and publication of notices 
for the same;

g. Direct service of notice to Central Government through Regional 
Director, Registrar of Companies, Income Tax Authorities or such 
authorities as the Tribunal may deem fit, to make their respective 
representations, if any, to this Hon'ble Tribunal, under provisions 
of Section 230 (5) Companies Act, 2013 and further direct them to 
serve a copy of their representation on the Applicant Companies'- 
Advocate;

h. To pass any other order or directions, as may be deemed fit in the 
facts and circumstances of the case, may also be granted. ’

CA(CAA)-100/ND/2024
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2. The Ld, Counsel for the Applicant could draw our attention to the 

scheme of demerger, placed on record as Annexure-A5 to the application. The

rationale and benefits of the scheme reads thus:-

PARTW ■■

RATIONAbB AND BENEFITS OF THE SCHEME

4. T>« |»c5cnt-Scheme ef A/ranseroeni u-ould, inter alia, have (he foltowing

bcnonts:

, a) lite demeiser «f Pune Unit af DcmergiBd Cempaity into the
• • . a

Company will enable 'Demerged Compai^ (the Retained 

Undertaking)tc focusmorespccincally ontlteBhadurgarh Ur^a$ on 

exclusive entily and- will concentrate on developing and achieving
- * expertise towards it mid decision making, vwtbout the disiraciion of 

' managing multiple units. Thia con lead » improved performattee and 

innovation. Aho, int^stors tmor value, spesiaibscsl companies hij^er 

than a conglomecate as they can better understand and assess the'risbs 

and opportunities of a focused business. This can lead to improved 

valuadon.

'b) The Arrangement wUl result in better, enieient and economical 

RianBSBmimt. cost savings, ereating b«tf*r ^nersy across the-group, 

optiroum utiiixatioa of resources, rmionsdixation of admtniatrMlve 

expenses/servtees, control ond'-ninning of businesses and further 

development ard growth of the busincis of both the. companies.

«) The Arrani^nnent would allow a focused strategy bi operations of the 

'Demerger Undertaking atoagwiih ^viding sc(^ G>r indepcndcM 

eollaborathMis and expansion' without eomtnloing the existing 

m'^uibssicm in its entirety and creating enhaneed value for operations.

d) Um: Resulting Company witl have belter financial and business 

proqrocts. The Scheme would be beneficial to and in the best interest of

• (he ahST'^teddets creditors cf the Demerged Company and the 

' Resulting Company. The Scheme shall not in any manner be prejudicial 

to the intcrena of csmcemed shercholdert/credittws and gencrsil public 

al lor^.

CA(CAA)-100/ND/2024
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3. The particulars of the Demerged and Resulting Companies have given

in Paras 1 85 5 of the application, which reads thus:-

'1. That ALFA FLEXJTUBES PRIVATE LIMITED, (hereinafter 
referred to as "Applicant Company No. 1 or Demerged 
Company") is a duly incorporated on 31^ January, 1996 as 
private limited company under the provisions of the Companies 
Act. 1956, CIN "U65993DL1996PTC075886" and having its 
registered office at 'M-439, J®* Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, 
Paschim Vihar, New Delhi 110087'.

XXX
5. That ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED, fhereinnfter 

referred to as "Applicant Company No. 2 or Resulting 
Company") is a duly incorporated on 50'* January, 2008 as 
private limited company under the provisions of the Companies 
Act. 1956, CIN ''U34300DL2008PTC173317" and having its 
registered office at 'M-439, Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, 
Paschim Vihar, New Delhi 110087'. ’

4. Our attention could be drawn to the Valuation Report, which prescribes 

the share exchange ratio on account of the Demerger of Pune Unit of the 

Den-.erged Company into the Resulting Company. The relevant excerpt of the 

aforesaid valuation report marked and annexed as Annexure-A15 reads thus:-

17. Opiaionfifynliicoflhc bmincuand vatuslian minniBry:

The equ'ty value oflhe company it summariad in the following tabic;

Accordingly, based on the infonnauon avaUabb, (he share ntio h arrived ii O.OSS.

Colnlalion orStran Ralio
Nnue oflhe Company Hile • \^Be per 

Share Id INR
Sliarefxchange 

Ratio
Alfa Fleiiiube Private Limited 
(.^me L'nil)

‘Oemerged Undertaking" S.W- I00;$.8*

Alfa Aulotcch Private Umited "RcsukinRComoiny" ■ lOl.llA NA

•For evoy leOOthara of Alfa Flextiiibe Private Uiiiiled, Alfa Aiiluiedi Private Uailied »ill lane J« 
tharet

CAtCAA}-lOO/ND/2024
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Eii The reference is made by Ld. Counsel for the Applicant to the synopsis

filed along with application to show that as far as the status qua Equity 

Shareholders and Unsecured Creditors qua Resultant Company are 

concerned, they have given their consent to the Scheme of Demerger. 

Regeirding the Creditors and Shareholders qua the Demerging Company, Mr. 

Saxena, Ld. Counsel for the Applicant submitted that a prayer for convening 

the meeting of Secured and Unsecured Creditors is requested, but the 

Shareholders have accorded their consent to the scheme. The relevant excerpt 

of the synopsis reads thus:-

9. F^lowing is the status of the Equity Shareholders and (he cansems by way of 
« * ,
Afiidavil given by. (hem for (he proposed amalgamation: - 

SiiHn of Equity Shartholders 

And Consents elven bv'them

Compaoy
No. of
Sliareholder 
a

Writtea 
OoBsent 
peet^ved

V. - of 
Consent 
Receive 
d ' ■

AnnexurwNo. PafprNo.

Appticaat - 
Company 
No. 1

« - 10094
AgfCollvV

-
Applicant • 
Compaoy • 
No. T •

3 3 10094 Anwexure- 
AltfCoWA.

10:Fol!o»rfng is the status .of the Secured CreeRtors and the consent by wy of . 

■ AffitUvit given ty them for the proposed amalgamation:

Status of Secured Creditors . 
And Coasent elven by them

Company
No, of
Secured 
Creditora

Written 
Con^ot - 
received

Percentage 
of
Consents .
Xteceived

Annexure 
No.

Page 
No.

Applicant 
Company 
No.1

11 , Nil' -
Applicant
Company 
No. 2

Mil. MA MA - • - - . - ■

CA(CAA)-100/ND/2024
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--»l.~ol[owihB i« Oie status of the Unssounsd Cicditors and the eon^t by .way of 

AfTidavit given by tlwm for Oje proposed tunalsa'cnation: ' - .

Stott«<8 of Unyecure^ Cr<dit<>r:» 
' Cor>»e»^ t gjygn l»v them

Company
Number os 

Unacoured 

CrediSon

Wrlllrn

Consent 

receLv ed

Per«ehts^« 

oT consents 

roeotvetf

Aonexur'C 

No.' No.

'AppUoane 
Company' 
P4O.3 .

144 i Nil • -
Applicant 
Company 
No. 2

5 ',5 ' 1009% vAnneicurc- 
AldfOollv.'i

/■ .

6. The Certificates given by a Chartered Accountant regarding the

accounting treatment have been placed cn record at Annexure-A16 to the

application and are reproduced thus:-

>^’1 Gsk & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants
LXriW:AAB>iM»

' mmh UaiHM UauieP«iMnM> AAi,2aca|

The Bea.'d of Directors, 
AI.FA AUTOTECHPRlVArE LIMTTEP 
M-439, i'HoO’.Ouru Harkrishao Nsgar, 
PasetnaVihar, New Delhi 110087

A * r Floor, Alni Jhanai J^sd, 
. MuilaKhaAlraliutrialArea, 

NcwOelM-IIOOSS. 
TtLt-JlI.aSlMTO-Tl

E-maa :ii^i@cskassMineixtan 
Wehslie: wMft.n>Sptnf|;nf«,fO«n 

y^trnaatt -/ifc (Qu)

%*:, GSK 41 Aasodatcl LLP, Chanered AcMunlanU Slatulory Auditor of M/t ALFA 

AUTOTECM rmVATE LIMITED (hereinaner referred Io as -RESULTIKQ 

COMPANY'*), have exatnbted ths prepoted accoiintinc neanneat specifled in the jrapossd 

SciiraM ofDonerBer/Annr.gMierl of M/> Alb Aulolech Private Untiled and Alb Flexiluhes
i 

Phvaw Limited (heteioaflet referred to st "the Demwged Gwnpan/') in lerma of the

provisiooj of aeetiena 2S0 to 233 of Che Companies Act, 2013 with refeience to. its 

complbace vridi die applicable Accounting Stacdirds specified under Sotion 133 of the A^ 

read wib rule 7 of die Comoaruea (Accounts) Eules. 2014 and other Generally Accepted
♦ .

Aeeoufltng|PtiDciplea.

After examinaiion, "Ve hereby cesUQ’ (btil the sccouniicg treatiocat in ttte pr^osec Scheme 
Of Denergel'^anceotenl under set^ems 230',o:232 of the Companlcf Act, 2013 between

Ws A1& Flexilubea Private Lindied and Alfa Autaiech lYivate Limited is in eooformiiy withi 

the accounllag slancarda prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act. 2013.

The responsibility for the preparation of the Seheme and its compliance w.lh the releiwt ■ 

lows and reguazons, inelodiag be applicable Accountiog Siaitdaids ax aforesaid, is that of 

darBoa-d of Directors of the companies Involved. Out responsiWlity is only to eKsmineand
' '

report wbellier the Scheme rompliet with the applicable Accoimting Standards end Other

.C^fietBl y Accepted Aceouefing Principles. Nothing contained in this ‘Certificate, nor

CA(CAA;-1OO/ND/2O24
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anything jaid or done in the course of. or !ft Connection with the services that ere subject to 

this Certificate, wilt extend any duty of care that we arc may have in our capacity of the 

staiuioiy auditors of any financial statements of the Company. Wc carrled out our 

examination in aceotdance with Ute Guidance Note on Audit Reports and Certificates for 

$pecialPuipo3es.>ssuedbylhelR^iuteofOiarleredAccountantsofIndia. ,

UDIN

(CA Anil Komar Somaol) 
Designated Partner 
M.Np, 093521 -

For GSK A Assoeiatcj i,Lt
Chaitned Accountants 
FRN:-013S38N/N5C0003 ■

gjti'moaHI

Date: 30.'07.2024

Place: Delhi

XXX

Gsk & Associates llp 
Chartered Accountants , 
■.t.PIM:AAB-IS0*M>TM U>>IH>UMIIvP»M>dIrAa.UM)

2S0 Ilcs<.CMIln: 
‘ 'trinFloor.ituUhInstnouL 

Meria Khao Indusrnal Area, 
New DelM.IIOOSS. 

-nl. ;0ll-23Si»i«70-7} 
Email: lnfe@s^ssoeitlM.coin 
Webtlie; wwwgiVittoflaica.ecin

To,
The Board ofDiivcton,
ALFA FLEXJTVOES PRIVATE LIMITED
M-439. l*‘Ploor. Guru Haiitrishan Nagar, 
Paschlm Vilur, New Delhi HODS?

We, GSK dt AssocUlo LLP , Chartered Accountants, Sianuory Auditor of M/s ALFA 

FLEXITVBES PRIVATE LlMl’TOD (heremafter referred to as “DEMERaED' - 

COMPLY"), have exammed'the proposed accounting tiealmenl specified in the proposed 

Scheme of DemerEer/Arrangemait of M/s Alfii Flexitubes Private Limited and Alfa Autotech

* Private Liir.hed (hereinafter referred to as "the Resulting Company^ in terms of the 

ptovisioos of aectioBS 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 with lefeience to its 

compliarse the applicable Accounting Standards specified under Section ISSoftbeAU,

lead with xle 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other Generally Accepted 

Accotmting Principles, -

Alter examhulioo, we hereby certify that die accounting treatment in the proposed Sdreme of 

Oonerger/AiraDgemenl under sections 230 to 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 between M/s 

Alfii FIexir,d>es Private Limited and Alfa Autoiecb Pavale limited is in eonfotmity with ihe 

aoxAuning standards prescribed under Section ]33ofCoinpenies Ad. 2013.

CA(CAA)-100/ND/2024
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as

Bi The rtspontbiiity for the prepaialion of tiie Scheme and its compliance with &e relevant 

bws and regulations, indudiog the applicable Accounting Standards as aforesaid, is that of 

the Board of Directon of the companies involved. Our responsibili^ is only to examioe and
i 

report wheitw the Schenre comi^es with the applicable Accounting Standards and Other' 
Generally Accepted Accounting Princi^is. Hoti^ contained m this Certilicatt, nor 

anything said done in the course of, or in connatim with the services that arc subject to 

this ^itificare, wiU extetd uty duty of care foat we are may have in our capacity of the 

statutory auditors of any financial Malemeots of the Company. We carried out our 

eynmiimrinn in accordance wid) the Cuidance Note on Audit Reports and Certific^es foq 

Special Purposes, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForGSKA Auociates LXP
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-t-13838W500003

(CA Anil Kuriiar Somssl) 
Designated Partner ' 
M-No. 093521,

Date: 30.07.»)24
Place; Delhi

7. The Certificates given by the auditor regarding the Creditors and Equitjz 

Shareholders qua Demerging and Resultant Company, duly supported by an 

affidavit, are available on record as Page Nos. 209, 229, 238, 248 of the 

application.

8. It is the stand taken by the Applicants that the control qua both the 

Demerging and Resultant Companies is common, and both the companies are 

group companies. The averments to the effect have been made at Page-30 in 

Para-3 of the application which reads thus:-

CA(CAA)-100/ND/2024
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tai;

Si -3. Tho scheme, envisaeed. the.arrtuiecxnent'of xh« Puno ti/ilt of 

- OemerBcd Company Joto Keaultins Ctemi:>any *o.-^nabte (he 
i.**' ”• - ~

Sroup A>cu« spocxBesallx .««»: (he vexalnredL . uridcrtalcinaL 
' , ’ _• **'

.compnsins uruts. tocaoied at Bahadursash. disxnc* of the 
**«. **■.”-• - ' _ - * - - ■

(wxopanx a» the ee>mpsMX_.>dentr/>^ ^seralienol inefTieieticies 

iif- ihana^ns- ecofirapliicaltj/ dispersed. Units. ineiudins 

Int^eesed lesistical oosts. complexities In coordinalion, arid- 

.ehaUezis^* in nntftmtnirring unlfbrinitx in operational pra^ec^

- \'.'By deinersins the Pvuie -Unit, tiw companx "streamline
" ■ -. ■ - - -•- ' ' 

operations .a<^ imptovo'overall cfnciencx-' Sesjegating the-' 

units would enable d>e company to achieve better'cconomies of.

- setde, red^c redixftdoneies. and enhance overall productivitx-' 

demcTBcr is expected to load to cost savings arui improved 

operational per^bnmanee. ‘ - -  • . -<

9. The Applicant Companies have also filed Affidavit in compliance of

provisions of Section 230(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. The relevant excerpt

of the Affidavit reads thus:-

2. That in compliance with Section 230(2) of Companies Act, 2013, I 
hereby disclose the following: *

a) Latest Financial Position of the Comnanv

i. The financial position of the Demerged Compare as -on 31“

March, 2024 on the basis of the latest Audited Financial

Statement Is as under: MhAiyAFlBOTUBUPviuD.

Particulars “ , AmouQt

<P8g'u«-c» in nrhouaan^>

EOTJtTY & LIAniKlTIKS -
Share Capital 34.822.73

Reserves and 1 .dP.S^.OO

Non-current liabilltieci 87.860.86

Curreitt liabilities 3.09.101.62

Total 6.01,359-21

ASSETS

Non-current Assets 2.72.005-13

Current Assets 3.29.363.09

Total 6.01,359.21
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The eeitifi^ true copy of the audited financial statement of the 

Demerged Company as on 31** March, 2^4 is annexed 

herewith and marked as Anntture-BI,

b) That no Investigation or proceeding under the Companies Act, 

2Or3, erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 or under any ocher act is 

pending neither a^inst the Demerged Company nor Resulting 

Company involved in (he present Scheme of Arrangement.

e) That' the Scheme of Arrengsment does not envisage any 

reduction of Capital.

d) Thai (he present scheme of Arrangement is not a scheme of 

Corporate Debt Restructuring os envisaged under Section 230(2) 

C«) of the Act or a sclieme of compromise or 'amalgamation 

under Section 230 of the Act.

3. That tiw aggregate of assets of the Demers^d Company and 

Resuhipg Company will be ^ITtcient to mectliahilities.of Demerged 

Company and Rdsuhing Company in full.

10. In the wake of the aforementioned, we deem it appropriate to dispense 

with the meeting of Unsecured Creditors and Equity Shareholders qua the 

Resultant Company. As far as the Demerging Company is concerned, the 

meeting of the Equity Shareholders is dispensed with. As far as Secured and 

Unsecured Creditors qua the Demerging Company are concerned, we appoint 

Mrs. Rashmi Chopra, Sr. Advocate/Arbitrator (Mob. No. 9810311218), as 

Chairperson to hold the meeting. Mr. Jitendra Arora, Company Secretary 

(Mob. NO.981L505059) who is present in court, is appointed as scrutinizer 

qua the meeting. The fee of the chairperson would be Rs. 75,000/- plus 

expenses and that of the scrutinizer wculd be Rs. 45,000/-.

11. The chairperson would issue the notice for the meeting of the Secured 

and Unsecured Creditors qua the Demerge Company, by issuing notice of 21

CA(CAA)-100/ND/2024
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days. The meeting of the Secured and Unsecured Creditors qua the Demerging 

Company would be held virtually. It goes without saying that the chairperson 

and scmtinizer would ensure that the provision contained in the Companies 

(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, regarding 

holding of the meeting of Secured and Unsecured Creditors is followed.

12. The issuance of the notice to regulators referred to in Section 230(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 would be considered at the time of filing of 2"'* 

Motion Petition.

13. The Applicant Companies would bear the expenses regarding service of 

notice/adherence to the process to be followed by the chairperson and 

scrutinizer in terms of the provisions of the Amalgamation Rules, including 

the publication of notice in terms of the provisions of Section 230(3) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The publication may be made in two leading 

newspapers i.e. Business Standard (Hindi 8s English) in circulation in the area 

where the registered office of both the Demerging and Resultant Companies 

are located. The application stands disposed of.

Sd/- Sd/-
(REENA SINHA PURI) 

MEMBER (T)
(ASHOK KUMAR BHARDWAJ) 

MEMBER (J)

Jitendra/Ruchita
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Gsk & Associates llp 
Chartered Accountants
LLPIN : AAB-1809
(Rfgisirred under The Limited Liability rnrincnhip^Ut. 20«8)

Regd. Office;
8, Isi Flcor, Rani Jhans; Road. 

Motia Khan Industrial .Area, 
New I'-ellti -110055. 

Tei. : 011-23515470-73
E-mail: info@gska3so-;iates,com

Website: www.gskassociates.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on (he Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED 
{“i-.'ie Company") which comprises tiie Balance Sheet as at .March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and 
Less, and statement of sash flows fo.' the year then ended, anc notes to the financial statements, including a 
sunmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information­

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by tie Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31,2024, and profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our aucit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibiliries for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India tegether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
italenients under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our otter ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
Wc believe tha’ the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment were of most significa.tce in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These makers were addressed in the conle.xt of oar 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting cf key audit matters £s per S.A 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is 
an unlisted company.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises die information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial sialements 
anc our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of 
tliis auditor’s report.

Ou- opinicn on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any 
font) of assurance conclusion t.-iereon.

.n connection with our audit of the financial 
dentified above when it becomes available

statements, our responsibility is to read the other informaticn 
and, in doing sc, consider whether the other informationfis
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materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as 
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Respousibility of Management for tbc Financial Statements

Tlie Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and 
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that arc reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

b

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as o going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

ITie Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole arc 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s repart that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is no*, a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or enor and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit Wc also:
• Identify and assess tlie risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of iiternal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estim 
and related disclosures made by management

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
(hat a materiel uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based onlhe audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner tliat achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.
From the matter communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in tlie audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give 
in the Annexure-’’A” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Lxjss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014,

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) oflhe Act.
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company, the company is under exemption category vide MCA notification dated 13th June 2017 
(C.S-R. 583(E)) therefore not commented upon.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position.( except mentioned in note -25)

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or sltare premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entities, 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge anc belief, no funds 
have been received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign 
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or tie like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement.

(v) No dividend declared or paid during the year by the company, therefore compliance of section
123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

(vi) The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 is
applicable from I April 2023. Based on our examination which included test checks, the 
company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the 
year for all relevant transaction recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our 
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tempered with.

For GSK ^Associates LLP

(Anil Kumar Somani) 
Designated Partner 
Membership No. 093521

Chartered Accountants 
(FRN: 013838N/N500003)

Place; New Delhi
Date: 25.06.2024
UDIN: - 2'^0355’2-1

82



Annexure-"A“ lo the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE 
LlMiTED, on the financial statements fortheyearended3l March 2024

-Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the 
financial statements of the company and taking into consideration the information and explanations 
given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, 
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

1. (a)The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.
The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets

(b) Property, Plant & Equipment are physically verified by the management in accordance with 
a regular programme at reasonable intervals. In our opinion the interval is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification.

(c) Based on the audit procedure performed and according to (he records of the Company, the 
title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the 
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the 
name of the Company.

(d) The company has not revalued its Proper^, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both
during the year. '

(e) There is no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any 
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules 
made there under.

II. (a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit, has been physically verified by the management during 
the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and 
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on 
verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more tlian 13% in the 
aggregate of each class of inventory.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in 
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets; In our 
opinion, there are no material discrepancies between the quarterly returns or statements filed by 
the company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account 
of the Company.

in. The company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted 
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, the Provision 
of clause 3(iii) (a) to 3(iii) (f) of the order are not applicable to the company.

SV. The Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 in respect of investments. 
Further, in our opinion, the company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 
185 and section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, guarantees and security.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from 
the public within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions 
of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act,2013; any other relevant provisions of the Act and 
relevant rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the Provision of clause 3(v) of the order are not 
applicable to the company.

VI. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the 
rules made by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed accounts and^ 
records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination'? 
of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.
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Vil. (a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed sututory dues including Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Duty of Customs, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess 
and other statutory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate authorities, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Income Tax, Duty of Custom, Goods and Service Tax and 
Cess were in arrears, as at Sl^March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the 
date they became payable.

(b) There arc no dues of income-tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and services tax, duty of 
customs. Provident fund, Employees' state Insurance and other material statutory dues 
which have not been deposited by the company on account of disputes.

V"| The company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as 
income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as 
income during the year.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender.
(b) The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other 

lender.
(c) All the term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
(d) There is no funds raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term purposes.
(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 

obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
(f) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

X. (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial/further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during tie year. 
Accordingly, clause 3(x) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

XI. (a) Based on the audit procedures adopted and information and explanations furnishec to us by 
the management, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the 
course of our audit.

(b) No Report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the 
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received 
by the company during the year.

;<!!. The Company is not chit fund or nidhi/mutual benefit trust/society. Therefore, the provisions of 
the clause 3 (xii) (a) to 3 (Xii) (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

XIII. All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 138 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of transactions during the year have 
been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
Refer note no.27 to the Standalone financial statements.

XIV. In our opinion and based on our examination the company does not have an internal audit 
system and in not required to have an internal audit system as per companies Aci'2013,'*>. 
Accordingly, the Provision of clause XlV(a) and (b) of the order are not applicable the 
company.
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XV. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with them. Therefore, the provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 
are not applicable to the Company.

XVI. (a) The Company is not required to be register under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, Clause 3(XV1) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The company has not conducting any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. 
Accordingly, Clause 3(XVI) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a core investment company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(XV1) (c.) of the order is not applicable.

(d) The Group has no CIC. Accordingly, Clause 3(XV1) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

XVII. The company has not incurred any cash losses in the Cunent financial year and in the immediately 
preceding financial year.

XVlll. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, Clause 
3{XVIII) of the Order is not applicable.

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and e.xpccted dates of realization of financial assets tnd 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial siatcncnis, our 
knowledge of die Board of Directors and management plans, based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, we opinion that there is no material uncertainty exists as on the 
date of the audit report regarding whether company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We 
further slate that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit repon and we neither 
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fait due.

XX. There is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the companies Act, 2013 pursuant 
to any project. Accordingly, clause 3(XX) (a) and 3(XX) (b) of the order are not applicable.

For GSK & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants

(Anil Kumar Somani) 
Designated Partner ( 
Membership No. 093521

(FRN: 0I3838N/N500003)

*

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25.06.2024
UD?4:-
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ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED

M-439.lst Floor, Guru Ha-xishan Nagar, Paschlm VIhar, New Delhi-110087

accoijnts@alfa-ftexieubes.com,Ph. No,: 01276-268119, 267175, CIN:- U65993DL1996PTC0758B6
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

(All Amounts are in Thousand of Indian Rupees unless other wise stated)

£i:rifi:ant AKOunting Polices &
Notes on Financ'al Statements 1 to 35

Particulars ' Note No. As at 31st 
March,2024

As of 31st 
iya.-ch,2023

1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) St areholde.-'s Rjnds
(OSI’sre Capital 2 34,822 73 34,822.73
(a) Reserves and Surplus 3 1,69,568 00 1,48,987.21

Share Application Money t Pending A lo'.ment)

(!) Non-Current Liabilities
(<1 Long-Term E-orrowings 4 79,565.57 88,986.28
(b) Deferred Tax Lisbilities (Net) 5 8,301.29 7,932.24

(3) Current Labilities
(a) Short-Term Sorrowings 6 1,62,731.54 1,64.250.57
(t| Trade Payables
Total Dutstarding cues of Tiicro enterprises and 
srralieinerprises

7

16,465A6
Total Dutsiai’di'ig cues of otiiar micro enterprises and 
srr.allenterprises 74,584.04 1.08,502.11
(c) Ctner Cur'ent Liabilities 8 17,972.92 21,154.51
(d) Short-Tei m P-ouisions 9 37,347.66 31,818-78

Tota: teiJity & labilities 6,01,359.21 6,05,454.42
II.ASSETS
fj| Ncn-Curreni Assets
Id ‘Property, Plot end Equipment end Intangible assets 10

(i(. Property, Fianl & Equipment 2.65,259.37 2,52,967.02
(ii) Intangible Assets 27.25 81.05
(iii) Capital Work-In-Progress 2,564.58 13,197.62

It) .01g Term Loan; and Advances - 11 3,114-33 2,850.75
(C) Dtner Non Current Assets
(2) Current Assets
(g' Inventories 12 1,38,452.31 1,37,072.64
(t| Trade Receivables
(cj Cash and Cash equivalents

13 1,43,652.65 1,53,975.48

i) Cash and cash equivalents 14.1 6,632.96 3,752.75
I) Other Bank Balt nee 14.2 12,122.92 10,375.27

(d; Short-Term L aars and Advances 15 27,913.90 31,200.09
(e; Other Current Assets 16 567.75 981.73

Tctci Assets 6,01,359.21 5,06,454.42

As per our Report oi oven oato 
For GjK & ASSOCIATES LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Fi-mReg. No.; 013S38N/N50C003-

(CA Anil Kumar Soir ani) 
Des gr ated Partner 
Men-fcership ,Vo.; 093521 
PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 25.06.2024 L
UDiN-^Q0^355 1b

RAJENDRA KUMAR SARDANA SAURA3h~AND0'
MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN. 00732421 DIN. 019S4583

For & On Behalf of Board of Directors of 
ALFA FLEXITUBES PVT. LTD.

.M-
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ALFA FLEXITUBFS PRIVATE LIMITED
M-439,lst Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Pas<:hirn VIhar, New Delhi-110037 

account5(®alfa-flexitubes.com,Ph. No.: 01276-268119,267175, CIN:- U6S993DL1996PTC075886
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON SiST MARCH, 2024 

(All Amojnts are In Thousand ot Indian Rupees unless other wise stated)

Sr. No Particulars Note No Fo,- the year 2023-24 For the year 2022-23

1
II 
III 
iV

V

VI

VII

VIII

IX

X

XI

XII

XIII

XIV

XV

XVI

Incomes:
Revenue from operations
Other Income

H/. Total Revenue (1 +111
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work- 
in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
Employee Benefit Expense
Finance 2cstJ
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Other Expenses

Total Expenses flV)
Profit before exceptional and extraordinar/ 
items and tax

Exceptional Items

Profit before ixtraordinary ite.ni and lax (V - VI)

Extraard nary Items

Profit before tax (Vli - VIII)

Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
(2) Defcired lax (Assets)/ Liabilities

Profit!Loss) from the perid from continuing 
operations

Profit/(Lcss) from discontinuing operations

Tax expense of discounting operations

Profil/(Lc5s) from Discontinuing operations (XII -
XI II)

Profit'(Less) for the period (XI XIV)

Earning per ec.uity share:
(1) Btsic
(2) Dilutee

17
18

19

20
21
22
23
24

(III-IV)

(IX-X)

27

7,02.737.02
5.693.65

6,85,797.38
17,888.30

7,08.480.67 7,03,685.68

4,13.534.88

8.091.60
1,34,309.18

24,108 45 
16,822.29 

1,01,340 88

4,29.707.85

2,228.60
1,14,145.70

20,946.66
18,072.27

1,05,494.46

6,82,024.07 6,90,597 53

26.456.60 13,089 15

26,456.60 13,089.15

-

26,456.60 13,083.15

5,807.58
369.05

5,814.41
(3,703.31)

20,279J6 10,983.04

-

-

20,279.96 10,983.04

5.82
5.32

3.15
3.15

Significant Accounting Policies & 
Notes on Financial Statements Ito 35
As per our Report of even date
For GSK & ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No.: 01383EN/N5a0003'

(CA Anil Kumar Soma ni) 
Designated Partner 
Membership No. : 093521 
PLACE: NEW DELHI 
DATED: 25.06.2024 
uDiN-

For & On Behalf of Board of Directors of
ALFA F.EX1TUBES PVT. LTD.

NEV. OfclBI,

♦
DIN. 00732421 DIN.01994583

RAJENDRA KUMAR SARDANA
MANAGING DIRECTOR

SAURA0H TANDOTU^ 

DIRECTOR
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ALF^ FLEXnuSES PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended 31st March,2024 

accounts@3lfa-fexiijbes.com.Ph. Mo.: 0U7B-;63119, 267175, CIN:- U65993DL1996PTCO7SS8E 
(vl-439.1st Floor, Guru Harklsha i Mager, Paschim Vlhar, New Delhi-1100S7 
(All amcjnu are In Thousand of In J .an Rupees unless oUier wise stated)

Particulars Fcrthe year ended 31st 
March.2024

For the year ended 
3l5t March.?n?R

A. Osh Flo** from Opsrating Activities
Net ^rofit/( j>ssl before extraordirtary items and tax

Adiustmerit’Of;

26,456.60 13,039.15

Dep eciatio". and amoriijation 16.822.29 18,072.27
(Pro-'it)/ Loss on Sale cf Fixed Assets (778.2?) 243.47
Finance Costs 24,108.45 20,946.66
Interest Income (733.80) (986.40)

Ope ating p-ofii/(Lossl balorc Wc.’kirg Capital Changes 65,875.26 51,365.14

Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease In operating assets;
• InventoriBi (1.380.27) (3,469.08)
- Trj-de Receivables 10.312.83 (26,623.78)
• Other Rece.vabics 5,911.55 16,005.91

Adjustment: for increase/(de trease) m operating Dabil.n es;

-Trade Payables (17,452,61) (45,087,28)
-Omer Payables 2,354,12 17,898.25

Cflskgenercreo' hom Qseraxians 65,620.89 10,089.17

Less: -Income Tex Paid (8,126.95) (3,245.53)

Net Cash ge~erited from Operatirig Activities (A; 57,493.94 6,943.66

B. Cush Flow from Investing Aztiv :ie$

Capital Expenditure on Fixed Assets (19,295.74) (10,119.21)
Proceeds frtm sale of Flared Assets 1,007.60 342.25

Inleriist Received 733.80 986.40
Mov--nieati* long tern advances (263.57) •54.90)
'^ovMmcrl i* Njr curnni assets
Metcash generated from Investing Activities (B) (17,817.93) (8,845.46)

C.Cash Flov. fro.Ti Financing Activities
Lo n g Te rm IR) rro wi r^gs (9,420 71) 842.76
Short term Borrewings (1,519.03) 22,742.88
Finance Cost Paid
Proceeds Ircni issue of Share apital(induding Securities Premium)

(24,108.45) (20,946.56)

Metcash generated from Financing Activities (C) (35,048.19) 2,638.98

Net Cash Flow 4.627.84 737.18
Cash and Carn Equivalents al t.ne Esginningof the Year 14,128.03 13.390.85
Cash and Casn Equivsierkts at tne End of the Veer* 18,755.87 14,128.03

Mote::
|i| Th! Cash l;ow Stalemen! rerlecrs the combined cash l ows,pertaining to continuing operations.
(ii) Al figures m brackets are outflows/ decrease.
(Hi) Previous years figures have been regrouperi/rcstated wherever necessary.
(ivl ‘Cash and Cash Equivalents are Cash and Bank balances as mentioned in Mote No, 15

As prr our Rapo't of C’ren date 
For CSX & Associates LLP

(CA«nll KuinarSomanI) 
Designated Partner 
Marr bershlp Mo.: 093521 
Place: New De. hi 
DATED; 25.CS.2024

-ie
:W DELHI7^.

Chan^red Aeccuntanu 
firm Reg. Nc,: 01383EN;N500003^**^

* r r

For & on Behalf of the Board of Directors

KUMAR SAADANA
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIM. 00732421

SAURABHTANDON
DIRECTOR
DIN. 01994583

Xw. *

88

mailto:accounts@3lfa-fexiijbes.com.Ph


ALFAFIEXITUBES(P)ITD
M-439,lst Floor, Guru Harklshan Nagar, Paschim ViFar, New Delhi*llC087

Notes Forming Integral Porto} the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2C24 
{All Amounts are In Thousand of Indian Rupees unless other wise stated}

Note: 2 Share Capital

Sr. No ■Particulars As at 31st 
March,2024

As at 31st 
March,2023

1 AUTHORIZED CAP.TAL
40,00,000 (P.y. 40,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 40,000.00 40,000.00

40,000.00 40,000.00
2 ISSUED . SUBSCRIBED A PAID UP CAPITAL

3482273 (P.Y. 32,82,273) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. Fully paid up 34,822.73 34,822.73

Total 34,822.73 34,822.73—-

(a) Reconciliation of Nuntaer of Shares - t = In Nos In Nos

Opening Shares
Add:- Shares issued during the year

34,82,273 32,82,273
2,00,000

Closing shares 34,82,273 34,82,273

(c) Terms/Rlehcs aRached to Equity Shares:

!b) List of Share holders havine 5% or more Shares Cn Nos!
In Nos In NosName Of Shareholders

Mr. R.K.Sardana

No of Shares 
(% of Shares held) 

Mrs.lndra Sardana

No of Shares 
(% of Shares held) 

Mr.Saurabh Tandon

No of Shares
1% of Shares held) 

Mrs. Pooja Sardana
No of Shares 

(54 of Shares held) 
Mrs. PrIyaAhuja

No of Shares 
(% of Shares held)

7,70,270 
22.12%

4,IS,242 
11.92%

11,76,079 
33.77%

5,22,341 
15.00%

5,22,341 
15.00%

14,66,724 
42.12%

7,63,470 
21.92%

31,75,079 
33.77%

TheCornpany has only ore class of equity shares having a par value ot Rs. 10/- per Share. Each Holdcrof Equity shares is entitled to 
one vote per share, n the event of Liquidation cl ne company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of the company, after distribution of all p.-eferential amounts. The distribution will be-in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders.

|£j) Bonus Shares/Buy Back/'Shares forconsidration other than cast issued during the period of five years immediately 
preceding the financial year ended 31st March, 2024

without payment being received incash- ML
ii) Aggregate number of equity shares as fully [»ld up ay way of bonus shares • NIL
iii) Aggregate number of equity shares bought tac< - NIL
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ALFA FLEXITUBE5 (P) LI U
M-A39,lst Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Pasehim Vihar, New Delhi-110087

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024
(&) Shares hefd by prornotgf.< at the <*nd of ihc year ;•

A$ on 31.03.2024

5 No. NdirsG u( Uiij prouiuler
Cidss of

No. of share at the 
begning o1 the 
your

Chariges during 
the year

No. of share at 
the end of the 
ynar %of rotalshare

% change during the 
yvfli

1 Mr, R.K.Sardana Equity 1'1,66,721 (C,9C,454) 7,70,270 22.12 (20.00)
2 Mn.India 5;drildii4 Equity 7,03,470 (3,43,228) 4,15,242 11.92 (10.00)
3 Mr.Saurabh Tandor^__________________________________________ Equity 11,75,079 - 11,76,079 33.77

Ason 31.03.2023

S No. Name of the promoter
Class of Share

No. of share at the 
begning of the 
year

Changes during 
the year

No. of share at 
the end of the 
year %of Total Share

% change during the 
veer

1 Mr. R.K.Sardana Equity 14,66,724 14,66,724 42.12
1 Mrs.Indra Sardana Equity 7,63,470 7,63,470 21.92
3 Mr.Saurabh Tandon______________________________ Equity 11,76,079 - 11,76,079 33.77 -

” \

1 *
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ALFAFLEXrrUBES |?) LTD
M-43S,lst HoDf. CifuHarksiar Ntgar, Pjschim Vihsf, hew Delhl-llOOE?

Neiet forir.hj Iniesril Port 0/ the Balance Sheet as at 33it IV.orch, 202t 
Note: 3 Rg^erve fi Sufpk t______ _ _________________________

Sr. No Particulars - - -i-. AsaOlst 
Marchs2Q2<-

As at 31st 
March.2023

1

2

Sec uTi tigs PrenTum
Opening Q3Safi>;e
Acd: On is:us of shp^es
Total(Al
Surp us i.g baUncq In ti aternenf of profit ft tess/Uc
Oppr'ing Balance
Acd; RrofiJ for rheparlod
Acd/llass): Adjusm»-nt of eailter year taxes
Total (B)

42,676.01 47,675.0:

47.675.01 47,575.01

1,01,312.20
20,275.96

30C.a3

90,331.97
10,983.04

2.81
1.21.B9:.93 1,01,312.2C

Grand Tout s A*B) l,69,SSt00 1,48.987.21

Note:a Lo-,g Term Bo-ro-^inss____________________________________ _________________ Current Portion_________ Non Current Portion

Sr, No Particulars As al 3151
March,2024

As at 3Xst 
March,2023

As at list 
M3rch,2024

As at 31ft 
March, 203 3

1
Secured
Frcm Sank
•Rupee Loan 'Refer Notes 4.2(31, lb),O.(d|&€
-Fore gn Ct rrecy Ictn (Relen Notes 4.1 (b)

9,263.70
17,416.94

10.17177
15,763.84

16.150.39
45 655 27

18,979,9/
53.885 99

Tolal(A| 26.680 64 25,935.61 61815.57 74,255.9*

1 
2

Unsecured
Lofns & Advances f-jm Rc.alcd Aariies {Rr.'er no les no. 4.2{a})
Frozn Bankf Peler nsres no • 4.2tt>) ft © 1.92033 3,196.03

17 750 CO 12,800.0:
1,9213:

luul'U) 1.92033 3,196.03 17.750.00 B720 3-

Total _________________________________________________ 23.600.97 29,131.64 79.565,57 88,93;.2c

Note;
Tern Loen Referrec abc'/e tc the extent of:

4 II
a) lls.:s:7C.72nqiiseixJ(Pi.'e.ir Rs 26028.51 the usandl Including :t rrent meturiiies of long term debts & loan received inde-66Ct -.VCTL rron State Oanl of 

Ind a jfeDr'n'a'Ysacjrec b/first nerri passu chstfc against hypo:-ecation of entire current assets (present and future), donslst ng o'raw mate iais. stores 
Stock-in ptocess anofinis-ieo goods lying in faetdry premises as woil as in transit, documeniry Inlind and export bills books debts. Fixed Oeposs;;, Mutual F.ncs 
etc ol the Company snd lurther collateral secured against!) first Charge by equitable mortgage of Factory Land and Bui dirsg situated at P ol Kr, 1726, Ml*, 
Bantdurgarh and Plot nc-, l'’c.3,MIE, Behdurgaih 21 Equitable mcr.gage of freeehold residential flat No. M-459, FF at Hindustan Co-op House Building Society 
in Guiuhsrtishpnni'ar. aatcnlm Vihar, Oellti inthe ntme of Sh Rajender Kumar Sardana. 3) Equitable mortgage of residential prope.Ty situateC atD-146, 2nd 
floor, ■JewRaiiiidef.'agar,d6 hi in the name of ih Sau-abh landen 41 Equitable mortgage of factory Land and Building at Vil'tge -Tandaheri, Tensil- 
Bartadurgarn Dittt-, lajjar, Htryana of the company, besides personal guarantee of director Smi Indira Serdana, Sh, Saurjbh far,dor, Mr. Priya A.huja & Ms 
Pooja Sardana andSr- X Sdrdana.

y Rs.eS6O5 21thojsa- d (Pr. Yetr Rs.71M9.82 thousard ) including current maturit.es of long tern-debts From Axis Bank ire primary tecured b-.first parn pass, 
charge against Kypctiecolion of entire current assets [present and future), consisting of raw materials, stores, stock-in-crocess and ilnishcd goods lying in 
factory premises as-Mtll as in transit, documeniry Infand and expert bills books debts. Fixed Deposits, Mutual funds etc. of ths Company ard futhcrcollaiiral 
secured agan'i 1) First Cl-arg! by equitable morlEagecf Factory U-nd and Building silualedal Pict No. 1726, MIE, Bahacsirg;. h and Plot no. IT. 3, MIE, 
Babdu.garb 2) Equitiole mortgage of fieeehcld resieentlal flat Nd. .M-439, FF at Hindustan Co-op House Building Society in ixuruhartishan nags-. Pasrh’im 
Viiiar, >}|bi in the name-af Sh Rajender Kumar Sardana. 31 Equitable mortgage of residential property situated at D-I46, 'nd tioor. New Ral-ndc- Nagar, del-i in 
the name of Sh Saursah Tundun 41 Equitable mo-tgage of factory land end Building at village Tan Jaheri, Bahadurgarh of the company, beside-., personal 
guarantee of direciCTsh. R.K. Sardana, Smt. Indira Satdana. Sh. Saurabh landon, Mrs Priya Ahu|e & Ms Pooja Sardana.

Cl Rs.3il 54 thoLsrnd ;=r.'rear 523.23 thousand 1 Including current maturities of long tern debts From Indusind Bank ltd are secured against respective Vehicle.

d) Rs 1369.74 tl.cuund (I’r Year Nil) Including current maturities of bng tern debts From SBI are secured against rcspectN? Vehicle.

el RcpFyment profl e o' lei.m lo:n secured Is listed below

Ban</loan fjtlla. FY 2024-25 FY 2025-28 From 2023-29
Axis ’ank-ll 1800.» 4023.00 0.03
Axis 5ank-r:n. 17416.34 45665.27 0.00
State Bank o'Ind a - fCT.( tJECL) 7181.54 10989.18 0.00
Induj nd Bant 192.31 159.23 0,00
SBI (5 VE CAR LNl ;4:c-22.934S2| 389.35 978.89 0.00

4.2) --------------------------- -------------—------

Lojn S Advarcss from roldted sanies of Rs. 17750 thousand Incluc -is Rs 6650 thousand from diretlors. (P.Y. Rs. llBOOthjusand includes 
3) Rs. 7 30-J thObSdn i lak® n from D i recto rs)

3) Term Loan of fts. 384.’3 Bysiness lean taken'rom HOfCKank Lid. & Rs. 935.59 thousand taken from ICIO Bank Lid.
c) nepayrrieni profile "enn luen un«s«cufcd is listed below :*

Sank/loan A/c Nq. FY 2024-25 FY 2025-28 Frcn*. 2023-29
KOFO Bjok 984.-3 0.00
ICiCI ^-ik_______________________________________________________ 935.59 c.oo
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AIFAFLEXIIUBES |P| LTD 
M-439,lsl Floor, Guru Harlclihao Nifar, Paschim VIhar, New DcIFMIOOS?

Notes faming Integral Pon oj (he Solanee Sheet as al 31st Monh, 1020
Note: 5 Deferiea Ton Uablllty ,'Net)

Sr. No Particulars As at 31st 
March.2024

As at 31st 
March 2033

1 Deferred Tax Liability (Nat) 
Related to fixed Assets & others 8,301.29 •’,932.24

Total 8,301.29 7.932.24

Note I 6 Short Term Borrowings

Sr. No Particulars As at list 
March,! 024

As at 31st 
March 2023

1 Loan Regayable on Demand
Secured
- From dank

Woidiing Capital (Refer Now 6.i:

- From Other
NSIC Ltd (Refer Note6.2J

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt (Refer notes no-4]

1,34,130.58

2e,6C'O 31

1,30,197.27

‘•,921.67

29,151.64

Total ____________________________________________ 1,62.731.54 J,U.2SO,5?
Noip: 6.1
Wartiinj Capital Fnpllities of Rs.94737,63 Ihousand I Previous year Rs.J123.67 thousand) from State bink ol India and fts 29712.88 
thousand front Axis Bank ltd (Prevlaus Yea • ~ Rs. 19673.59 thousand^ are P'lmarit/Secured against First ParrJ Passu Charge 
Hypothecation e.ntirc current assets (prese.nt and future], ccnsisiirgof rawmatsrials, stores, !toek-in-pro:css and fiiished goods 
lying in factory pieroisss as well as ji transll, documentry Inland and export bills books debts, =ixed Deposits, Mutual Funds ett. of 
the Company and further collateral secured against 1) First Charge by equitable mortgage of Factory Land and 3uilding situated at 
Plot No 1726, MIE, Bahadurgarnand Plot no. 17~3, MIE, Bahdurgaih 2) Equltaole mortgage of freeeholdresidential Flat No. .^- 
439, FF at Hindustan Co-op House Building Society In Guruharkishon nagar. Paschlm VIhar, Delhi in the name of Sh Rajender Kumar 
Sardana. 3) Equitable mortgage Of residential property situated al 0-145,2:id floor. New Rajinder Nagar, deihl n the name of Ih 
Saurabh Tendon 41 Equiiablo mcrtgage ol factory Land and Building at village Tandaheri, Bahadurgarh of the compiny. bctidrs 
personal guarantee at director Smt Indira Sardana, Sh. Saurabh Tandon, Mrs Pfiya Ahuja. Ms Pooja Sardana & sF. F.K. Sardara

Note: 6.2

Raw material assistance scherne O" Rs. N l (Previous year Rs 4,921.67 thousand) secured against bank guraniee of Rs 
10,000 tliousand In fevour of NSIC Ltd.

Note : 7 Troaes Poyobte

Sr. No Particulars As at 31st 
March,!024

As at list 
Mafch,’o:3

1 SuQdiv.CrK>:&fS

al Total Outstanding dues of micro c.nterpr.ses and smallentsrprises 16.465.46

bl Total Outstandrng dues of othar rr cro erterprises and srraKerterprises 74.584,34 1.08 SC2 11

Total ________S1.O43.SO 1,08.502.11

7.1 The details ofamountouciandlng to Micro, Smail and Mscium Enterprises based on 
available rnformaiion w th the co.tipany Is as under;

Particulars
Principal amount due and ; amainirtg unpaid
Interest due cn above and the unpaid interest
Intereest paid
Payment made beyond :hs appointed day during the year
Interest due and payable tor the period ol delay 
interest accrued and remaining unpaid
Amount of further interastremanlnlng due and payable in 
succeeding years

As At
31st March, 2024 c-lst Marc t,2023

Dues to Micro and Small Cntercrises have been determined to the trslent such ponies nave been Identlfien on the basis of 
Information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

■'f ~-e-■
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ALFA FLEXITUtseS (P) LTD
M-433,lst riooi. Guru Hurkiihan Nagar, Paschim Vihai. New UeIIii-110U87

MAte< Forminj} Integral Pari of the Balance Sheet oj ot 3Jji Mvi i.(,, i02-?
nrhf-rfiitc; Ai a t T1 .u M^. U., 2024

schedule; As aL31st March. 2»2a

Particulars O'lOl.Ki'Iiiig furffllloivinn parindifrcir. .In.: <iau cl uu.hkuiI
. .................   KH.I

Less than j year 1.-2 years 2-0 years More chan 3 years Total

(i)MSME __ __________________ 16A65.'I6 16465^6(ii) Others 74584.04 74S84 04(lii) Disputed dues- MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others________ __ - 1

j£==7::?7=r—________________

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
(Amount in Rs.)

Less than lyear 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(0 MSME
(ii) Others 107351.41 22-64 867.48 2S0.S8 10850211
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME_____________________
fi«) Disputed dues - Others . - . .. . •
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ALFAFLEXITUEESfP; ,TD
M'439,1st Floor, Suf jHarkishan Nagar, Pasehitn Vihar, New DeIhM • 0387

Notes Forming Jrtegrol Pa/i of the Balonct Sheet os at 31st March, 2024 
Note; 8 Other Current Liabilities

Sr. No Particulars AsatSlst 
March,2024

As at 31st 
March,2023

1 Advance Fron Customers ' 3.638.59 6,615.22
2 Statutory Dues 4.032.23 5,881.73
3 Other; Expense; Payable 10,302.03 8,657.56

Total 17,972.92 21,154.51

Note: 9 Short Term Provisions

Sr. No Particulars As at 31st 
lylarch,2024

As at 31st 
March,2O23

Provision for emolovees benefit
1 Gratuity pay; ble 17,166.58 17,343.73
2 Leave Salary payable 

Other Provision
14,373.50 8.660.54

1 Provison fo' Incorne Tax 5,807.58 5,814.41
Total 37,347.66 31,818.78

:ELHI
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FY20U-2<

Cross Bloc>(
Pepretiaton Nel Glock

Particulars

30,850 30.850
30,850 30,650

1.12.236 6,586 1.18,822 8,790 3,757 12.5*7 1.06,275 1.03,446
3

1431.673,
1360.28

5,674 5,682 2.859 350 3,209 2.473 2.815

9.559 2.152 10,335 7,581 755 1,217 7,159 3,176 1,976
6.

1J2C 425 2,251 860 156 1,016 1,234 9t>6

986 91 1J76 708 106 814 262 278
TOTAUA) 3.93JO2 29,929 2307 440,6U 1.40J34 16,367 2J77 134,324 2,66300 2,52,967

TOT*1(61

III

6,001 2,565

lUIAlV 13,198 6,001 16.634 7,565
2365 13,198

1.54.641fPrevfavs YeofI
1,413152

ggmgujarj
Computers

sjjnJIurj^^QUuro^ 
futnltuiB& Flnures

IVOVrAon 
31.03.20H

Value oj the 
end Jt.03.2024 VYi 'V at on 

31.03.2023

*£>2^yiicig£
/chki«(C>0

value at the 
heglnnlng 

01.04.2023

Total (A<I><L| lUuiieiil 
Year)

Addition 
during (he 

year

Addition during 

the year

Oedualan 
/A^uitmen 
t during the 

year

fleduction 
during the year

Value at the 
end 

31.03.2023

5R. 
No Value at tne beginning 

0104 2023

Note: 10 Profierty, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation as per Companies Act, 20t3-5traighl Une Method 

(All Amounts «ro In Thoutanri nt Indian Rupee. unUe. otlnr. nl.u .(aluU)

81
81

10.0*9
6.566

5*5 
545

516 
516

27
27

46* 
*6*

6,612
6.566

545 
5*5

2.577
«95^

54 
5*

6,612 
a.586

4.23,733
4.07,297

22!S^aidf!5JSBS. 
office Equipments

2.66,2*6
2.74.383

35,930 
10,477 2.68.692

2.66,2*6

1,40,998
1,33,076

19,441
10,639 I

16,* 20 
17,670

1,10,363 
5,15* 
2,061 
4,452

1/37,378 
4,079 
3,572 
4,708

4.07,24*
*.07.459

2.26,6*8 
9,660 
5,763 
9316

10,268 
427 
151 
356

2,11,106
7,519 
5,699 
81)47

16,974 
2,1*1 

____65 
1,469

1,16,285 
4,506 
3,723 
5,064

2j>3jcr^jl«l£ 
Freehold land 
land

£|»n^nj^gulgrMrits_^  ̂
Plant t, Machlneiy 
DIet&Moukit_____________
Electric Inttallatlon t flttJn<t 
Tods Equipments

1,03,728 
3,4*0 
2,127 
3,339

CegltaMWod^n^groeress 
Plain <t Meeninerv
Buildint WIP

IWTAMGIBIE A5SCT: 
Sultwsie

2 BulMlne_______
Eactory Bulding

★ I N&iy 
.QV^SwTceiH
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ALFA FLEXITUBES (P) LTD
M-433,:st Floor, Gu'u Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-110087 
Notes Forming Integral Parc of the Balance Sheet as et 31st March. 2024 

(All Amounts are in Thousand of Indian Rupees uni ass otherwise slated) 
Note: 11 Leng Term Loans and Advances
Sr- 
No Particulars As at 31st 

March,2024
As at 31st 

Mafch.2023

1
(Unsecured, considered good]
Security Deposit 3,114,33 2.850.73

Total 3,114.33 2.850.75

Note: 12 Inventories (As Taken Valued & Certified by the Management)
Sr. 
No Particulars x . . ■ . As at 31st 

Mafch,2024
As al 31st 

March 2023
1 Rivj Meterial 44,530.43 51 946.83
1 '/iZork-ir-Progress/SeiT.l- Finished Goods 75,195.89 7C 652.0-
3 -inished Goods 5,724.35 2 166.63
4 Stores & Spares, packing material etc. 13,002.22 10 065 60
S Goods-in-transit 2.231.51

Total 1,38,452.91 1.37,072.64

Note: 13 Trade Receivab.es
Sr.
No Particulars As at 31st

March,2024
As at 31st 

Merch,2023
f Unsecured . Consideied sood) ~ 1.—

1 Trade receivable considered good-secured
2 Trade receivable considered good-Unsecured 1,42,911.36 1,53 224.IS
3 Trade receivable whi.ch having significant increase in credit risk 751.29 751,25
4 Trade receivable- credit impaired

Total 1,43,662.65 1,53,975.48

96

Receivab.es


I .....HI I 1 n_

(Anwiuhl ill Pl]

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More ihanSYears

1,?7,719.7tJ 5,671 .‘in 5,128.2S 1,42,489

472.66 423

l£ss than 6 
Months

2.23P.B!
(.ij Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good
^hHlndisputcd Trade Receivables - which have signiRcant incre.i.sp in credit risk 
juiLbndisputcdTradc Receivahles ~ credn impaired
(w] Disputpil Trade Receivaliles-eiinsiOered good______ ________
Iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - wliich have significant increase in credit risk

|vi) Disputed T rade Receivables - credit impaired" 

Outstanding for following perinds from due date of payment

6 MuntliS'l

ALFA FLEXITUBES (P) LTD

M*439,lst floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar. Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-310087 
miiERgreivoMo aeolnn schedule; As at 3ril Mai dr 2024 

i’aniculars

Total

1,788.47

Particulars Outstanding far following periods from due date of paymenr
Less titan 6 

Months 6 Mniitlis-1 year 1.2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years
Total

[I] Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good _________
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant Increase in credit risk
(lii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired_________________________
|iv) Ulsputed Trade Recelvables-considcrcd good__________
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-which have significant Increase In credit risk 
(vl) Ulsputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

2,155.98 ________ 1273.83 18,649.69

422.66
7S1.29

lead?Receivable agelngscheduleiAsat31stMarch.2023

2
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ALFA FLEXITU8ES (P) LTD
M-439,lst Flocr, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Dehl-110087
Note; 14.1 Cash & Cash Equivalent______

Note: 14.2 Other Bank Balances

Sr.
No Particulars As at 31st 

March,2024
Asstllst 

March.3023

1 Cash-in-Hjnd 110.66 25.962 Bala.nce with Bank
-In Current Accounts 6,522.30 2,476.80
•Fixed Deposit with 3ank (As Margin Money including interest accrued

3
thereoni - 1,250.00

6,632.96 3,752.76

Sr.
No Particula.-s As at 31st 

M3rch,2024
As at 31st

March, 2023

Fixed Deposits »14.2
1 (With Maturity More Than 3 Months) 9,622.92 10.375.27
2 Mutual Fund 2,500.00 -

—" ... - . - ____________ 12,122.92 10375.27

Note 14.2: Fixed Deposits heldwilt Bank as margin monies.

Note :15 Short Terms Loans and Advances
Sr.
No Particulars As at 31st

March,2024
As atSlst

March,2023
(Unsecured, Consicered good)

1 Advance to Suppliers 2,081.03 2,452.16
2 Advance to EmpIcyeesSt/others and Other receivables 343.45 373.89
3 Advance Income Tax/TDS/TCS/MAT 5,873.08 5,259 71
4 Ba ance With .Revenue Authorities 19,616.34 25,114.33

Total 27,913.90 31,200.09

Note:16 Other Current Assets
Sr, 
No Particulars - As at 31st 

Narch,2024
As at 31st

March,2C23

1 Prepaid Expenses 491,01 523.C3
2 Deffercd revenueexpreses 401.97
3 Expenses recoverable Ih.lS 56.73

lotal 567.76 981.73

E If '
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ALFA FLEKITUBES (P) LTD
M-433,lst Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-110087 
Notes For-ning Part of the Profit & Loss Accounts os o'. 31st March. 2024 

(All Amounts are in Thousand of Indian Rupees unless other wise stated)

Note - 17 Reven jefrom Operations

•Export includes Deemed Exoort

Sr. 
No r ■ Particulars For the year 

2023-24
For the year 

2022-23
1 Sale of products (S S Hose & Connector) • Domestic 4,08,987.52 3,39,534.34

- Export* 2,93,799.50 3,46,263.04
Total ______ _________________ 7,02,787.02 6.85,797.38

Nose: 18 Other Income
Sr.
No Particulars For the year 

2023-24 ■
For the year 

2022-23
i Export Benefit 4,113.16 6,762.05
2 Interest Income 733.80 986.40
3 EPF SubsId/received {PMPRY) 68.42 466.18
4 Freight Outward (Sales) 375,83
5 Foreign exchange difference income 9,227.63
6 Prof t on sale o- fixed assets 778.27
7 Other Misc Income - 70.22

Total _____________________ 5,693.65 __  17,888.30

Note; 19 Cost of Material Cor.sumed
Sr.
No

*■' Particulars , For the year 
2023-24

For the year 
2022-23

a)
Opening Stock 62,012.49 56,025.54

1 Purchase ol Raw, Packing Material and Stores etc 
(Indi'ding Freight)

4,09,055.05 4,35,695.80

4,71,067.54 4,91,721.34
Closhe Stock 57,532.65 62,012.49
Total 4,13,534.88 4,29,707.85 |

Note: 20 Chartge in Inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress Jnd stock-in-trade
Sr.
No Particulars For the year 

2023-24
for the year 

2022-23
1

2

Inventories at the beginning of the year 
Finished Goods
Work In progress

Total(A)
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods
Work In progress

Total.B)

2,166.63
70,662.01

5,175.75
69,881.49

72,828.64 75,057.24

5,724.35 i
75,195.89

2,166.63
70,662.01

80,920.25 72,828.641 Net(A-B) 8,091.60 2,228.60

Note : 21 Err.ployement Benefit Expenses
Sr.
No Particulars .'ortheyear 

2023-24
For the year 

2022-23
1 Sclarles and Wages and other benefits 1,24.548.77 1,06,034.83
2 Contribution to PF 4,262.26 3,822.72
3 Staff Welfare Expenses 5,498.15 4,288.15

Total 1,34,309,18 1,14,145.70

1
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AlFAfUXITUBES (PHTD
M-439,lst Floor, Guru Harklshan Nagar, Paschini Vihar, New OelFil<ia087 
Notes Forming Part cf the Pnflt & toss Aecoun's os at SlsI March, iJJO 
Note ;22 Finance Cost
Sr.
No Particulars , Fortheyear 

2023-24
For the year 

2022-23
1 Interest on Borrowings 19,148.24 16,964.28
2 Other Borrowing ccsts 2,685.11 3,982,38
3 other Interest 2,275.10

Total___________ 24,108.45 20,946.66

Note:23 Depreciation & Amortitatlon Cost
Sr.
No Particulars Fortheyear 

2023-24
for the year 

2022-23
1 Oepreciailon 16,420.32 17,670.30
2 Deferred Revenue exp. W/off 401-97 401.97

Total 16,822.29 18,072.27

k-

Nate:!^ OtiierFnpenses

* Payment to Auliltor

Sr.
No Particulars Fcr the year 

2023-24
Forthe year 

2022-23

Manufacturing Expe rises

1 Power & Fuel Consumed/Electricity chg. 13,556.17 13,567.63
2 Plant Repair & Maintenance 8,705.49 9,433.12
3 Ouilding Repair & Maintenance 907.36 446.11
4 lob work charges 8.939.76 5.833.97

Administrative and Other eipenes

1 Travelling Expenses I'nluding Foreign Travcilingl 2.969.65 3,584.09
2 Insurance 860.23 8S6.44
3 Repair & Maintenance (Others) 725.58 614.74
4 Vehicle Running & Maintenence 1,682.87 1,633.27
5 Other Misc. Expenses 55.53 230.11
6 Computer Repa r 8i Maht Exp. 146.66 152.13
7 Postage & Courier Expenses 320.95 162.24
8 Printing 81 Stationery 271.73 273.57
9 Telephone & Internet Expenses 476.09 435.79

10 Rent.Rates & Taxes 9,208.57 8,867.53
11 Legal & Professional Charges 4,189.25 2,407.52
12 Security charges 2.873.86 2,350.73
13 Payment to Auditor" 531.25 396.00
14 Foo & Subscriptions 144.2S 120.61
IS Loss on Forward Contracts (Net) 383,95 3,111.30
16 Misc Balance w/olf 8,909.45 5,313.69
17 £CGC Pfcmjum 130.51 303.19
18 1 OSS on sale of export license 55.24 440.21
19 Misc. Statutory payrrenis 1,453.12 84.61
20 Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 243.47
23 GST Penalty 208.88
24 Foreign exchange dif-'erence 8,691.37

Selling and Distribution Expenses
*

1 Tesiing Charges 232.27 193.54
2 Advertisement 5 Publicity 614.93 857.79
3 Loading S, Unloading Charges 1,987.38 1,230.42
4 Late delivery charges 44.47
5 Commission 2,552.68 2,878.04
6 Freight Outward 19.554.79 38,428.13

Total 1,01,340.88 1,05,494.46

Sr.
No Particulars forthe year 

: 023-24
For (he year 

2022-23
1 Audit Hees 300.00 300.00

Company Law Matter; (ROC Filing Fees, Certification &
2 other matters/Reimburse.ment) 231.25 96.00

Total 531.25 396-00

(>•1 newchhJo
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ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

NoteiOl Accounting policies / compliance of Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of 
■Chartered Accountants of India.

(1) AS 1: Disclosure of accounting policies
These financial statements have been prepared to comply with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP), including the Accounting Standards notified 
under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention.

(2) AS 2: Valuation of inventories
Raw Material, Spares parts & Consumables and Goods in Transit are valued at W. Avg. basis.

Wcrk-in-Progress/Semi-Finished Goods are valued at cost.

Finished gooes arc valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is less.

Scraps are valued at net realizable value.

■'3) AS 3: Cash flow statements
indirect Method is used for preparing the Cash Flow Statement as prescribed in Accounting 
Standard (AS;-3.

14) AS 4: Contingencies and Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date
There are no significant events occurring after the Balance Sheet date that materially affect the 
financial statements for the current year.

(5) AS 5: Net profit or loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies 
All items of income and expense in the period are included in the determination of net profit for 
the period, unless speci.ncally mentioned elsewhere in the financial statements or is required by an 
Accounting Standard.

Exceptional item is the transactions which due to their size or incidence are provided separately 
disclosed in st.atement of Prefit & Loss.

'6) AS 7; Accounting for Construction Contracts
The above standard is not applicable to the Company as it is not engaged in the business of 
construction.

(7) AS 9: Revenue recognition
income of the company is derived from sale of products and is net of sales returns, hade and cash 
discounts.

*r'
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Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of 
ownership to the buyer, it can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect ultimate 
collection.

Domestic Sales are recognized on the basis of invoices raised and exclude sales return and 
adjustment for discount if any.

Export Sales are recognized on the basis of sales invoices raised and removal of goods from the 
factory premises.

Interest incomes are recognised using the time proportion method based on the rates implicit in 
the transaction.

(8) AS 10: Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if 
any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized unHl the property, plant and 
equipment are ready to use, as intended by Management. Depreciation is provided on Straight 
Line Method based on the useful life defined in the Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013.
'ITiere is no significant variance in the useful life between the components of assets (whose cost is 
significant in relation to total cost of respective assets) and the useful life of respective assets 
Hence, the depreciation has been computed for the whole of assets.

The gross blocks of fixed assets are shown at the cost of acquisition which includes taxes, duties 
(net of excise duty credit availed) and other identifiable direct expenses incurred upto the date the 
asset is pul to use.

Capital work in progress of plant & machinery Rs. 2564.577 thousands not yet capitalized.

Bonowing costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets which takes substantial period of time to ge: 
ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets 
are ready :o be put to use.

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment are capitalized only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the statement of Profit & Loss when 
incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial 
statements upon sale or retirement of the assets and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in 
the statement of profit & loss.

(9) AS 11: Accounting for the effects of changes in foreign exchange rates
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on
the date of the transj that approximates the actual rate at the dale of the transaction.
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the yearend are restated at year end rates. In 
case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the 
yearend rate and rale on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the 
premium paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract.

Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except in case of long term liabilities, where they 
relate to acquisition of fixed assets, in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such 
assets.

(10) AS 12: Accounting for Government grants
The company is receiving subsidy from Government during the year. The company is receiving 
EPF contribution from Government under PMRPY Scheme and same incentive is being shown in 
other income.

Duty draw back are recognized on the basis of export invoice issued and removal of goods from 
the factory.

Export benefits are recognised on shipment basis and on reasonable certainty of collection.

(11) AS 13: Accounting for Investments
The company has not held any investment.

(12) AS 14: Accounting for amalgamations
This standard is not applicable as there was no amalgamation during the year.

(13) AS 15: Accounting for Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the 
services rendered by employees are recognized as an expense during the period when the 
employees render the services. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated 
absences.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays 
specified contributions to a separate entity The Company makes specified monthly contributions 
towards Provident Fund and Pension Scheme. The Company's contribution is recognized as an 
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the 
related service.

Defined benefit plans
Provision for gratuity has been made as per Gratuity Act.

The cornjisny has an optional scheme of either en-cashing the leave at credj^' ' be time of

(W NEWOOWiy,
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retirement or availing the leave at credit before retirement. The provision of outstanding earned 
leave has been provided.

Post employment and other long term employee benefits are being recognized as an expense in 
the profit and loss account on the basis of provision made.

(14) AS 16: Borrowing costs
Interest on borrowings to finance fixed assets are capitalised only if the borrowing costs are 
attributable to the acquisition of fixed assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
its intended use. Expenditure incurred on alteration / temporary constructions is charged off as 
expenditure under appropriate heads of expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in 
which it is incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in 
connection with the borrowing of funds.

(15) AS 17: Segment reporting
The Company operates in the same segment which is subject to similar risks and returns.

(16) AS 18: Related party disclosures
Disclosures of transactions with the related parlies as defined in the Accounting Standard are 
given in Note no. 27, of the notes to accounts

(17) AS 19: Accounting for Leases
The Company has recognized the leased payments under operating lease as an expense in the 
statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Disclosure of lease rentals 
payables given in Note No. 33 of the notes to accounts.

The company has not entered into any financial lease.

(18) AS 20: Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are disclosed in the Profit and loss Account. Basic earnings per shares is 
computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding 
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted 
average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year, 
except when the results would be anti-dilutive. There is no diluted earnings per share as there are 
no dilutive potential equity shares.

(19) AS 21: Consolidated financial statements
The above standard is not applicable to the company as it does not have any subsidiary company.

(20) AS 22: Accounting for taxes on income
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Current income tax is measured as the amount 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income tax Act, 1961. 
Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current year timing differences between taxable 
income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.
The company reviews carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each balance sheet date, The 
company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred lax asset to the extent that it is no longer 
reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income 
will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is 
reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be. 
that sufficient future^xable income will be available.
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(21) AS 23: Accounting for Investments in associates in Consolidated Financial Statements 
The above standard is not applicable to the Company.

(22) AS 24: Discontinuing Operations
The Company has not discontinued any operations during the year.

(23) AS 25: Interim Financial Reporting
The above standard is not applicable to the Company.

(24) AS 26: Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates and 
include amounts added on revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if 
any, The cost of intangible assets comprises its purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, net charges 
on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable 
to the intangible assets.

Intangible Assets
These are amortized as under:-

Particulars Amortization

Computer Software over the period of 5 years

(25) AS 27: Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures
The above standard is not applicable to the Company.

(26) AS 28: Impairment of Assets
At the Balance Sheet date, an assessment is done to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment in the carrying amount of the Company's fixed assets. If any such indication exists, 
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment loss recognized in 
prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable 
amount.

(27) AS 29; Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when ±cre 
is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflo w of 
resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in point no. 25 of notes on 
accounts. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

*
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ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

NOTE: 25 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for):

There are no Contingent liabilities, during the year 2023-24 except mentioned as under: -
a) Outstanding Bank Guarantee of Rs.6224.23 Thousand (Previous year Rs. 9037.00 Thousand)
b) Liabilities on account of letter of credit are Rs.1659.78 Thousand (Previous year Rs. 30093 00 

Thousand)
c) Liabilities on account of TDS outstanding demand of Rs. 97.58 Thousand (Previous year Rs.97.58 

Thousand)

d) The company has issued the legal notice or filed suits against the following debtors in view of 
amount yet to be received from them:-

S. No. Faitj' .Nainr Amount Involved (Its 
in (iKiu.tand.)

Amount Invoked (Rs. 
In thousHRd)

Status RS on dal? of 
.SiPIlitIo of nipt...... .

31.U3.2024 31.03.2023
1. India Flex Tndusiries Pvt. Ltd. 391.55/- 39'.. 55/- Suit Pending
2, M/.s Finz Flex Industries 422.67/- 422.67/- Decree in favor hi the 

Company along Aiih ccai of die Sun 
OfRt. 26 470,'-

3. M/s. Accu.-alc Hydraulics Engg. 359.74/- 359.74/- Nolice has been issi.cd jul yei lo be 
received by Part*

NOTE: 26 Related party disclosure as per Accounting Standard 18

a) Parties where control exists: NIL

b) Other parties with whom the company has entered into transactions during the year:-

0 
iO

ii)

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Saurabh Tandon - Director
Mrs. Indra Saidana - Director
Ms. Pooja Sardana - Director
Mrs. Priya Ahuja - Director
Mr. Rajendra .<umar Sardana- Director (Resigned on 01.07.2023)

Relatives of BZey Management Personnel

Mrs. Asha Arora - Sister of a Director
Mrs. Shama Cliugh - Sister of a Director

X-

Mrs. Shivangi Charan Tandon - Spouse of a Director

n „ A, ,,
★
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AIFAFUXITUBES (Fj LM.

ALFA FUXnUBES PVT. LTD.
Dhelosure of ^ctaled party transaction for the P.Y. 2023.24 Annemre -I AH amount are in Thousanq

Key Management Per&onei Designation Remuneration Interest Rent Unsecured loan 0/s Remuneration O/s interest O/s
2023-24 2O22«23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 31*03-2024 31 03-2023 31-03-2024 31-03-2023 31'03-2024 31-03*2023

Saurabh Tandon Director 8/00.00 7.543.37 398.60 192.00 3,3S0.(» 1,600.00 451,20 362,97 90 4S
Indra Sardana Director 6,500.00 4.291.80 202.05 72.00 480.00 480.00 1.700 00 600.00 30009 21S 93 43 90
Fooia Sardar*!^ Dirocto' 10,600.00 .3.300.01 108.31 306.00 2.CC0.00 7C7,C4 27C.C3
PriyaAhujO Oirector 3.200.00 roso.oo 132.00 102.00 1.000.00 tcoo.co 2CC.57 1C7.C0 43,20
Rajendra Kumar Sardana Director 1.600,00 8.625,47 626.40 174.00 1.4SO.OQ 366.68 ......
Total _________________________0 3M00 25748.2«S| 1S22.297 936| 480 480| £650 7800 1787.5 1389.071 179.55

Relative of Key Management Persenel Designation Prof Exp. /Remunenilon (lU-l Interest Rent Unsecured loan O/$ Remuneration O7$ Interest O/s
4U44-44 2022'23 2023*24 2U44-44 2V44-44 2022*23 31*03*2024 31*03*2023 31*03*2024 31-03-2023 31*03*2024 31-03-2023

Asha Arex? , Sister of Director 0 0 175.5 175 5 0 0 laro 1300 0 0 39 487 0
ShamaChug Sister of Pireetof 0 0 135 101.2S 480 480 lOCO 1000 0 0 30.375 0
ShivanelCharanTandon... . Spouse of Director 5600.004 3080.004 324 224 0 0 2700 2700 291.836 0 72 9 0
SuiniL AhuJj Spuulvol Oirpctor 4300,006 1I20.CO3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
RK Sardars ' Spouse of Director 1800.00 0 0 0 0 0 6100 0 0 0 164 7 0
TirtoU Nath Chug Brother in law of Director 0 0 0 33.75 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 11600.01 6200.007 634.5 634.5 480 480 11100 5000 291.836 0 307/62 0
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Ml’. Sumit Ahuja - Spouse of a Director
Mr. TirlokiNath Chug - Brother in Law of a Director
Mr. Rajendra Kumar Sardana - Spouse of a Director

iii) Enterprises over which key management personnel and relatives of such personnel
exercise significant infiuence:- NIL

c) Disclosure of Related Party Transactions given in Annexurc-I,

NOTE: 27 The Computation of Earnings per Share: -

2023-2024 2022-23
Profit after tax for the year (Rs. In thousand) 20279.96 10983.43
Weighted Average Number Of Equity shares 34,82.273 34,82,273

_Basic & Diluted Bantings per share 5.82 3.15
Face Value of equity share (Rs.)___________ 10.00_________________ 10.00

NOTE: 28 Disclosure in respect of Derivative Instruments: -

a) Derivate instruments of Nil (Forward Exchange Contract) (Previous year Nil) outstanding iis at 31 March,

b) Foreign currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments as at 31 March, 2024: - 
(In thousand)

Particulars USD EURO GBP ALD A ED

Import Trade Payables 76.511 _
.(71.39) (-)

(-)■

(-) (-)

Export Trade Receivables 411.59 2.27 79.79 _
(648.67) (2.27) (77.36) (--) (-}

Advance from Customers 58.82 0.142 _
(67.91) C-) (-) (-) (-)

Figures in Brackets represenls previous year figures
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NOTE;29 Value of imported and indigenous Raw Material, Store and Spare parts and packing material 
consumed and percentage of each to the total consumption as Certified by the management: -

Item 2023-24
(In, Thousand) 

Value (Rs.) % age

2022-23
(In Thousand)

Value (Rs.) % age

Imported 
Indigenous

55600.49
357934.39

13.45
86.55

30753.83
398955.03

7.16
92.84

413534.88 100.00 429708.85 100.00

NOTE: 30 C.I.F. Value of Import
2023-24 2022-23

Raw Material& Consumables
(Rs.)

55483.48
(Rs.)

30753.83

NOTE:31 E.xpenditure in Foreign Currency

2023-24 2022-23

-Commission
-Tour & Travel

(Rs.)
1624.93
427.71

(Rs.)
1899.77

785,46

NOTE: 32 Earning in Foreign Currency

2023-24 2022-2,3

Expons at, FOB Value
(Rs.)

284887.49
(Rs.)

329072,86

NOTE: -33 Lease
The Company has taken factory premises at. Puns (Maharashtra) where the rent agreement is 
valid till 3 !" March 2025, and 1727 MIE Bahadtirgarh Haryana where the rent agreement is 
valid till 3 i“ March 2024 on lease. Lease Rental amounting to Rs. 6,14,625/- & 80,000/-P.M. 
respectively has been debited to statement of profit and loss accounts.

The lease rental charges during the period arc as follows:

Particulars Year ended 31“ March
2024 2023

l^ease Reni
Less: Capitalized during the year
Net debited to Profit & Loss A/c___________

8335.50/- 8335.50/-
NIL NIL
8335.50 /- 8335.50/-

a
* 

D=thl |\i

*
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Details of lease agreem;nl are enumerated as under; -

The obligation on long term, operating lease payable as per the rentals stated in ths respective agreements 
are as follows:

Property Taken on lease Factory situated at Village -Navalakh Umtre 
Taluka, Mav.al District, Pune Maharashtra and at 
1727 MIE Bahadurgarh Haryana

Date of terminaticn of lease 31,03.2025
Escalation Clause NIL
1 erm ot renewal On the sole direction of lessor as per manually 

agreed term &. conditions.
Purchase option ______ No _____________________________________

Future minimum lease Payable Year ended 31’’March
2024 2023

Net later than One year 7375.51 8335.51
Later tlian one year but noi later than 5 years - 7375.51

i\OTE:34 With reference to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dt. 24.03.2021 
w.r.t. amendments in Schedule III, additional regulatory information und“r 
are under:

(I) Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company:
Details jf Tide-deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company is below:

Relevant 
line item 

in the 
Balance 
Sheet

Description of 
item of 

property

Gross 
carrying 

value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of

Whether title 
deed holder is a 

promoter, 
dlre-:tor or 
relative# of 

promot9r*/direct 
or or employee of 
promoter/directo 

r

Ainouni

Property 
held 
since 

which 
date

in < inousano)

Reas-sn for 
not being 

held In the 
name of the 

company

PPE - - - - - -

Investment 
property - - -

PP3 retired 
from act .ve 

use and 
held for 
disposal

- - - - - -

Others - - - - - -
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#ReIadve here means reJative as defined in the Companies Act, 2013. ~
’Promoter here means promoter as dei'ned in the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Disclosures regarding whether revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered
Valuer: °

No revaluation took place during the year.

(iii) Disclosures of Loans or Advances granted Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related 
parties:

No Loans or Advances granted to P,-omoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties during 
the year- ®

(iv) Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP);

CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total In
Thousand.

Less Than.
1 year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More 
than 3 
years

Building
WIP

- - - •

Plant & 
Machinery 
WIP

2564.5£ - - - 2554.58

(v) Intangible Assets under Development:
Deiaiks of Intangible Assets under Development Aging Schedule:

____________ (Amount in ? Thousandl

Intangible assets 
under development

_______ Amount in CWIP for a period of —----------------
Less than 1 

year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

Projects in Progress: - - - -
Projects temporarily 

suspended - - - - -

Total - • -

---- -^’7
'V, *
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(b) Details of Intangible Assets under Development Completion Schedule:

(Air.ount in ? Thousand:

Intangible assets 
under development

Amount in CWIF for a period of
Less than 1 

year 1-2 year 2-3 years More than 3

Projects in Progress: - - - -

Projects temporarily 
suspended - - - -

Total - • - -

(vi| Details of Benami Property held:
No Benami Property held by the company as on 31.03.2024.

(vii) Borrowings from binks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current 
assets:

The company has submitted the provisional financial data to bankers on time to time basis.

(viiij Wilful Defaulter:

The company has not teen declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or 
other lender as on 31.03.202^.

|ix) Relationship with Struck Off Companies;
The company has not made any transachon curing the year with companies struck off 
under section 248 of Companie.a Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

(x) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:
No charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the 
statutory period.

(xi) Compliance with number of layers of companies:

The proviso to clause {87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides for restricting 
class or classes of holding companies front having layers cf subsidiaries bevend 
prescribed number. The above provision :s not applicable on the company.

WDEbil
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(xii) Various Ratios:
Details of die various ratios are as below:

Explanations for changes in the ration by more than 25% as compared to preceding year 
are as below:

s.
NO. Type of Ratio Formula 

(Numerator/Denomlnatorl
%/in 
times FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

% 
Varianc 

e

a) Current Ratio Current Assets / Current 
Liabilities

In number 
of times 1.07 1,04 3%

b) Debt-Equity 
Ratio

Total Debts / Shareholder’s 
Equity

In number 
of times 1.19 1.38 •14%

c) Debt Service 
Coverage Rati?

Earnings for debt service 
/Debt service

In number 
of times 0.70 0.58 21%

d) Return on.
Equity Ratio

Profit After Tao-: / 
Shareholder's Ecuitv % 58% 32% 85%

e)
Inventoiy 

Turnover Radc
Cost of goods sold / 
Average Inventcry

In number 
of times 4.27 4.38 -3%

fl
Trade 

Receivnbies 
Turnover Ratio

Net Credit Sales / Average 
Trade Receivables

In number 
of times 4.72 4.88 -3%

g)
Trade Payables
Turnover Ratio

Net Credit Purchase / 
Average Trade Payables

In number 
of times 4.47 3.32 34%

h) Net Capita] 
Turnover Ratio

Turnover / Capital 
Employed

In number 
of times 3.44 3.73 -8%

’t Net Profit Ratio Net Profit / Total Income % 2.86% 1.56% 83%

j)
Return on 

Capital 
Employed

Profit After Tax / Total 
Capital Employed % 10% 6% 66%

k} Return on 
Investment

Profit from class of 
asseis/Market value of the 

such class of assets
% N.A. N.A. 0%

a) In Return on Equity Ratio, current year profit is ? 20279,97 thousand comparing to 
previous year’s profit of ? 10983.04 thousand. This resulted into positive return for 
Equip,'.

b) In Trade Payable Turnover Ratio, Net Credit Purchase and Averttge Trade Payables 
in current year is ? 409055.05 thousand and ? 91543.07 thousand whereas in last 
year it ? 435695.80 thousand and t 131045.75 thousand respectively. It resulted in tn 
increase in the ratio comparing to previous year.

c) In Net Profit Ratio, Current year Profit after Tax of t 20279.97 thousand comparing 
to previous year’s profit of ? 10983.04 thousand. This resulted into positive net profit 
ratio.

d) In Return on Capital Employed Ratio, Due to Profit after Tax of ? 20279.97 
thousand comparing to previous year’s profit of ? 1C983.04 thousand. This resulted 
in;o positive ratio comparing to previous year.

'o 
*
O

z yi
*
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{xiii) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements:
No any scheme under section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been approved 
for the conpany.

(xiv) Utilization of Borrowed Funds St, Share Premium:

Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s] or entltyfs), 
including foreign entities (Intermediaries).

(XV) Undisclosed Income:

Per the year, there is no undisclosed income or any transaction which are not recorded in 
th;; books of account.

(xvi) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency:

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virroa! currency during 
the year.

NOrE:35 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped, reclassified wherever necessary to correspond 
with the current year classification/disclosurc. This adoption does not impact recognition and 
measurement principles followed for preparation of financial statements as at 31st March 
2024.

As per our report of even date attached

For GSK & Associates LLP For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
I'RiN: 013838N/N500003

CA Anil Kumar Somani
Designated Partner 
Membership No. - 093521

SaurabliTantlon 
(Director) 
D]N:-019945.S3

Place: New Delhi 
Date;25.06.2024

Rajendra Kumar Sardaiia 
(Managing Director) 

^SS0CZ4)5\DIN:-00732421

114



Gsk & Associates llp 
Chartered Accountants
LLPIN :AAB-IS09
(Registered under The Limited Liability Partnership Act. 2liini;

Rfgd. Orrice:
8, Isi Floor, Rani ^h.in.si Read. 

Moiia Khan Incunr.al Aija, 
New Delhi -110035.

Tel.;0ll-235i54?0-73 
E-mail: info@gskas$ociates.com 

Website; www.gskassociaics.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERSCF
Alfa Autotech Pvt. Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the a:companying financial staterrents of Alfa Autotech Private Limited
("the Company") which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory informat on.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and Loss for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Comparies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our ocher ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe :ha: the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current pericd. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the fint'cial statements as a whole, andinferming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it 
is an unlisted company.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
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The Compan/s Board of Dirertors is responsible for the other information. The otner information 
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor's report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
j information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other

information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Rep art, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as 
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give 
a true and fair view of the finencial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records ir accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregula'ities; selection and 
application of appropriate imp ementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonab e and prudent; and design implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the prepa'ation and presentation of the finarcial 
statement that give a true and Fair view and are free from mate'ial misstatement, whether d je to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Compary's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern aid using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the ccmpan/s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetner the financial statements as a whcle
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an aucitor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a gua-antee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when It exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
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aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of th; financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriata to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery. Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opin on on whether the company has adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material jncertainry exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Compan/s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requ.red to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Ou* conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 
agoing concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content cf the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events In 
a mannerthat achieves fair presentation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarcing, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of tha audit and sign.ficant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other masters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

117



From the matter communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most sigrificance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore key audit matters. We describe these matters in out auditor's report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not 
applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
fa * as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
th s Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2C14.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March. 
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2iof the Act.

f. W th respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls ever financial reponing of the 
Company, the company is under exemption category vide MCA notification dated 13th June 
2017 (G.S.R. 583^E)) therefore not commented upon.

g. W.th respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us;

(I) The Company does not have any pending litigations whicn would impact its financial
position.
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(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iil) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or Invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entitles, 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities, including 
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(v) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement.

(vi) No dividend declared or paid during the year by the company, therefore compliance of 
section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

(vii) The Company is maintaining its books of account manually during the year. Consequently, 
the company is not required to comply with the provisions related to audit trail and 
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditor) Rules 2014 is rot 
applicable.

For GSK «£ Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants ✓’''SogJaX
(FRN: OI3S38N/N5OOOO3L^

.O\Ni .TU.W-..

(CA Anil Kumar Somani)
Designated Partner
M.No. 093521

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20/06/2024
UDIN:
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For Alfa Autotech Private Limited

< New De hl

As :e* Oir report of even date 
FOR GSK a ASSOCIATES LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

{SAURA8H TANDOn; 
SIRECrOR 
:iN;01994583

(RAJENDRA KUMAR SARDANA)
DIRECTOR
DIN; 00732421

(Anil Kumar Somari) 
Designated Partner 
Membership No.: 093521. 
Place: New Delhi 
Cate: 20/06/24

ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
M-439,1ST FLOOR, GURU HARKRISHNA NAGAR, PASCHIM VIHAR, NEW DELHI-llOOS?

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024
CIN: U34300DL2008PTC123317

(Ail amounts are in Hundred of Indian Rupees Unless otherwise stated)

Particulars . Note No. Amount as at 
31.03.2024

Amount as at 
31.03.2023

1. EQUirr AND LIABILITIES 
(Xi Share-holder's Funds 
(a) Share Capital 2 10,000.00 10,000 00
(b) Reserves & Surplus 3 81,000.00 81,000 00

(2)?Jon Current Liabilities 
(a) Long Term Borrowings 4 25,206.00 25.206 00

(3) Current Liabilities
(a) O:her Current Liabilities 5 3,027.98 2.760'.ll

Total Equity & Liabilities 1,19,233.98 1,18,966.11

ll-ASSETS
(1) Non- Current Assets
(a) Non Current investments 6 1,14,000.00 1,14.000.00
(bj Other Non Current Assets 7 4,336.19 4.06'..83

(21 Current Assets
(a) Cash end Cash Equivalents & 897.79 904.23

Total Assets 1,19,233.98 1,18,966.11
S gnif cant Accounting Pol.cies & 
Notes on Financial Statements Ito 10
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2

3

4

5

1 tolO

For Alfa Autotech Private Limited

(I)
(ii)

■ RAJENDRA KUMAR SARDANA)
DIRECTOR
DIN;0073242-

Significant Accouming Polities 
Notes on Financial Statements 
As per our Report of even date 
FOR GSK & ASSOCIATES LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Firm Reg. No.: 013838N/500003N

ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
M-439, 1ST FLOOR, GURU HARKRISHNA NAGAR, PASCHIM VIHAR, NEW DELHI-110087 

Statement of Profit & Loss Account For the year ending 31.03.2024
CIN; U34300DL2008PTC173317

______ (All amounts are In Hundred of Indian Rupees Unless otherwise stated)

Sr. 
No

(SAURASHTANDCN) 
DIRECTOR
DIN:01994583

Anil Kumar SomanI)
Designated Partner
Membership No.: 393S21
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 20/06/24 
UDIN:9(/09?,q2lAk-ftP/T-776q

Particulars Note No.
Figures as at the 
end of current 

reoortina period

Figures as at the end 
of previous reporting 

period
Incomes

Revenue from operatiors

Other Income
■ ■

Total Income -
Expenses: 
Cost of Goods sold 
Financial Cost* 
Other Expenses 9 274.35 273 59
Total Expenses 274.36 273.59

Profit before exceptioral and extraordinary items and tax
(274.36) (273.59)

Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred ta<

•

Profit(Loss) from the perld from continuing operations
1 (274.36) (273.59)

Profit/(Los$) far the pe'iod - (274.36) (273.59)

Less; Tri to pre-operative expenses (274.36) (273.59)

Earning per equity shaie;
(1) Basic
(2) Dilutee
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Integral Port of the Balance Sheet as at 31St March, 2024

(All amounts are in Hundred of Indian Rupees Unless otherwise stated)

Note: 2 Share Capital

Sr. 
No

Particulars Amount as at 
31.03.2024

Amount as at 
31.03.2023

1 A JTHORIZED CAPITAL
250 000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.
(P.Y 2,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.)

25,000 00 25,000.00

25,000 00 25,000.00

2 ISSUED a SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL

90,COO Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
(F.Y 90,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

9,000 00 9,000.00

9.000-00 9,000.00
3 PAID UP CAPITAL

90,C00 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. Fully Paid up 
(F.Y 90,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. Fully Paid up)

9,000.00 9,000.00

4 SHARE FORFEITED ACCOUNT
20,C-00(P.Y 20,000) EqulTy Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
Paid up Rs. S/- Each

1,000 00 1.000.00

Total 10,000.00 10,000.00

Reconciliation of Number of Shares
In Nos In Nos

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 
Adc; Fully Paid up Shares issued during the year

90,000.00
0.00

90,000.00
0.00

Equ ty Shares at the end of the year 90,000.00 90,000.00

(b) L st of Share holders hawing more than SH Shares (In Nos)

Name Of Shareholders In Nos In Nos

1 Rajendra Kumar Sardana
No of Shares 

(% of Shares held)
60,000.00

66.67
60,000.00

66.67

2 ScUiabh Tandon
No of Shares 

(% of Shares held]
28,500.00

31.67
28,500.00

31.67

*elhi
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31St March, 2024

(c) Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares;

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per Share. Each Holder of Equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share. In the event of Liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of 
the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held 
by the shareholders.

Bonus Shares/Buy Back/Shares for considration other than cash issued during the period of five years immediately 
preceding the financial year ended 3ist March, 2024

i) Aggregate number of equity shares alioted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash- NIL
ii) Aggregate number of equity shares asfully paid up by way of bonus shares - NIL
iii) Aggregate number of equity shares bought back • NIL

(6) Shares held bv oiOiuoteis at tlie end of the year

As on 31.03.2024

As on 31.03.2023

S No. Name of the promoter_________________________________ Class of Share

No. of share at the 
begning of the 
year

Changes 
during the year

No. of share at 
the end of the 
year % of Total Share

% change 
during the

1 
2

Rajendra Kumar Sardana
Saurabh Tandon ____________

Equity
Equity

60,000
28,500 •

60000
28500

66.67
31.67

SNo. Name of the promoter__________ Class of Share

No. of share at the 
begning of the 
year

Changes 
during the year

No. of share at 
the end of the 
year % of Total Share

Vo change 
during the 
y^sr1

2
Rajendra Kumar Sardana 
bauraon i andon

Equity
Equity____________

60,000
26,500 -

60000
2Bb00

66.67 
Ji .67

^2^

I 

t

I
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2024
Note: 3 Reserves & Surplus

Sr. 
No

Particulars Amount as at 
31.03.2024

Amount as at 
31.03.2023

1 Securities Premium
As Per Last Financial Statement 81,000.00 81,000.00

Total 81,000.00 81,000.00

Note: 4 Long Term Borrowings

Sr.
No

Particulars Amount as at 
31.03.2024

Amount as at 
31.03.2023

1 Unsecured Loans
From Related Parties 25,206,00 25,206.00

Total 25,206.00 25,206.00

Note: 5 Other Current Liabilities
Sr.
No Particulars Amount as at 

31.03.2024
Amount as at 
31.03.2023

1 Expenses Payable 3,027.98 2,760.11

Total 3,027.98 2.760.11
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 32St March, 2024

(Ail amounts are in Hundred of Indian Rupees Unless otherwise stated)
Note 6 Non Current Investments

Sr., 

:No
Particulars

Amount as at 

31.03.2024
Amount as at 

31.03.2023

1

Other Investments

(Valued at Cost unless stated Otherwise)

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted):-
76,000 (PY 76000 lEquity shares of M/s. Alfa Flexitubes Pvt, Ltd. 1,14,000.00 1,14,000.00

Total 1,14.000.00 1,14,000.00

Note :■
Amount as at 
33.03.2024

Amount as at 
31.03.2023

1. All Investmeru are Long Term Investments
2. Aggregate Value of Unquoted Investment
- Book Value

-Market Value___________________________________________________
1,14,000.00 1,14,000.00

•

Note: 7 Non-Current Assets
Sr. 

No
Particulars

Amount as at 

31.03.2024
Amount as at 

31.03.2023
1 iviiscellaneous Expenditure 

Preliminary Expenses;- 
Opening Balance
Add - Addition during the year

Less: Written off during the year* 
Total (A)

Pre Operative Expenses:- 
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year

-

4,061.83
274.36

• 3,788.24
273.59

4,335.19 4,061.83

Total 4,336.19 4,061.83

Note: 8 Cash & Cash equivalents
5r. 
■40

Particulars
Amount as at 

31.03.2024
Amount as at 

31.03.2023

1 Cash-in-Hand
Cash Balance 656.36 655.36

Sub Total [A) 656.36 656.36

2 Balances with Bank
In Current A/c with S.B.I. 241.43 247.92

Sub Total (B) 241.43 247.92

Total [A + B ] 897.79 904.28

\A
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ALFA AUTOTECH PVT. LTD.
Notes Formir g Part of the Statement of Profit & Loss Accounts as at 31st March, 2024 

{All amounts are in Hundred of Indian Rupees Unless otherwise stated)

Note 9 Of^er £x;:ez?ies

Sr. No Particulars . Amount as at 
31.0^2024

' Amount as at 
31.03.2023

1 Bank Charges 6.49 6 49
2 Audit Fees 118.00 118.00
3 Professional Charges iOO.29 88-50
4 Roc Fees 49.58 60.60

Tc-tal 274.36 273.59
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNT OF
ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED.
FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24.

NOTE NO.-l

1.1. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual 
basis of accounting and in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in 
India and comply with the accounting standards notified by the Central Government of 
India, under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006 and relevant provisions of 
die Companies Act, 2013.

1.2. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted 
accounting principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the 
reported of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent assets and 
liabilities as on the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Management believes that the estimates used in the 
preparation of financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ 
from these estimates.

1.3. FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

.AH the fixed assets are stated at Cost less Accumulated depreciation. The company 
capitalizes all costs directly relating to acquisition and installation of fixed assets.

Borrowing costs are capitalized as part of qualifying fixed assets. Other borrowing costs arc 
expensed.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date 
are disclosed as "Capital Advances" under Long Term Loans and Advances and cost of 
fixed assets not ready to use before such date are disclosed under "capital-work-in- 
progress".

Depreciation is provided on the Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner 
specified in schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 over their useful life expect.

1.4 INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at lowei’ of cost or fair value.

1.5 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Interest Income is recognized using time proportion method. Revenue from services is 
recognized on the basis completion of service contract method.

1.6 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

a) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN: N.A.

< y v'A
Ir*-
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1.7 TAXATION

a) Income taxes are computed using die tax effect accounting method, where taxes are 
accrued in the same period, the related revenue and expenses arise. A provision is made for 
income tax annually based on the tax liability computed in accordance with the provisions 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961. .

b) Deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is calculated at the rates and laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted as of the Balance Sheet date and is recognized on 
timing differences, namely die differences that originate in one account period and arc 
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.

Deferred tax assets, subject to consideration of prudence, are recognized and carried 
forward only to the extent that they can be realized in future.

1.8. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share are disclosed in the Profit and loss Account. Basic earnings per 
shares is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed and disclosed using 
the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares 
outstanding during the year, except when the results would bo anti-dilutive.

1.9. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when 
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an 
outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets are neither recognized 
nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR TH3 YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024

NOTE: 10.1 Contingent Liabilities: There are no Contingent liabilities, during the year 2023- 
24.

NOTE: 10.2 Expenditure in foreign Currency: Nil.

NOTE: 10.3 Earning in foreign Currency: Nil.

NOTE: 10.4 Related Party Disclosure as per Accounting Standard 18:

A) Parties vzhere control exist: None.
B) Other parties with whom the company has entered into transactions during the year in 
the ordinary course of business at arm's length as per details given below:

•a) Name of the related parties and description of relationship:

1. Associates : Nil

2. Key Management Personnel : Ms. Pooja Sardana (Director)
: Mr. Rajendra Kumar Sardana (Director)
: Mr. Saurabh Tandon (Director)

3. Relative of Key Management personnel: Ms. Indra Sardana

4. Enterprises ever Key Management : Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited 
Personnel and their Relatives have
Significant Influence

b) Discloser of Related Parties Transaction-

-0’

Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transactions during the year;
(Amount in Hundred)

Particulars Relationship 2023-24 2022-23
a) Loan Taken
1. None - - -

Balance outstanding as at the end of the year
a) Loan Payable

1. Mr. Rajendra Kumar 
Sardana

Director 5,206.00 5,205.00

2. Mr. Saurabh Tondor. Director 11,750.00 11,750.00-
3. Ms. Pooja Sardana Director 1,000.00 1,003.00
4. Ms. Indra Sardana Spouse of Director 7,250.00 7,25'3.00

b) Investments Enterprises over Key
1. Alfa Flexitubes Pvt. Management Personnel and 1,14,000.00 1,14,000.00

Ltd. their Relatives have Significant 
Influence ---------------

129



NOTE: 10.5 V/ith reference to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dt. 24.03.2021 w.r.t. 
amendments in Schedule III, additional regulatory information under are under:

(j Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company:

Details of Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company is 
belov/:

(Amount in ? Hundred)

#R.el2tive here means relative as defined in the Companies Act, 2013, 
*Promoier here means promoter as defined in the Companies Act, 2013.

Relevant 
line item 

in the 
Balance 
Sheet

Description 
of item of 
property

Gross 
carryin 
g value

Title 
deeds held 

in the 
name of

Whether title 
deed holder is a 

promoter, 
director or 
relative# of 

promoter*/direc 
tor or employee 

of 
promoter/direct 

or

Property’ 
held 
since 
which 
date

Reason for 
not being 

held in the 
name of the 

company

PPE - - - - - -

Investment 
property - - • •

PPE 
retired 
from 

active use 
and held 

for 
disposal

- - - - -

Others - - “ i

(ii) Disclosures regarding whether revaluation is based on the valuation by a 
Registered Valuer:

No revaluation took place during the year.

(iii) Disclosures of Loans or Advances granted Promoters, Directors, KMPs and 
the related parties:

No -cans or Advances granted to Promoters, Directors. KMPs and the related 
parties during the year.

(iy) Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP):

CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of

More

Total In 
Hundred.

Less 
Than 1
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year Years Years years

- - - -

(v) Intangible Assets under Development:

(a) Details of In^aneible Assets under Development Aging Schedule:

(Amount in ? Hundred)

(b) Details of Intangible Assets under Development Completion Schedule:

______________________________ (Amount in ? Hundred)

Intangible assets 
under development

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

Projects in Progress: - - - - -

Projects temporarily 
suspended - - - - -

Total - - - - -

Intangible assets 
under development

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Projects in Progress: - • - -

Projects temporarily 
suspended - - - -

Total - - - -

(vi) Details of Benami Property held:

No Benaini Property held by the company as on 31.03.2024

(vii) Borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets;

Not applicab.e

(viii) Wilful Defaulter:

The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
Institution or other lender as on 31.03.2024.

(ix) Relationship with Struck Off Companies:

The company has not made any transaction during the year with companies struck 
off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 
1956-
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(x) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:

No charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond 
the statutory period.

(xi) Compliance with number of layers of companies:

The proviso to clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act. 2013 provides 
for restricting class or classes of holding companies from having layers of 
subsidiaries beyond prescribed number. The above provision is not applicable on 
the company.

(xii) Various Ratios:

Details of the various ratios are as below:

s. 
NO Type of Ratio Formula 

(Numcrator/Denominator)
%/in 
times FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

%
Va riunec

a) Current Ratio Current Assets! Current 
Liabilities

In number 
of times 0.296 0.328 -9.5C%

b)
Debt-Equity 

Ratio
Total Debts / Shareholders 

Equity
In number 
of times 0.277 0.277 0.00%

c)
Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio
Earnings for debt service 

/Debt service
In number 
of times NA NA NA

(1)
Return on Equity 

Ratio
Profit After Tax / Average 

Shareholder’s Equity % 0.003% 0.003% 0.28%

e)
Inventory 

Turnover Ratio
Cost of goods sold / Average 

Inventory
In number 
of times NA NA NA

0
Trade 

Receivables 
Turnover Ratio

Net Credit Sales / Average 
Trade Receivables

In number 
of times NA NA NA

g)
Trade Payables 
Turnover Ratio

Net Credit Purchase / 
Average Trade Payables

In number 
of times NA NA NA

h)
Net Capital 

3'umovcr Ratio Turnover/Capital Employed In number 
of times NA NA NA

i) Net Profit Ratio Net Profit / Total Income % NA NA NA

j)
Return on 
Capital 

Employed

Profit After Tax / Total 
Capital Employed % 0.003% 0.003% 0.00%

k)
Return on 
Investment

Profit from class of 
assets/Market value of the 

such class of assets
% 0.003% 0.003% 0.00%

(xiii) Compliance with approved Sclienic(s) of Arrangements:

No any scheme under section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been 
approved for the company.

(xiv) Utilization of Borrowed Funds & Share Premium:

Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds {either borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or 
cntity(s), including foreign entities (Intermediaries).

Undisclosed Income:
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For the year, there is no undisclosed income or any transaction which are not 
recorded in the books of account.

(xvi) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency:
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during 
the year.

NOTE: 10.6 Figures of Previous Year have been re-grouped /re-arranged/re- 
considered wherever considered necessary.

NOTE: 10.7 The expenses incurred during the year has been transferred to Profit & 
booked under the head as Other Non Current Assets which will be 
capitalized/ Amortized at the time of starting of business activity in the company.

NOTE: 10.8 Noles 1 to 10 forms an integral part of the Balance Sheet and Profit and 
loss account statement.

As per our report of even date

For GSK & Associates LLP For Alfa Autotech Private Limited
Chartered Accountant
FRN: 013838N/N500003

(CA Anil Kumar Somani) 
Designated Partner 
M.No. 093521

I*
,Q\teV02LHi7jg>:

Saurabh Tandon)
Director

DIN: 00732421

*

Director
DIN:01994583

Place: New Delhi
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Phone: 011-2528 8796 
Fex:011-2526 1475 

Website: www.BlIa-flexiiutos com

ALFA FLEXITUBES (P) LTD.
Regd. Off: U-439. First Floor. CIN No. U65B93011M6PTC07S6«
Guru Harttnshan Nagar
Pasehim Vlhar
New 0elM-n0087

'J DNV ? 
^ISOSOOI^^

Report sidopted by the Board of Directors of Alfa riexitubes I’l-ivaie Limited (“llie 
Company”) on the Draft Sehcinc of Arrangement of .Alfa I'le.xitiibes Private I.imiccd, 
Demerged Company and Alfa Aiitoteeh Private Limited, Resiiliing C« mpany and their 
re.speelive shareholders and creditors under the provisions of .sections 2.^0 to 232 of the 
Compaiiic.s Act. 2013 (“/Xct”).

1. Background:
i- 'I he proposed Scheme of Arrangemei i ('■Scheme") ol .M s z\lta rie.xiiuhes Private 

Limited (hereinafter referred to as ''the Demerged Company"), and Alfa Autoieeh 
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to a.s ‘ the Resulting Company") and neir 
respective shareholders and creditors uas approxed h\ the Bo:.rd of Di'-vetor- .>) 
Alfa Ple.xiiutes Private Limited ("Board') vide resolution dated 24.06.2024. As per 
the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act. 2013, the Directors are 
required to tiJopt a report explaining the efleet of Scheme on eqinix shareholders, 
key managerial pcisonncl (KMPs). promiiiers and non-promoier sharehoidei-s of the 
Company lay ing out in particular the share e.xchange ratio and the same ..s requnnl 
to he circulated to the Secured and Ursceured Creditors along with ilie .\otice 
convening the meeting.

ii. This report of the Board is accordingly being made in pursuanee to the requiremeris 
of Section 232 (2)(c) of the Companies Act. 2013.

iii. The following documents were placed before ihe Board:
(I. Draft Scheme of Demerger initialed by the Director for the purpose' of 

idcntilicaiion.
b. .VIemorandum of Association and Anicle.s of Assoei:ition of the D^mergeil 

Company and Resulting Company,
c. Audited Financial Siaiemeni.s cf 'he Demerged Ct>mp;ny and Resuliing 

Company a.s on 3 P' .March. 2024.
d. Summary of the Valuation Report along with the basi.s of .such valuation.

2. BOARD REPORT

Based on review of the Draft Scheme of Arrange nent and theabove-mer.iioned doeuiiKits. 
the Board ha.s formed the opinion that upon the scheme linally coming inio ef'eet an.l in 
considenition of the Demerger of Demerged Company and Resulting Company n terms of 
the scheme:

(i) The shares exchange ratio in which sl'arc.s be allotted by the Resulting Compam to 
the Shareholders of the Demerged Companies arc as under:

i. For tic purpose of arriving at the share exchange ratio, an indciiendent 
Valuation Report froir. Mr. Gaurax' Jain. Registered Valuer has been 
obtained. Basis of valuation for Demerged Company is Asset Approae t. it 
has lK‘en stated in the vaiuati in report that a fair equity share en:itlemeiit 
ratio would metin that for every^ 10(10 fully paid up equity share of Alfa

—Fadory i OfTiie:-------------------------------- ----------------------------------------
1726, Modem Ind. Estate Bahadurgarh (HR.) 124507 (India)

E mail:- infc@alfa-i1exitubes.com
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FIcxihibe Private Limited. Alfa Autoicch Private Limited will issue 58 
shares.

ii. Tlic proposed Scheme of arrangement would inter alia have the following 
benefits:

The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and Resulting Coni|iain 
arc of the opinion that the Demerger under ihi.s .Scheme would result in 
benefit to members, creditors and emplovees and will not he detrimental to 
the public, ‘nie rationales / henefit.s of the present .Scheme tire mentioned 
hereunder:

a) The demenjer of Pune Unit of Demerged Compain into the Re.-ii king 
Company will enable the Demerged Coinpatn (the Retained 
Undertakirg) to foeu.s more :>peeillenll> on the Bhadurgarh L'nits is an 
c.xelusive entity and will concentrate on dewloping and achieving 
experti.se towards it and dciision making, without the distraction ol 
managing multiple units. This can lead to improved performance and 
innovation- Also, investors may value specialized companies higher 
than a conglomerate as thej can better understand and assess the risks 
and opportunities of a focused business, 'Ibis can lead to improved 
valuation.

b) The Arrangement will result in better, efficient and economical 
management, cost savings, creating better .sjnergy acros.s the group, 
optimunt .itiliyalion of resource.^, rationalizaiinn of adminisinitive 
e.spenses/serviccs. control and running of businesses and Inriber 
development and growth of the busine.ss of both the companies.

c) The Arrangement would allow a focioed .strategy in operations cl the 
Demerger Undertaking alongwith providing scope for independent 
collaboniti.oiis and expansion wiihaut committing the existing 
orgjinization in its entirety and creating enhancetl value liir operations.

d) The Resu ling Company will have better financial and btisines.s 
prospects. The Scheme would Ik iKiieficial to and in the Iksi interest o'* 
the sharel'olders & credilvrs of the Demerged Company and the 
Resulting Company. The Scheme shall not in any manner be piejudici:il 
to the interests of concerned shareholders.' crciliiors and eeneiTl public 
at large.

iii. The existing Directors including Key Managerial Personnel ('’the K.MP.s") 
of the Demerged Company and Resulting Cvimpany shall h:ive ntv effect on 
the dale of implemeniation of the .Scheme.

iv. 'fhe Demerged Company and Rc.sulting Company has not issued any 
debentures and hence, does not have Debenture Trustee and has not 
accepted any depo.siis hence there is no deposit trustee :ilso.

'fhe crteci of the proposed Scheme of Arrangement on ihe .stakeholders of 
the Company .vould he as follows:
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Effect of the Scheme cn:

a. Shareholders The Irquily Shareholders of Demerged 
Company shall become Equity Shareholders of 
Resulting Company. Shores exchange ratio in 
which equity shares be allotted by the ResulCag 
Company to the Shareholders of the Demerged 
Company is given below; -

i. Il has been .stated in the valuation report ihtii a 
fair equity share entitlement ratio would mean 
that forcA'cry 1000 fully paid up equil>' share of 
.Alfa Flexilube Priwiie Fimiied. Alfa .Auloiech 
Privaie l.iinited will issue .58 shares.

b. Directors & Key 'file existing Directors including Kev
.^4anageri^l Personnel
(KMP)

Managerial Personnel ("the KMPs") of the 
Demerged Company and Resulling Company 
shall have no effect on the dale of 
iniplemenltilion of the Scheme.

e. Promoters Same as point (a)
d. >fon-Promoter Ndembers Same as point fa)
c. Depositors Not Applicable

f. Creditors Creditors with respect to the Demerged 
Company. with reg.irtl to Demerged 
Undertaking shall become tlie Creditors of 
Resnlline Compaiw.

Fniployees of the
Company

All the emidoyees of the Demerged {.‘ompaiiy, 
if any in service on the Effective Dale shall be 
deemed to have become employee.^ ol’ the 
Resulting Company.

(ii) In the opinion of the Board, the said .scheme will be of advantage and benellcial to 
the Company, its Shareholders, Creditor,s and other Siakeholder.s am! the lerin.s 
thereef arc fair and reasonable. Il is for these reasons that ihe Board of IDiieetois of 
die Company approved die Scheme at their meeting held on 24.06.21)24.

For ALF.\ FLFXI f l)BE.S 1‘RIV.A I F FIVII I Fl)

Date: 24.06.2024
Plaee:Delhi

Saiirabh I'aiidon
Dirceior 

l)iN:lll‘J94,SS.)

136



ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Address: M-439, 1ST FLOOR, GURU HARKISHAN NAGAR 

PASCHIM VIHAR, NEW DELHI -110087
CIN: U34300DL2008PTC173317 Email Id: accounts@alfa-flexitubes.com

llcport adopted by (he Board of Directors of Alfa Auloteeh Prlvsiic Limited (“the 
Coiiipaiiy”) on the Draft Scheme of Arrangement of Alfa rieviiiibes Private Limited. 
Demerged Company and Alfa Auloteeh Private Limited, Resulting Company and their 
re.spective .shareholders and creditors under the provisions of .sections 2311 to 232 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)-

1. Background:
i. The proposed Scheme of Arrnngcmeni (‘ Scheme”) of M/s Alfa l-iexiiubes Private 

Limited (here.nafler referred to as “the Demerged Company"), and Alfa Aiiwceh 
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Resulting Company’^ and their 
respective shareholders and creditors was approved by the Board ot Directors oi 
Alfa ric.xiiubcs Private Limited ("Board") vide resolution dated 24.06.2024. As per 
the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act. 2013. the Directors are 
required to adopt a report explaining the efleci of Scheme on equity shareholders, 
key managerial personnel (KMPs). promoters and non-promoter shareholders o: the 
Company lay ing out in particular the share exchange ratio and the same is required 
to be circulated to the Secured and Unsecured Creditors along with the X'otiee 
convening the meeting.

ii. This report of the Board is accordingly being made in pursuance to the requirement.s 
of.Section 232 (2)(c) of the Companies Act. 2013.

iii. 'Hie following documents were placed before the Board;
a. Draft .Scheme of Demerger initialed by me Director for the purpose', ol 

identification.
b. Memorandum of Association and Articles ol A.ssociaiion ol the Demerged 

Company and Resulting Company.
c. Audited Financial Statements of the Demerged Company and Resulting 

Company as on 31'* March. 2024.
d. Summary of the Valuation Report along with the basis of such valuation.

2. BOARD RLPORT

Based on review of the Draft Scheme of Arrangement and the above-mentioned documeiii.s. 
the Board has formed the opinion t tat upon the scheme finally coming into ciTcct and in 
consideration ol’the Demerger of Demerged Company and Resulting Company in terns of 
the scheme:

(i) The shares exchange ratio in which shares he allotted by the Resulting Company to 
the .Shareholders of the Deirergcd Companies are as under;

i. For the purpose of arriving at the shaie exchange ratio, an independent 
Valuation Report from Mr. Gaurav Jain. Registered Valuer hits been 
obtained. Basis of valuation for Demerged Company i.s Asset Approach. It 
has been stated in the valuation report that a fair equity share entitlement 
ratio would mean that for every- 1000 fully paid up equity share of Alfa 
Fle.xitubc Private Limited. Alfa Auloteeh Private Limited will isste 
shares.
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ii. The proposed Scheme of arraiigeincnl would inter alia have the (bllowire 
benefits:

The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and Restiliing CumpHny 
are. of the opinion that llic Demerger under this Seiieme would resuii in 
benefit to members, creditors and employees and will not be detrimental '.o 
the public. The rationales ! benelii.s of the present Scheme are mentioned 
hereunder:

a) The demerger of Pune Unit of Demeigcd Company into the Resullirrg 
Company will enable the Demerged Coinpanv (the Retained 
Undertaking) to focus more specilieaiiy on the Bhadurgarh l-’nits tis tui 
exclusive entity and will concentrate on developing and :ieliievir.g 
expertise towards it and decision making, without the distraction of 
managing multiple units. This can lead to improved performance and 
innovation. Also, investors mtiy value specialized companies liighei 
than a conglomerate as they can better understand and assess the risks 
and opportunities of a focused business. This can lead to improved 
valuation,

b) The Arrangement will result in better, efllcieni and economical 
management, cost savings, creating better synergy across ihe groiij?. 
optimum utilization of resources, raiionali/aiion of administrative 
expcnscs/services, control and running of businesses and fiirlli.-r 
development and growth of the business of both the companies,

c) The Arrangement would allow a focused strategy in operations of the 
Demerger Undertaking alongwiih providing scope f<ir indepeudem 
collaborations and expansion without coinmitiing the existing 
organization in its entirely and creating enhanced \’alue for operaiions.

d) The Resulting Company will have heller financial and business 
prospects. The Scheme would be beneficial to aiai in il c besi iuicrcsi ol 
the shareholders & creditors of the Demerged Company and the 
Resulting Company, The Scheme shall not in any manner be preitidicia! 
to the interests of concerned shareholders/ crcvliiors tUiJ gcneial public 
at large,

iii. The existing Directors ineludiitg Key Managerial I’ersonnel ("the K\'ll’s."i 
of the Demerged Company and Resulting Comptiny shtil! have no effect on 
the date of implementation of the Sclienie.

iv. The Demerged Company and Resulting Company Inis not i.ssiicvl any 
debentures :ind hence, does not have Debenture Trustee and has roi 
accepted any deposits hence there is no deposit trustee also.

V. The elTecl of the proposed Scheme of Arrangeincnt on the .stakeholders of 
the Comptiny would be as follows:
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Effect of the Sclicme cu;

<1. Shareholders '! lie Eciuiiy Shareholders of Deinerefd 
Company shall beeoire Equity Shareholdeis ol 
■Resiilling Company. Shares e.Kchanee ratio in 
which equity shares be allotted by the kcsiiltmg 
Company to the Shareholders of the Demerged 
Company is given below; -

i II has been stilted in the valuation report that a 
fair equity shtire eniiitenienl rtilio would mean 
iniit for every 1000 fully paid up equity >hare of 
Alfa Elexilubc Private Luinited. Alfa zVuioteeh 
I’rivaie Limiied will issue 5S shaies.

b. Direetofs & Key 
Miinagetiel Peisoimel 

' (K'MP)

'i.'he existing Directors including l-'.ey 
Managerial Personnel ("the K.MPs”) of the 
Demerged Company and Pesulting (,'ompr.m 
shall have no effect on the date of 
implementation of lhe Scheme.

' c. I’roiMctfts ■Same as point (a)
■

1 e.
Noi'i-Pi.on'.oter Mem be rs _ 

! Depositors
Same as point fa) _____________
Koi Applicable

1 f. Creditors
i1
i '

Crediior.s with respect to the Dcmergeil 
Company, with regard to Demerged 

i Undertaking shall become rhe Creditors of 
i Resulting Company.

Emphiyees .of me
Ciimphny

.All the employees of lite Demergetl Ccinpany, 
.fatty in service on the Elfeciive Date shall be 
deemed to h;ive become employees of the
Kesiilliiig Company.

tr. the op!.nio:i cf llie Bo.trd. the odd scheme will be oradvaiiiage and hei.cl'ieial -.0 
tltc Companv- its ShareltolJers, Cmditors atid oilier Siakehohlers and die leir.i.-- 
Ihe'reofaie C.ji'APd reasonable^ Il ^s for these reasons tfal ihe Hoard of I)i.-ecior,s of 
ihc Cornpa:-,y approved t.ie Scheme al their mceiing held on 24.06.2(124.

(•oi ALF.A zMITO I ECH PRIV.A I E l.lMill El)

l)n(e:24.06.2('24
I'liieeJ'ellii

Saiirabh 'I'a nlnii
DiiVLlof

l)I.\:lil')'M5S3
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGISTERED 
FIRM

ALFA FLEXITUBES (P) LTD
Regd. off.;

M-439. Rret Floor. Guru HorOvlshan Nasar, Poschlm Vihar, New Delhi-110087 
CINNo. U65993DL1996PTC07Se66 Phonei'OI 1-2S28S796 

Fax;0n-25261475

OF ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED AT THE BOARD MEETING HELD ON 
MONDAY, THE 24^” DAY OF JUNE, 2024 AT 11.00 A.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE 
OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT M-439, FLOOR, GURU HARKISHAN NAGAR, 
PASCHIM VIHAR, NEW DELHI-110087

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the proposal of demerger of Company, Board be and hereby 

consent to the same.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to’Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

other applicable provisions, rules made thereunder, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and enabling 

provisions in the Memorandum and Articles of Association and subject to obtaining requisite 

approvals from National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench, and such other competent 

authority, the entire Pune Unit of the Company shall stands transferred and vested in Alfa Autotech 

Private Limited with effect from the Appointed Date, i.e. April 1, 2024 by way of and in accordance 

with the Scheme of Demerger (“Scheme”) be and is hereby approved by the Board of Directors.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Scheme of Demerger of entire Pune Unit of the Company into *

,Alfe Autotech Private Limited, a copy of which is duly initialed by the Board for the purpose of

identification and placed before the Board, which in the opinion of the Board, would be advantageous 

and beneficial to the Company and aJ) the stakeholders and that the terms thereof being fair and '

reasonable be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the valuation Reports received from Registered Valuer, settling the 

share exchange ratio for the purpose of demerger be and is hereby approved. '

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Company be and hereby severally and/or 

jointly authorized in the name of and behalf of the Company to: !

Take all necessary steps for obtaining approvals and/or consent of members/ 

shareholders of the Company, Creditors and/or other authorities and/or other entities as

---------------------Factory & Office:
1726, Modem Ind. Estate, Banadurgorh (HR.) 124^^in^] 

E mall :* lnfo@al(a-flexltubes.com
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nxay be required and for that purpose, to initiate all necessary actions and to take other 

consequential steps in that behalf;

(ii) Finalize and settle the Scheme, make any alterations, changes to the Scheme as may be 

expedient or necessary, draft of the notices for convening/ dispensing with the meetings 

of the shareholders and creditors and the draft of explanatoQ' statement under Section 

2iJp«232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder with such modifications 

as they may deem fit.

(iii) File the application, petition for demerger in the National Company Law Tribunal, New 

Delhi Bench and finalize, settle, sign and execute any affidavits, pleadings, undertakings 

cr other documents, and to execute all such further deeds, documents and writings, with

• such modifications/ amendments, as may be necessary in that behalf from time to time or 

celegate such authority to another person by a valid power of attorney.

(iv) Make, execute, swear, declare and register all declarations, aOidavits, applications, letter 

as may be required necessary or expedient under the provisions of various applicable 

acts, rules, regulations or notifications of the Central and/or State Government (s), and/or 

authorities including but not limited to Courts. Municipal Authorities. Registrar of 

Companies, Electricity authorities, and to represent the Company in all correspondences, 

matters and proceedings before them of any nature whatsoever in relation to the above.

(v) Appoint solicitor, advocates, attorneys, pleaders, advisors, valuers, auditors, accountants, 

□r any one or more agencies as may be required, for the aforesaid purpose, on such terms 

and conditions as they may deem fit and also to execute vakalatnamas. if required, in 

favour of any or more persons or firms as they may deem fit and necessary.

(vi) Assent and approve any alterations or modification to the Scheme which the Hon’ble 

National Company Law tribunal. New Delhi Bench may deem fit to approve or impose.

(vii) Consider, make and approve and sign and execute all other documents, advertisements or 

announcements, applications, disclosures which may be^ent/ required to be sent to the
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govemmentel or regulatory authorities or concerned authorities on behalf of the 
Company.

(viii) To cake all such actions and steps in the above matter, as may be required from time to 

time, including resolving the difficulties, if any, arising as and when required in the 

above connections without any further references to the Board and

(ix) To sign, execute and deliver such documents as may be necessary and do all such other 

acts, matters, deeds and things necessary or desirable in connection with or incidental to 

giving effect for the purpose of the above resolution or to otherwise give effect to the 

transactions contemplated as aforesaid.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Company be and arc hereby authorized 

to appoint M/s Saxena and Saxena Law Chambers, Advocates to enter into appearance before the 

Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench in connection with the said demerger 

and to do/ caused to be done, to execute / caused to be executed all such acts, deeds and things 

incidenUl (hereto, with respect to the National Company Law Tribunal Rules, 2016.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT certified true copies of this resolution, be furnished to the ' 

concerned euthorities under the signature of any of the Directors of the Company wherever required.”

//Certified True Copy//

For and on behalf of/
ALFA FLE.XITUEES PRIVATE LIMITED.

SAURABHTANDON 
(DIRECTOR) 
DIN: 01994S8301994S83

Date: 24.06.2024
Place: Delhi
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
M-439,1ST floor, guru HARKISHAN NAGAR PASCHIM VIHAR NEW

DELHI-110087 . X
CIN-UM300PL2008PTC173317 ■ Email- accounts@alfa-flexitubes.coio 1

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ALFA 
AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED AT THE BOARD MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, THE 24™ 
DAY OF JUNE, 2024 AT lOJO A.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY 
SITUATED AT M-439, 1ST FLOOR, GURU HARKISHAN NAGAR, PASCHIM VIHAR, NEW 
DELHI- 110087

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the proposal of demerger of 'entire Pune Unit’ of Alfa Flexitubes Private 
LimiKd into (he Company, Board be and hereby consent to the same.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other 
applicable provisions, rules made thereunder, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and enabling provisions in the 
Memcrandum and Articles of Association and subject to obtaining requisite approvals from National Company 
Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench, and such other competent authority, the entire Pune Unit of the Alft 
Flexirubes Private Limited shall stand transferred and vested into the Company with effect from the Appointed 
Cate, i.e. April I, 2024 by way of and in accordance with the Scheme of Demerger (“Scheme”) be and is 
hetrb;- approved by the Board of Directors.

RESC LVED FURTHER THAT the Scheme of Demerger of entire Pune Unit of the Alfa Flexitubes Private 
Limited into the Company, a copy of which is duly initialed by the Board for the purpose of identification and 
piaced before the Board, which in the opinion of (he Board, would be advantageous and beneficial to the 
Company and all the stakeholders and that the terms thereof being fair and reasonable be and is hereby 
approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the valuation report received from Registered Valuer, sealing the share 
excliarige ratio be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Company be and is hereby severally and/or jointly 
authorized in the name of and behalf of the Company to:

•‘i: Take all necessary steps for obtaining approvals and/or consent of members/ shareholders of the
Company, Creditor^ and/or other authorities and/or other entities as may be required and for that 
purpose, to initiate all necessary actions and to take other consequential steps in that behalf;

(ii) Finalize and settle the Scheme, make any alterations, changes to die Scheme os may be expedient 
or necessary, draft of the notices for convening/ dispensing with the meetings of the shareholders 
and creditors and the draft of explanatory statement under Section 230-232 of the Companies Act. 
2013 and Rules made thereunder with such modifications as they may deem fit.
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
M-439,1ST floor, GURU HARKISHAN NAGAR PASCHIM VIHAR NEW 

DELHI-110087
CIN-U34300DL2008Frci73317 Email-accounts@alfa-flexitube8.com

(iii) . .File the application, petition for demerger in the National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi
Bench and finalize, settle, sign and execute any affidaviis, pleadings, undertakings or other 
documents, and to execute all such further deeds, documents and writings, with such 
■modifications/ amendments, as may be necessary in that behalf from time to lime or delegate such 
authority to another person by a valid power of attorney.

(iv) Make, execute, swear, declare and register all declarations, affidavits, applications, letter as may 
be required necessary or expedient under the provisions of various applicable acts, niles, 
regulations or notificarions of the Central and/or State Government (s), and/or authorities 
including but not limited to Courts, Municipal Authorities, Registrar of Companies, Electricity 
authorities, and to represent the Company in all correspondences, matters and proceedings before 
them of any nature whatsoever in relation to the above.

(v) Appoint solicitor, advocates, attorneys, pleaders, advisors, valuers, auditors, accountants, or any 
' one or more agencies as may be required, for the aforesaid purpose, on such terms and conditions

as they may deem fit and also to execute vakalatnamas, if required, in favour of any or more 
persons or firms as they may deem fit and necessary.

(vi) Assent and approve any alterations or modification to the Scheme which the Hon’ble National 
Company Law tribunal. New Delhi Bench may deem fit to approve or impose.

■ (vii) Consider, make and approve and sign and execute all other documents, advertisements or 
announcements, applications, disclosures which may be sent/ required to be sent to the 
governmental or regulatory authorities or concerned authorities on behalf of the Company.

(viii) To lake all such actions and steps in the above matter, as may be required from time to time, 
including resolving the difficulties, if any, arising as and when required in the above connections 
without any further references to the Board and

(ix) To sign, execute and deliver such documents as may be necessary and do all such other acts, 
moturs. deeds and things necessary or desirable in connection with or incidental to giving effect 
for the purpose of the above resolution or to otherwise give effect to the fransactions contemplated 
as aforesaid.”
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED -
M-439,1ST floor, GURU HARKISHAN NAGAR PASCHIM VIHAR NEW 

DELHI-110087 
CIN-U34300DL2008PTC173317 . Email- accounts@alfa-flexitube8.com

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to appoint 
M/s Saxena and Saxena Law Chambers, Advocates to enter into appearance before the Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench in connection with the said Demerger and to do/ caused to be done, 
to execute / caused to be executed all such acts, deeds and things incidental thereto, with respect to the National 
Company Lew Tribunal Rules, 2016

. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT certified true copies of this resolution,'be furnished to the concerned 
authorities under the signature of any of the Director of the Company.”

//Cerlif.eri True Copy//

For and on behalf of
ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Date: 24.06.2024 
Place: Delhi

SAURABH TANDON 
(DIRECTOR) 
DIN: 01994583

24.06.2024

ECTOR) 
01994583
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